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A. Directors’ Statements
(pursuant to article 4(2) of Law 3556/2007)

The members of the Board of Directors of the Comgpaading as ELLAKTOR SA (hereinafter the Company),
with registered offices at 25 Ermou str., Kifisstdtica:

1. Anastasios Kallitsantsis, son of Parisis, Chairwitihe Board of Directors
2. Leonidas Bobolas, son of Georgios, CEO

3. Dimitrios Koutras, son of Athanasios, Vice-Chairmahthe Board of Directors, appointed as per
decision of the Company’s Board of Directors

acting in our above capacity, hereby state andircorhat, to the best of our knowledge:

(a) the annual financial statements of the Company the Group for the period 01.01-31.12.2013, winave

been prepared in accordance with the applicabégnational accounting standards, fairly repredemtassets and
liabilities, the equity and the statement of incoamed operating results of the Company as well ashef
companies included in the consolidation as a whmlesuant to the provisions of article 4 of Law 868007, and

(b) the annual report of the Company’s Board oebliors fairly represents the information requiredar article
4(2) of Law 3556/2007.

Kifissia, 27 March 2014

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD THE MANAGING DIRECTOR THE VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE

OF DIRECTORS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS DINTRIOS ATH. KOUTRAS
ID Card No.Z 434814 ID Card Nax 237945 ID Card No. AE 023455
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B. Annual Report of the Board of Directors

B.1. Annual Report of the Board of Directors of ELLAKTOR SA
On the consolidated and separate financial statesmen
For the year from 1 January to 31 December 2013

This report of the Board of Directors pertains be twelve-month period of the fiscal year 2013 thatled
(01.01-31.12.2013), and provides summary finariofakmation about the annual financial statements @sults

of ELLAKTOR SA and the ELLAKTOR Group Companies.elReport outlines the most important events which
took place during 2013, and the effect that suchness had on the financial statements, the mairs résid
certainties the Group is faced with, while it aksets out qualitative information and estimates aloture
activities. Finally, the report includes importdransactions entered into between the Company andpGand
related parties, and a Corporate Governance Statd§marsuant to Law 3873/2010).

The companies included in the consolidation, ext@pparent company ELLAKTOR SA, are those mentiie
note 9 of the attached financial statements.

This Report was prepared pursuant to article 4avf B556/2007 and accompanies the financial statenienthe
financial year 01.01-31.12.2013.

|. Introduction

Despite the recent encouraging signs regardingstieek economy, such as the elimination of the oistreece
leaving the Eurozone, the more positive conditionthe banking sector and the increasing investafidence in
the Greek stock market, 2013 was actually yet aothar of recession, which affected all the Greugztivities
and kept its revenue for 2013 unchanged compar2ad1a:

e The construction sector due to the delayed restarajor road projects.

e The concessions sector due to reduced traffic lbrotds.

e The Wind Energy sector due to the extraordinargtiar, the estimates for the expected applicatfon o
the so-called ‘new deal’ and the increase in LAGH&rges, which impedes the development of new
wind farms.

e The Environment sector due to the ongoing pressuigrices relating to the waste management plants.

e The Real Estate sector due to reduced investaesttand impairment of the value of participating
interests and real estate.

The expected gradual improvement of the Greek aognaill enable the Group to utilize it strong pasit and
benefit from the resulting opportunities for growfrhere are significant developments underway, whidll
boost its results even more, such as:

1. Restarting the two major road works implementedeunconcession contracts in which the Group
participates — which were suspended — i.e. Olyrmjuas and Aegean Motorway, whose new contracts
were ratified by the Hellenic Parliament in Decem@13. This will give new impetus to the Group's
investments in the Concessions sector and wilgétigor the Construction sector a backlog amounting
approximately to €491 million. The Group compamid6TOR and AKTOR Concessions participate in
the following road works implemented under conaassiontracts in Greece:

¢ MOREAS Motorway (Corinth - Tripolis - Kalamata ahdfktro - Sparti branch), by 71.67% in
the concession and by the same rate in the cotisiiibereof.
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e Olympia Odos (Elefsina - Corinth - Patra Motorwdyy,17% in the concession and by the same
rate in the construction thereof.

e Aegean Motorway (Maliakos-Kleidi), by 20% in thenoession and 19.3% in the construction
thereof.

2. Strengthening the Group's construction activitiesoad (Balkans and the Middle East) by having
AKTOR and its subsidiaries undertake new projentsanting to €500 million.

3. Undertaking the first major waste management ptdiggcthe region of Western Macedonia, while there
are also other relevant tenders underway in Greece/ell as 3 new projects abroad, thus reinforttieg
position of HELECTOR in the waste management sector

4. Completion of the refinancing of loans obtained thg parent company ELLAKTOR and AKTOR
CONCESSIONS with bond loans amounting to €227 .3ianiland €170 million, respectively. Upon
completion of the refinancing, the Group will hasgxured the funds needed in the long term.

5. The dividend flow from Attiki Odos, from 2014 onvae; will greatly enhance the liquidity of the Group

[l. I. Overview of results for 2013

The Group’s income remained unchanged in 2013, atmauto €1,241.8 million compared to €1,232.8 ol

in 2012, and its operating profit dropped by 33.&¥hounting to €76.0 million (compared to €114.8liomil in
2012). The drop in operating profit is primarilyedto (a) the revaluation of the Group’s assetsamt\alues,
amounting to €41.9 million, (b) the provisions d&tEnvironment and Wind Energy sectors based ortheg
deal’ amounting approximately to €5.3 million, af®) the special RES levy for the entire fiscal yaarounting

to €6.6 million. Net of these extraordinary redans, the EBIT amounted to €129.8 million, an imenment of
~11% compared to 2012 (the EBIT for 2012, net @&f #ipecial RES levy for 6 months, amounted to €117.6
million). Respectively, if the EBITDA is calculatatet of the extraordinary reductions, the 16.0%pdsdl turn

into a ~7% increase (amounting to €236.9 millioajnpared to 2012 (the EBITDA for 2012, net of thesal
RES levy for 6 months, amounted to €220.8 million).

In terms of net earnings after taxes, the GrouproEd a loss standing at €49.0 million, also inicigca charge
amounting to €30.3 million due to (1) the mandatdeferred tax adjustment that had been formed 11232012
due to a tax rate change from 20% to 26%, anch@ptovision for a 19% tax on untaxed reserves éorop by
31.12.2013 (Law 4172/2013). It should be noted thatamount of the deferred tax adjustment is cfthegmost
entirely on the Concessions sector. Net of the almaraordinary charges and provisions, and ofrtigairment
of investment property, the Group’s earnings afiges would exceed €35 million.

At balance sheet level, the Group’s cash as 0fZ3201L3 amounted to €815.4 million compared to €7 ddillion
on 31.12.2012, and equity amounted to €1,150.4amnitompared to €1,253.7 million on 31.12.2012.

Total borrowings at consolidated level stood a687,5 million on 31.12.2013 compared to €1,756.8ianion

31.12.2012. Out of the total borrowings, the amafr€248.0 million, compared to €552.8 million hetend of
2012, corresponds to short-term loans and the anwd1,409.6 million, compared to €1,203.6 million2012,
corresponds to long-term loans. Total borrowingdude amounts from parent company non-recourse utedsr
co-financed projects, amounting to €932.5 million.
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The Group's net debt at 31.12.2013 was reduced 58.4 million, i.e. a rate close to 31% comparethét of the
end of 2012, as detailed in the following table:

All amounts in EUR million. CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Short term bank borrowings 248.0 552.8
Long-term bank borrowings 1,409.6 1,203.6
Total borrowings 1,657.5 1,756.5
Less: Non recourse debt 932,5 999.1
Subtotal of Corporate Debt (except non recoursésjieb 725,0 757.4
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts 370,2 244.1
Net Corporate Debt/Cash 354,8 513.2
Total Group Equity 1,150.4 1,253.7
Total Capital 1,505.2 1,766.9
Gearing Ratio 0.236 0.290

Note:

(1) Committed deposits (€83.5 million), Time depegiver 3 months (€43.9 million) and bonds heldngturity (€80.3 million) have been

added to total Cash and cash equivalents for 268B85(4 million), and cash and cash equivalents,naitted deposits, time deposits over 3

months and bonds held to maturity which corresptinaion recourse debt (€652.9 million in total) hdeen deducted. Respectively,
Committed deposits (€81.8 million), Time depositero3 months (€101.1 million) and bonds held tourigt (€158.7 million) have been
added to total Cash and cash equivalents for 267@6(8 million), and cash and cash equivalents,naitted deposits, time deposits over
804,3 months and bonds held to maturity which spwed to non recourse debt (€804.3 million in jdtalve been deducted.

The gearing ratio as of 31.12.2013 for the Groupaieulated at 23.6% (31.12.2012: at 29.0%). Thiforis
calculated as the quotient of net debt to totalleyma capital (i.e. total equity plus net debt).

I TI. Development of activities per segment
1. CONSTRUCTION
1.1. Important events

The turnover of the Construction sector remainddtikely unchanged and stood at €892.5 million 26113
compared to €890.2 million for 2012. 68% of thentwrer came from the domestic projects and 32% daone
foreign ones. The operating results stood at €&6libn compared to €22.9 million, and the earnirdter taxes
stood at €10.3 million compared to €5.6 millionZ@12. The sum of approximately €12 million was deal to
the Construction sector results due to the impaitroé the value of real estate. Therefore, the aiogy results
increased by 67.7% on a comparable basis.

In 2013 AKTOR and its subsidiaries signed new @amif in Greece amounting to €980 million (propordi®
total amount of contracts). The largest new prgjecidertaken in Greece include:

1. Construction of Phase Il of the Thriasion Pediod @efyrion Railway Station Complex, budgeted at
€86 million, in consortium with an indirect stakE6%.
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Construction of infrastructure for the new doubkéélway line on the Rododafni-Psathopyrgos section
and Panagopoula tunne, budgeted at €293 milliom, donsortium with the participation percentage of
42.5%.

Design, construction and commissioning of the Talesski Metro extension to Kalamaria, budgeted at
€371.7 million.

Extension of the air terminal, other installati@ml landscaping at the Chania Airport, budgetegfi&tl
million.

Field study, supply of materials and constructibermrichment plant at Skouries, Chalkidiki, budgese
€133 million.

Completion of the infrastructure and buildings flee new double railway line on the Tithorea-Domokos
section, in consortium with a stake of 33.33%. Tb&l project budget amounts approximately to
€374,2 million.

AKTOR enhanced its backlog abroad with new projeft500 million.

1. New contracts of approximately €375 million wergrgd in Qatar, including:

e Implementation of electrical-mechanical works & #nantara resort on Banana island, budgeted at
€13 million.

e Construction of the multipurpose sports center &d& Sports Club, on behalf of the Qatar Olympic
Committee. The contractual amount stands at €10k mi

o Infrastructure works for the construction of then@aof the Internal Security Forces, budgeted at
€480 million. The project was undertaken by a coinsm led by AKTOR, which held a stake of
50%.

e Construction of buildings for the new Doha interoaél airport by a consortium in which AKTOR
holds a 40% stake, and other smaller maintenarmjeqts in which AKTOR holds a 100% stake,
budgeted at a total of €44 million.

2. In Serbia, in the context of the construction otonway E80 (Corridor X), AKTOR signed a contract fo
the construction of project LOT2: Stanicenje — PEast section, of approximately €75 million. The
project is part of the Trans-European Network ofonmays.

3. In Romania, AKTOR undertook the construction oigaild water management unit in Bacau, amounting
to €9.6 million.

4. In Bulgaria the AKTOR - HELECTOR consortium, in whi AKTOR holds a 40% stake, undertook the
construction of Phase Il of the integrated municgmid waste processing plant of the Municipality
Sofia, budgeted at a total of €89.6 million.

1.2. Outlook

The prolonged recession of the Greek economy l@ggdla key role in redefining AKTOR's strategy. ABR
has been taking stable and careful steps to calaelits presence in the Balkans and the Middl¢, Bdeere it is
established and enjoys already recognition and emdion in the local markets. Based on the slalial
experience of its human resources and on its Isefj@f equipment, whose current replacement vahmeds at
€410 million, AKTOR has been strengthening its fgneoperations, aiming to reach a foreign backlégnore
than 31% or even 50%. AKTOR'’s backlog stood at bfiBon at 31.12.2013, and there are contracts kvort
€1,270 million that are expected to be signed.
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1.3. Risks and uncertainties

The inability to secure liquidity from the bankirsgctor has been delaying growth, in which the cansbn
sector is expected to take the lead. So AKTOR, ljastany other undertaking in Greece, is facechwiite risk
and uncertainty relating to the magnitude of théeafcaused by prolonged recession. As regarddgfore
operations, each company’s activity carried oubadris a risk in itself, which can be limited, tigby to the
extent practicable through prevention and planning.

2. CONCESSIONS
2.1. Important events

The income of the Concessions sector stood at £28illion in 2013, reduced by approximately 5% camgal to
2012. This decrease is mainly due to the decling@alfivay revenue in the Attiki Odos. The operatirggults
stood at €65.8 million compared to €70.7 milliorr the same period last year. As already mentiotiegl,
adjustment of the tax rate on deferred taxationthadgorovision for taxes standing at 19% of theawet! reserves
formed by 31.12.2013 (Law 4172/2013) resulted ia #ector recording losses after taxes, as thereawas
surcharge of €23.4 million.

A significant development in concession projectsGireece was the final agreement reached for thartesf
major road projects, where works were either fgiligpended or executed at reduced rates. In Decezft8y
negotiations were concluded between the HellerateSthe banks, the concessionaires and the Eurdpeian

for the necessary restructuring of these projentd, the new concession contracts were ratifiedhbyHellenic
Parliament. The restart of the projects in whiah @roup participates is already underway, as tiseaerecruiting
process in progress at the worksites and the wark&sbeginning gradually. These projects are theeArg
Motorway (PATHE Maliakos-Kleidi section) with a & of 20% and the Elefsina-Corinth-Patras-Pyrgos-
Tsakona motorway with a stake of 17%, which acewdb the new timetable are expected to be conpliete
late 2015 and early 2016, respectively.

As regards the concession project relating to tbenth-Tripoli-Kalamata motorway, in which the Gmhas a
stake of 71.67%, construction works are being edrout with a certain delay. There is a restart@se underway
for financing the project, including an amendmenttie concession contract and approval of cer&structuring
measures, as well as a possible short extensithre afeadline set for the completion of works byehd of 2014.

AKTOR CONCESSIONS, in cooperation with the HELECTQparticipates in the effort made to secure the
award of waste management projects put to tendér the PPP method. The consortium comprising the tw
companies has already become a Temporary PrivataelPdor the waste management project of Western
Macedonia. These projects are described in theosesh the Environment sector below.

As far as foreign operations are concerned, an itapb development was the selection — by the Mipisf
Transport and Infrastructure of Romania — of anmghip comprising the companies AKTOR CONCESSIONS
SA (25%), Vinci Concessions SAS (37.5%) and STRABAG (37.5 %) as the lowest bidder for the conceassio
project that involves the design, constructionaficing, commissioning, maintenance and operatiorthef
Comarnic-Brasov section of the Bucharest-Brasovomaty, of a total length of 54 km. The durationtbé
concession contract is 29 years. This motorway kéllconstructed by a consortium comprising theofalhg
companies: AKTOR Technical SA, with a stake of 3Bf%the object of the project, Vinci Constructiona®ds
Projects, Vinci Construction Terrassement and &galbhe project will be operated by a consortiummgrsing

the companies VINCI Concessions, STRABAG and AKTCdhcessions.
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2.2. Outlook

The gradual improvement of the currently adversmemic environment in Greece is expected to fatdithe
promotion of new co-financed projects. The restdrtoad works implemented under concession corgract
Greece is a very important step. The same applidsetpromotion of waste management projects.

In terms of activities abroad, the Group is tryitmgundertake concession projects in countries ifchvit is
already active, such as Middle East countries Biakans and Russia. In particular, with AKTOR agtims the
construction company and HELECTOR as the technofgyider and manager, the Group intends to seitere
award of waste management projects. It also focoisele field of water management and is expeaezkpress
interest in the privatization of the Thessalonikatt Supply and Sewerage Company (EYATH). Finatlwill
participate in tenders for the privatization oficewl airports.

2.3. Risks and uncertainties

With regard to already operating projects, therstiis a risk of further reduction in traffic antius in revenue,
which is due to the economic conditions which arlt goor, even though that risk is somewhat low€Ehe

projects that are currently under a tendering mtooe may be faced with difficulties or delays rilgtto

financing. As regards the privatization of companiesponsible for the management of public reseusagch as
the Athens Water Supply and Sewerage Company (EY[2AR the airports, there may be difficulties arthgs

resulting from social reactions.

3. ENVIRONMENT
3.1. Important events

The turnover of the Environment sector stood at. Z8illion in 2013, increased by 18.5% compare@®d2,
mainly due to the contribution of the constructiontracts secured in Croatia. On the contrary,oherating
results recorded a decline by 36%, standing atOEfrllion. The drop in profit is attributable to texordinary
factors, such as the provisions for extraordinarste and losses incurred due to the deletion obsitpof the
HELECTOR sub-group in Cyprus amounting to €1.1ioml) to a special RES levy charged for the eniseal
year on the basis of the ‘new deal’ for RES (todhmount of approximately €4.7 million, charged lie tesults)
and, finally, to the discounts offered for the a@m of certain plants in Greece and Cyprus. Téleearnings
after taxes stood at €5.8 million compared to €1ilBon in 2012.

The presence of HELECTOR abroad was strengthen2818 by securing the award of three major projects
three countries, which increased its backlog by3-#@8lion:

1. Bulgaria: A consortium consisting of the AKTOR Gpmoompanies and HELECTOR signed a contract
for the project “Integrated Solid Waste Managentelaint for the Municipality of Sofia - Design and
Construction of a Plant for Mechanical-Biologicakatment (MBT) and generation of a Refuse Derived
Fuel (RDF)”, after a public international tendeurahed by the Municipality of Sofia. The Project
involves the design, construction, maintenance apdration of the Waste Mechanical-Biological
Treatment Plant of the Municipality of Sofia, wigthcapacity of 410,000 t/year. The total projectdmid
amounts approximately to €90 million.

2. Germany: A consortium consisting of Herhof GmbH addlector Germany GmbH, fully owned
subsidiaries of HELECTOR, signed a contract witle thAKB Service of the German State, in
Heppenheim, Germany, for the design, constructimh @mmissioning of a household organic waste
treatment plant with the annual capacity of 31,@0%. The contractual amount stands at €10 million.

3. Slovenia: A consortium consisting of HELECTOR aheé $Slovenian company RIKO d.o.0., in which
HELECTOR is a leader by 54.54%, signed a contracthe city of Novo Mesto, Slovenia, for the
construction of the project “Waste Management Qefatethe Dolenjska Region - Phase 2”. The project
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involves the construction of a mechanical-biolobittaatment plant with a total annual capacity of
41,000 tons, budgeted at €26 million.

As far as solid waste management tenders held @edér are concerned, a consortium consisting of ARTO
CONCESSIONS and HELECTOR was chosen as the TempBrarate Partner (TPP) for the project “Design,
Financing, Construction, Maintenance and Operatibrinfrastructure for the Integrated Waste Managame
System (IWMS) of the Region of Western Macedonisdal on a PPP arrangement”. The project involves th
design, construction, financing, maintenance anéraon of the infrastructure for the Integrated siga
Management System (IWMS) of the Region of Westeatddionia, which will include a Waste ProcessingntPla
(WPP) with a capacity of 120,000 t/year, a residunelfill and 10 waste transfer stations (WTSs). phgject is
expected to serve as a benchmark at a Europedrgleea that it is a complete state-of-the-art t@chl solution,
conforms to the strictest EU environmental requeate and achieves maximum recyclable material mgov
rates. The total investment amounts to approximaidb million and the total duration of the PPP tcact is
27 years, of which 2 years are for construction 2lgears are for operation.

Moreover, HELECTOR, in consortium with AKTOR CONCE®NS, has submitted folders for the expression
of interest/pre-selection for the following projgct

1. Design, Financing, Construction, and Operation ofirfurban waste treatment plants in Attica,
proclaimed by the Special Inter-Collective Assdoiatof the Prefecture of Attica (EDSNA) for
Northeast Attica, with an annual capacity of 129,%0ns, Southeast Attica with an annual capacity of
127,500 tons, West Attica (Ano Liosia) with an aahcapacity of 400,000 tons, and West Attica (Fyli)
with an annual capacity of 700,000 tons.

2. Urban solid waste management plants in the Prefeaifi Achaia, proclaimed by the Municipality of
Patras, with a total annual capacity of 150,008.ton

3. Urban solid waste treatment plant in the Regiokjpifus, proclaimed by the Region of Epirus, with a
total annual capacity of 150,000 tons.

Finally, the same consortium has submitted a bondiifier for the project “Integrated Waste Managetfenthe
Region of Peloponnese based on a PPP arrangement”.

3.2. Outlook

Environment remains a segment of particular intebegh in Greece and abroad. Tendering procedures a
already complete or currently in progress in Greaceelation to more than 12 projects with a tdiatiget over
€2.1bn which relate to the management of approxina® million tons of waste annually. As regards it
operations abroad, HELECTOR focuses on the Balkamtties and particularly Croatia (where the Conypian
already executing 2 contracts), Slovenia and Bidgarhile it also operates in the markets of Jordad Turkey.
There is a tender underway for the constructioarofinsorted urban waste management project in Sbbvéth a
capacity of 40,000 t/year, as well as concessiofepts in Italy and Israel with a capacity of 15)Gnd 370,000
tonnes, respectively. In Germany, efforts are atsale to expand the operations of subsidiaries taviethber
States or accession countries which have securgs fior the implementation of waste managementeptsj

In Cyprus, after months of delay due to the advefseelopments in the financial sector, there isrdér
underway for the design, construction and operatiba mechanical biological treatment plant in theassol
District with a capacity of 140,000 t/year, budgkiat a total of €122 million Moreover, a notice Hasen
published for a plant to utilize the biogas emittag landfills in the Limassol District, and noticesll be
published for the following projects in 2014: (aptoration of landfills in Larnaca and Famagustajgeted at
€30 million, and (b) design, construction and ofieraof a mechanical and biological treatment planthe
Nicosia District. HELECTOR intends to attempt tewe the award of the relevant contracts.

HELECTOR has already entered into long-term cotgransuring a fixed turnover (of approximately €60
million/year.), and there is also a backlog in ¢arion projects amounting to €275 million.
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3.3. Risks and uncertainties

Due to the poor economic conditions, local authesit- with which HELECTOR enters into contractsftem
exert greater pressure with a view to reducinggsrior the incoming waste. This results in redymeddit for the
plants. The new ‘deal’ for RES is also expectechéwe a negative impact, depending of course orfitlaé
reduction rate applied to prices, as this will ieBom the consultation on biogas and wind farms.

As regards the development of new projects, theimiggunwillingness of the banks to grant loans hiaslered
the financing of co-financed projects in the enmir@nt sector and increased borrowing costs. Anatizgor risk
for the sector can be identified in reactions afalocommunities and petitions filed with the Colirdi State in
relation to landfills and waste treatment plants,weell as in the time-consuming procedures for ifisele of
permits and the approval of environmental condgion

4, WIND FARMS

4.1. Important events

As of 31.12.2013, the total installed capacity afTECH ANEMOS and its subsidiaries was 171 MW and
represents 12 wind farms, 1 hydro plant and 1 phodtaic farm. During the 1st half of 2013, two nelants were
commissioned: one hydro plant with a capacity &\ in January, and one wind farm with a capacity of
16.1 MW in June. There are currently two other wiaiens under construction, with a capacity of 20 Mwd 39
MW, respectively. There are also different windniar with a total capacity of approximately 870 M&yarious
stages of the licensing process.

The turnover of the wind farm sector stood at €3fillion, increased by approximately 17% compa@@®12.

Due to the imposition of a special levy for theienfiscal year (€3.8 million) and the applicatiohthe ‘new
deal’ (resulting in the formation of a provision ®3.25 million, which is charged to profit), theespting results
amounted to €12.7 million, compared to €13.2 millio the previous year. The net earnings aftersateod at
€3.6 million compared to €3.8 million in 2012. Ngft the impact of the ‘new deal’ and the specialylethe

operating results amounted to €19.8 million andnteearnings after taxes amounted to €10.7 million

4.2. Outlook

Despite the recent special levy imposed, pursuahftv 4093/2012, on the turnover of companies djpgran

the production of electricity using RES (relateghe period 1/7/2012-30/6/2014), the outlook fog tharket of
renewable energy sources in Greece remains paoditigeestimated that ELTECH ANEMOS SA will conti@ to
grow at the rates that the reduced liquidity predidby the banking system permits.

In early March 2014 a draft law was put to publimsultation by the Ministry of the Environment, Egye and
Climate Change aiming to streamline, and ensursubk&inability of, the Special Account provided ifo Article

40 of Law 2773/1999, the so-called ‘new deal’. Altigh these arrangements are not finalized yetrasuyiting
burden is expected to be within ‘manageable’ levatsl new prices set for wind farms will not afféw sector
adversely, but will allow for growth.

4.3. Risks and uncertainties

The ongoing economic crisis and its direct andraxtiimpacts might bring about changes to the firdrmodel
used for the development of wind farms, e.g.:
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e Delays in the collection of invoiced receivables;

e Delays in the collection of subsidies already atitteal;

e Limited availability of subsidies, in the contextthe new Development Law, which is though comptatsa
by the ability to sign generated power invoices,pasvided for by law, and the ability to be grantect
exemptions instead of subsidies;

¢ Increase of borrowing rates and making loans orernaerous terms in general.

5. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

5.1. Important events

The Group’s real estate development sector recoidedme amounting to €5.6 million in 2013, which
represented a loss. Impairments of participatingra@sts and investment property amounting appraeimdo
€16 million were also charged to the 2013 results.

Currently, the main activity of REDS is the opewatiof “Smart Park” on the property of subsidiarylAYOU
EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA”, in Yialou, Spata-AtticaDespite the decline in retail activities posted by
organized establishments (where the decline rabgigeen 10-20%) and traditional markets (down by@®%),

“Smart Park” has recorded steady income, with 9T%scsurface being leased by renown retail comgmnlhe
latest leases, pertaining to a floor area of 1/@80were signed in November 2013.

5.2. Outlook

Given the circumstances, the Group has focuseakttgities on promoting the existing properties.tis point
focus has been placed on obtaining the necessansks.

5.3. Risks and uncertainties
As a result of reduced demand, there is a highthiakdelays will be seen in the development ofGieup’s real

estate in Greece and Romania. There are redudedcasicerning the YIALOU property, as 97% of iwdit area
has been leased out.

6. OTHER

Impairments of the value of real estate standirfldt4 million were charged to the results of thidér holdings’
sector of ELLAKTOR.

Thermoelectric plants

The Group participates in ELPEDISON POWER througs Bubsidiary HELLENIC ENERGY &
DEVELOPMENT SA (HE&D), which operates two privatedyvned, ultra-modern CHP plants in Thessaloniki
(390 MW) and Thisvi, Viotia (421 MW).

The oversufficiency of power due to reduced congionpthe commissioning of new power generatiomfda
and the rapid penetration of photovoltaic planteehdetracted from the performance of the plantsa Assult, the
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income of ELPEDISON in 2013 decreased comparedhdbd af 2012, standing at €325.7 million compared to
€448.7 million. The operating results (EBITDA) reémed unchanged, standing at €57.1 million. In thersterm,
the projected operating results are relativelylstabhile possible changes are expected if all RAftbposals are
implemented in relation to the reorganization oé& tdomestic electricity market, aimed at strengtmgni
competition and balancing the benefits of the histmonopoly.

Casino

The turnover of the company HELLINIKO CASINO PARNHAS stood at €94.7 million in 2013, compared to
€99.5 million in 2012. The operating results st@dcE4.2 million compared €4.7 million in 2012. Téarnings
before taxes stood at €3.1 million compared to #dillion in the previous fiscal year, whereas nitdfip stood at
€2.7 million compared to €2.8 million last year.

IV. Significant transactions between related partis

The most significant transactions of the Companth wélated parties within the meaning of IAS 24yanel the
Company’s transactions with the following compar(@ssociated companies within the meaning of Agtit2(e)
of Codified Law 2190/1920) and are presented irféllewing table:

Amounts for year ended 2013

Sales of Income from  Purchases of
goods and  participating goods and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services Receivables  Liabilities
Subsidiaries
AKTOR SA 1,790 - 188 5,107 418
ELTECH, ANEMOS SA 222 - 22 488 536
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA 131 - 1,307 35 41,975
REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA 19 - - 60
AKTOR FM SA 68 - 671 - 302
ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA 24 - - 379
HELECTOR SA 168 - - 165
MOREAS SA 174 - - 47
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA 34 - - 14
TOMI SA 50 - - 33
PROMAS SA - PROJECT MANAGEMENT
CONSULTANTS 49 - - 55
OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 2 - 5 96 16
Associates
ATHENS RESORT CASINO SA - 1,996
OTHER ASSOCIATES - - - 1

Other related parties
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Sales of Income from  Purchases of
goods and  participating goods and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services Receivables  Liabilities
OTHER RELATED PARTIES - - - 128 -
TOTAL SUBSIDIARIES 2,731 - 2,191 6,480 43,247
TOTAL ASSOCIATES & OTHERS - 1,996 - 129 -
Amounts of previous year 2012
Sales of Income from  Purchases of
goods and  participating goods and

(in thousand EUR) services interests services Receivables  Liabilities
Subsidiaries

AKTOR SA 2,413 - 188 4,827 212
ELTECH. ANEMOS SA 162 - 15 242 515
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA 259 - 684 - 24,589
REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA 190 - - 138 -
AKTOR FM SA 33 - 389 38 251
ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA 21 - - 352 -
HELECTOR SA 199 - - 234 -
MOREAS SA 180 - - 31 -
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA 63 - - 108 -
TOMI SA 77 - - 78 -
HERHOF RECYCLING CENTER OSNABRUCK - - - 95 -
OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 28 18 5 75 1
Associates

OTHER ASSOCIATES - - - 1 -
Other related parties

REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA - - - 12 -
HELLAS GOLD SA 44 - - - -

OTHER RELATED PARTIES - - - 114 -
TOTAL SUBSIDIARIES 3,626 18 1,280 6,219 25,567
TOTAL ASSOCIATES & OTHERS 44 - - 128 -

With regard to the above transactions in 2013fdHewing points are clarified:

Income from sales of goods and services pertairislyn® the invoicing of expenses and real estatsé fees to
subsidiaries and associates of ELLAKTOR SA, whhe purchase of goods and services pertains mainly t
contracts entered into by and between the parenpany and its subsidiaries.

The Company’s liabilities pertain mainly to contiz obligations for the maintenance of its buitglifacilities,
the invoicing of expenses, contracts and bond &mgeements by Group companies.
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The Company’s include mainly receivables from thevision of services for administrative and teclahsupport
toward the Group’s companies, leasing of officenises and the granting of loans to related paréissyell as
receivables from dividends receivable.

Income from holdings pertains to dividends fromsdiaries and associates.

The fees paid to Group managers and directordéopériod 01.01-31.12.2013 amounted to €7,449 #rwlifor
the Group, and €968 thousand for the Company.

No loans have been granted to BoD members or ettezrutives of the Group (including their families).

No changes have been made to transactions betwee@dmpany and related parties, which could have an
essential impact on the financial position andgbdormance of the Company for the period 01.01222013.

All transactions mentioned above have been condugatder the standard terms of the market.

V. Events after 31.12.2013
Construction

On 25/2/2014 AKTOR signed a contract for the operaand maintenance of the sewage treatment pfant o
Psittalia amounting to €138 million.

Wind farms

The Board of Directors of ELLAKTOR, at its meetirj 27.03.2014, authorized the company’s CEO, Mr.
Leonidas Bobolas, to represent ELLAKTOR at the &otdinary General Assembly of the subsidiary ELTECH
ANEMOS SA to be held on 28.03.2014, in order teeviatfavor, inter alia, on the following issues:

1. Toincrease the share capital of the company ELTRGIEMOS SA by payment in cash and issuance
of new ordinary, registered voting shares, covéned public offering within the meaning of Law
3401/2005 in Greece (the ‘Public Offering’) and eeliation of the preemption right for the existing
shareholders

2. Listing of the shares of the company ELTECH ANEMS/ on the Athens Stock Exchange

This Annual Report of the Board of Directors foe feriod from 1 January to 31 December 2013 has pested
on the Internet, abww.ellaktor.com
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B.2. Explanatory Report of the Board of Directors
of the société anonyme ELLAKTOR SA for the fiscal gar 2013,
under Atrticle 4(7) and (8) of Law 3556/2007, as cuently in force.

The Company’s share capital amounts to EUR3182352.39, divided into 177,001,313 shares with th
face value of €1.03 each. All shares are ordineggjstered, voting shares, listed for trading oa th
Athens Exchange, and specifically in the Large €laps.

There are no limitations in the Articles of Asition regarding transferring company shares, @xce
those provided by Law.

Significant direct or indirect holdings, withiine meaning of Law 3556/2007, as of 31.12.2013

SHAREHOLDER PARTICIPATION
PERCENTAGE

1. LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS 15.232%(*)
2. MITICA LIMITED 9.997%(**)
3. DIMITRIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS 5.296%

4. ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS 5,294% (*)

(* Also includes the percentage of MITICA PROPERSISA (0.48%)
* Direct and indirect holding)

There are no holders of shares, pursuant toigiome in the Articles of Association, granting siad
control rights.

There are no limitations in the Articles of Asistion regarding voting rights and the deadlines t
exercise the right to vote, except those providetddw.

There are no agreements between shareholddts,aggociated limitations in the transfer of shames
limitations in exercising voting rights that the i8pany is aware of.

There are no regulations on the appointmentrapihcement of the members of the Board of Director
and on the amendment of the Articles of Associatwimich are differentiated from the ones stipulated
Codified Law 2190/1920.

The Board of Directors or certain members ofBloard of Directors are authorized to issue newesha
only as provided for by law.

The Extraordinary General Meeting of the Compayiareholders as of 9.12.2008, a) decided to abolish
the treasury share purchase plan approved by mefmecision of the General Meeting of the
Company’s shareholders as of 10 December 200%léart6(1) of Codified Law 2190/1920) and b)
approved a new treasury share purchase plan, purdoaarticle 16(1) et seq. of Codified Law
2190/1920, to replace the abolished plan, for upG® as a maximum of the currently paid up share
capital of the Company, including already acquiskdres, for a period of up to 2 years, at the minim
and maximum treasury share acquisition price 0d&Ishare face value) and €15.00, respectiveld Sai
Extraordinary general Meeting authorized the Baafr@®irectors to proceed to the purchase of treasury
shares, pursuant to article 16 of Codified Law 21900, and in accordance with Commission
Regulation 2273/2003.

In execution of the above decisions of the Genldiggtings, and in implementation of the ELLAKTOR
BoD decisions as of 21.1.2008 and 10.12.2008, 3/324treasury shares were acquired over the period
from 24.1.2008 to 31.12.2008, which represent 1. 1% e Company’s paid up share capital, for the
total acquisition value of €21,166,017, at the ager acquisition value of €6.93 per share. Over the
period from 01.01.2009 to 31.12.2009, 1,515,30astney shares were also acquired, representing 0.86%
of the Company’s paid up share capital, for thaltecquisition value of €5,906,258, at the average
acquisition price of €3.90 per share. Finally, @@mpany did not purchase treasury shares during the
period from 01.01.2010 through 8.12.2010, which wWesfinal deadline of the treasury share purchase
plan.
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The Company currently holds 4,570,034 treasuryeshaepresenting 2.58% of its paid up share capital
for the total acquisition value of €27,072,275th&t average acquisition price of €5.92 per share.

There are no significant agreements that haes lsggned by the Company, which come into forcarer
amended or are terminated as a result of the chartge Company’s control, following a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Companynantbers of its Board of Directors or its personnel,
which provide for the payment of compensation i élvent of resignation or termination of employment
without reasonable grounds, or termination of teriroffice, or employment due to a takeover bid,
except as provided by Law.
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B.3. Corporate Governance Statement
(Article 2(2) of Law 3873/2010)

a) Corporate Governance Code

ELLAKTOR implements the corporate governance pples, as these are set out in the relevant ldiisla
framework (article 43a(3d) of Law 2190/1920, LawlB(002 on corporate governance, article 37 of Law
3693/2008 and Article 2(2) of Law 3873/2010). Theserporate governance principles have been
incorporated in the Corporate Governance Code (basethe SEV (Hellenic Federation of Enterprises)
Corporate Governance Code, January 2011), whipghsted on the Company’s websitevw.ellaktor.com

b) Corporate governance practices implemented by tnCompany in addition to the provisions of law.

The Company has not adopted corporate governaraetiqes in addition to the relevant legislation
provisions for the year ended 2013.

c¢) Description of Internal Control and Risk Managernent Systems

The Company’s Board of Directors places particéenphasis on internal control and risk management
systems for which it is responsible, aiming at afistg and managing systems which optimize risk
management efficiency. The Board of Directors sbaksponsible for identifying, assessing, meaguaind
generally managing risks, including those relatethe reliability of financial statements.

The Internal Control systems’ adequacy is monitdrgdhe Audit Committee which updates the Board of
Directors through quarterly reports on the curiaternal control framework, and through reportairthe
internal control department related to serious mnissues or incidents which might have significan
financial and business implications.

i. The systems and procedures for risk control andageament in relation to the submission of reports an
the preparation of individual and consolidated fficial statements, include:
e keeping, developing and implementing single acdagrdapplications and processes;

e reviewing, at regular intervals, of the accountimijcies implemented, and disclosing their results
to the competent personnel;

e the procedures which ensure that transactions @regnized in line with the International
Financial Reporting Standards;

e the existence of policies which govern accountingkkeeping, and the procedures related to
collections, payments and other financial actigitie

e closing procedures, which include submission dead|iaccount reconciliations and verifications,
updates to competent persons and approvals;

e the implementation of single corporate reportingthbfor financial reporting purposes and
administrative reporting purposes on a quarterbisa

e role determination procedures for system users JERIE restriction of access to unauthorized
fields (authorizations), to ensure the integritd @onfidentiality of financial information;

e the existence of policies and procedures for eammmaih, such as major deals, inventory,
payment, duty segregation procedures, etc.;
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the preparation on an annual basis by the Compdnheo consolidated and individual, per
activity/ subsidiary, budgets for the next finahgiear, to be approved by the BoD;

the follow-up of such budgets and revision, if equired, on a quarterly basis;

updating of the business plan per field of actifiy the next years (usually three), at least ance
year;

determination of limits regarding Company operadi@md transactions via the Company’s legal
and special representatives, pursuant to a spgiaion of the Company’s BoD;

ongoing training and development of personnel pgakand skills;

the access control system which allows accessraopeel and or other persons to selected work
areas, and full recording of movements.

The development of IT systems, managed by a spedrained IT Management Team (IT General
Controls), ensures the integrity and accuracy mdirfcial information. Further, appropriate policasd
procedures related to IT System Security and Ptioteare applied across the Company:

Backup (daily-weekly-monthly-yearly)
Restoration

Server room security

Event Record

Management of user access to IT systems
Frequent and mandatory change of password
Antivirus Security

E-mail Security

Firewall

ii. The Audit Committee evaluates the suitability leé tnternal Control Systems. It is set up to suppia
BoD in their duties related to financial reportimgternal control and ordinary audit supervision.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee #re following:

As regards internal control and reporting systethes Audit Committee:

Monitors the financial reporting process and thednty of the Company’s financial statements.
It also monitors any formal announcements relatinthe Company'’s financial performance, and
reviews the key points of financial statements Whiontain crucial judgments and estimates on
part of the Management;

Supervises internal, management, procedural aadidial audits of the Company, and follows-up
the effectiveness of internal control and risk nggmaent systems of the Company. To this end,
the Audit Committee regularly reviews the Companiiternal control and risk management
systems, so as to ensure that the main risks apeegy identified, managed and disclosed;

Reviews any conflicts of interests involved in @@mpany’s transactions with related parties, and
submits relevant reports to the BoD.
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As regards the oversight of the internal audit depent, the Audit Committee:

e Ensures the operating conditions of the internditalepartment are in line with the international
standards for professional implementation of irdéaudit;

e Determines the operating conditions of the Compaimternal audit department;

e Monitors and examines proper operation of the irgkaudit department, and reviews its quarterly
audit reports;

e Ensures the independence of internal audit, bygsiog to the BoD the appointment and removal
of the head of the internal audit department.

As regards the oversight of the ordinary audit fiomg the Audit Committee:

e Makes recommendations to the General Meeting,hgaBtoD, in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and revocation of the ordinary auditor;

e Reviews and monitors the ordinary auditor’'s indejeate, and the objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process, taking into consideration tblevant Greek professional and regulatory
requirements.

The Committee should meet at least four times par 1o effectively perform its duties.

d) The information required under article 10(1)(d)), (f), (h), and (i) of Directive 2004/25/EC ofetlEuropean
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 21, iated in the Explanatory Report which is includedhia
Directors’ Annual Report for year from 01.01.20031.12.2013.

e) Proceedings of the General Meeting of Shareholdeand powers — Shareholder rights

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the Conipasypreme decision-making body and may decide on
all significant corporate affairs, in accordanceéhwiaw and the Company’s Articles. The Annual Oedlin
General Meeting of Shareholders takes place ongeag within six months from the end of the pregiou
financial year, to approve among others the Comigaapnual financial statements, decide on profit
distribution and release the Company’s Board oé&rs and auditors from all liability.

Decision making takes place in a voting procedur@rder to ensure the free expression of all efalder
views, whether present in person or voting via grddhe Company uses effective and cost-efficieringp
methods for shareholders or their representatives.

A summary of the General Meeting minutes, includir@ing results on each decision of the General
Meeting, must be available on the Company’s websitbin five (5) days from the date of the General
Meeting of shareholders, also translated into Bhgli

At least the Chairman of the Company’s BoD, the GEGhe General Manager, as the case may be, and th
Chairmen of the BoD committees, as well as therialeand Ordinary Auditors, must be present at the
General Meeting of shareholders in order to providfermation on issues of their responsibility for
discussion, and on questions or clarifications ested by shareholders. The Chairman of the General
Meeting should allow sufficient time for sharehalkléo submit any queries.
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The rights of shareholders are set out in the CaoyipaArticles and in Law 2190/1920 (on Societes
Anonyme), as in force.

f) Composition and function of the Company’s Boardof Directors and Committees

The Company’s Board of Directors, whose memberselreted by the General Meeting, will exercise
the general administration and management of catpaffairs, to the best interests of the Companty a
its shareholders. The Board of Directors will detiere which of its members will be executive and-nhon
executive. The number of non-executive members maype less than 1/3 of all directors. The General
Meeting will designate at least two independent imer® among the non-executive directors, in
accordance with corporate governance principles.

The roles of the Directors are set out and cledolgumented in the Company’s Articles, the Corporate
Governance Code, and other official documents. @kez members will see to daily management
issues, while non-executive members will undertek@ut forward all corporate affairs. Independent
non-executive members will provide the Board ofddtors with impartial opinions and advice on
decision-making, to the Company’s interests andgtiogection of its shareholders.

The separate powers of the Chairman of the BoDtledCompany’s CEO will be expressly determined
by the Board of Directors and laid down in the Camgs Articles and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board of Directors will meet whenever neededsorimposed by the provisions governing the
Company'’s operations, as set out in the Articled tre applicable legislation. The Chairman of the
Board of Directors will determine the items on #genda and invite the members to a meeting.

In case of absence or impediment, the Chairmanbailteplaced, in the following order, by the Vice-
Chairman or, in case of absence of impediment ef Ittiter, by the CEO; in case of absence or
impediment of the CEO, the Board of Directors wi#signate a member to act as his replacement.
Replacement as per the above shall relate solalydrcising the powers of the Chairman of the Bawird
Directors in that capacity.

This Board of Directors was elected by the comparyeneral Assembly of Shareholders on 27 June
2013 — while it was modified by decision of its Bdaf Directors of 19 December 2013 (replacement of
a deceased Board member) — for a five-year terroffide, pursuant to the law and the Company’s

Statutes, and comprises the following members:

s/n Full name Position

1. Anastasios Kallitsantsis Chairman of the Board of Directors, Executive
Member

2. Dimitrios Koutras Vice-Chairman of the Board ofr&itors, Executive
Member

3. Dimitrios Kallitsantsis Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Executive
Member

4, Leonidas Bobolas CEO, Executive Member
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5. Maria Bobola Director, Non-Executive Member

6. Angelos Giokaris Director, Executive Member

7. Edouardos Sarantopoulos Director, Executive Member

8. loannis Tzivelis Director, Non-Executive Member

9. Theodoros Pantalakis Director, Independent Non-Executive Member
10. Dimitrios Hatzigrigoriadis Director, Independent iN&xecutive Member
11. lordanis Aivazis Director, Independent Non-Executive Member

The CVs of the members of the Board of Directors awailable on the Company's website
(www.ellaktor.con.

ii. The General Meeting has set up an Audit Commitseticle 37 of Law 3693/2008) which assists the

BoD in the preparation of decisions and ensuresctffe management of any conflicts of interest myri
the decision-making process.

The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to monitbnancial reporting, the effective operation of the
internal control and risk management systems, arglpervise and monitor ordinary audits and issues
relating to the objectivity and independence ofileauditors (the Audit Committee tasks are detaited
section c of this statement).

The company’s General Assembly of Shareholdersugehis Audit Committee at its meetings of 27
June 2013 and 27 February 2014 replacement of@aded Board member) and appointed the following
members:

s/n Full name Position

1. lordanis Aivazis* Independent Non-Executive Member of the BoD
2. Dimitrios Hatzigrigoriadis Independent Non-ExecetMember of the BoD
3. loannis Tzivelis Non-Executive Member of the BoD
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* |t is established that Mr. lordanis Aivazis hademuate knowledge of accounting and auditing issues

The office of the current Audit Committee membeii8 @nd simultaneously with the term of office of
the current Board of Directors.

Kifissia, 27 March 2014

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS
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C. Audit Report of Independent Certified Public Auditor-Accountant
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Audit Report of Independent Certified Public Auditor-Accountant

To the Shareholders &LLAKTOR SA

Report on the Consolidated and Corporate FinanciaStatements

We have audited the attached corporate and coasadidinancial statements BELAKTOR SA, comprised of the
company and consolidated statement of financiaitipasas of 31 Decembéf*® the company and consolidated
profit and loss and comprehensive income statemstaement of changes in equity and cash flovestant for
the year then ended, and a summary of significanbunting principles and methods, and other exptapa
notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Company and Cosolidated Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparatimhfair presentation of these corporate and couetad
financial statements, in accordance with the lmtBomal Financial Reporting Standards, as adoptedhb
European Union, and for those safeguards the mamagethinks necessary to enable the preparaticoropany
and consolidated financial statements free of rraterisstatements whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility lies in the expression of opmion these corporate and consolidated financi&tsints, on
the basis of our audit. We conducted our auditctoedance with the International Standards on AuglitThese
standards require that we comply with ethical regraents and plan and perform the audit to obtaasarable
assurance whether the corporate and consolidateddial statements are free from any material atisstent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtainiaevidence with regard to the amounts and dsseles in
the company and consolidated financial statem@ifits.procedures selected are based on the auditdgsent
including the assessment of risks of material rateshents in the company and consolidated finastaéments
whether due to fraud or to error. In making sust assessments, the auditor considers the safegredatied to
the preparation and fair presentation of the com@and consolidated financial statements of the @mgpwith

the purpose of planning audit procedures apprapt@the circumstances, but not with the purposexpfessing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company®gards. An audit also includes the evaluationthaf

appropriateness of the accounting principles anthoas applied and the reasonableness of accoursingates
made by the Management, as well as the evaluafitimeooverall presentation of the company and clitested

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and adequate as a basis for ourt apdgnion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying company and catatedd financial statements present fairly, inraditerial
respects, the financial position of tRELAKTOR SA and of its subsidiaries as of 31 Decemt¥étand of their
financial performance and cash flows for the ydwmntended in accordance with the International ricize
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EuropeamUnio

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Issues

a) The Management Report from the Board of Directocludes a corporate responsibility statement tha
contains the information required in par. 3d ofiélet 43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

b) We have verified the agreement and reconciliatibthe Directors’ Report with the attached cogterand
consolidated financial statements, in the contéxh® provisions of articles 43a, 108 and 37 of iied Law
2190/1920.

Athens, 30 March 2014

PriceWaterhouseCoopers The Certified Audifacountant

Audit Firm

Certified Auditors - Accountants

268 Kifissias Avenue

152 32 Halandri Despina Marinou
SOEL Reg.No. 113 SOEL Reg.No. 17681
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Statement of Financial Position
All amounts in EUR thousand

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures
Financial assets held to maturity
Financial assets available for sale
Deferred tax assets

Prepayments for long-term leases
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12)
Other long-term receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets at fair value through profit argb|
Prepayments for long-term leasing (current portion)
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12- curpogition))
Financial derivatives

Committed deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets

EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders
Share capital

Share premium

Treasury shares

Other reserves

Profit/ (loss) carried forward

Non controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Grants

Financial derivatives
Other long-term liabilities
Other long-term provisions

Short-term liabilities
Suppliers and other liabilities
Current income tax liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Dividends payable

Other short-term provisions

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Note

10
11
9d
19
13
28
14
15
18

17
18
13
19

14
15
16
20
21

22

23
23
23
24

25
28
29
26
16
27
30

27

25

30

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 _ 31-Dec-12*
430,357 463,622 2.462 3,034
1,052,525 1,078,685 - -
139,206 171,055 41,934 56,879
- - 939,099 940,106
149,879 134,891 34,871 34,871
972 834 - -
55,733 25,129 - -
68,587 149,335 - -
58,349 42,341 852 -
24,690 22,667 - -
51,078 16,269 - -
100,723 96,715 24 24
2,132,100 2,201,542 1,019,242 1,034,914
38,505 43,385 - -
974,084 1,095,771 8,129 7,996
8,413 - - -
24,595 133,563 - -
3 3 - -
1,240 885 - -
76,835 90,245 - -
3,601 - - -
83,518 81,828 - -
815,352 706,835 2,818 766
2,026,146 2,152,515 10,946 8,762
4,516 - - -
2,030,662 2,152,515 10,946 8,762
4,162,762 4,354,057 1,030,188 1,043,677
182,311 182,311 182,311 182,311
523,847 523,847 523,847 523,847
(27,072) (27,072) (27,072) (27,072)
200,198 215,746 103,087 103,077
12,942 71,189 (27,284) 5,539
892,226 966,021 754,889 787,702
258,150 287,693 - -
1,150,376 1,253,714 754,889 787,702
1,409,560 1,203,629 264,855 161,593
110,579 109,015 - 488
7,752 9,407 152 145
78,253 62,023 - -
111,661 147,874 - -
15,582 25,016 2,250 866
125,731 121,202 180 519
1,859,117 1,678,165 267,437 163,611
822,901 815,542 4173 2,343
34,196 11,122 - 84
247,987 552,827 - 89,721
173 242 148 216
48,012 42,445 3,542 -
1,153,269 1,422,177 7,863 92,363
3,012,386 3,100,343 275,299 255,975
4,162,762 4,354,057 1,030,188 1,043,677

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS 1@ pByee Benefits" (note 41). The retroactive agian
of the revised standard on the balance sheet c2(12 is presented in note 41. The notes on pagede 326
form an integral part of these financial statements
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Income Statement

All amounts in thousand EUR, except earnings paresh

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to

Note 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Sales 5 1,241,826 1,232,817 190 199
Cost of sales 31 (1,064,859)  (1,065,886) (160) (160)
Gross profit 176,967 166,931 30 39
Distribution costs 31 (6,348) (6,812) - -
Administrative expenses 31 (56,933) (57,941) (5,272) (4,041)
Other operating income/(expenses) (net) 32 (37,890) 12,067 (12,916) 2,057
Profit /(Loss) from joint ventures 9d 192 554 - -
Operating results 75,988 114,799 (18,158) (1,945)
Income from dividends - - 1,996 18
Share of profit/ (loss) from associates 11 (1,591) 2,288 - -
Financial income 33 36,411 40,915 8 17
Financial (expenses) 33 (95,164) (99,917) (16,009) (14,366)
Profit/ (Loss) before taxes 15,644 58,085 (32,164) (16,277)
Income tax 35 (64,624) (25,680) (659) (99)
Net profit / (loss) for the financial year (48,980) 32,405 (32,823) (16,376)
Earnings/ (losses) for the financial year
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 36 (47,972) 11,914 (32,823) (16,376)
Non controlling interests (1,008) 20,491 - -

(48,980) 32,405 (32,823) (16,376)

Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in€) 36 (0.2782) 0.0691 (0.1904) (0.0950)

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lT@pByee Benefits" (note 41).

The notes on pages 36 to 126 form an integralgidhtese financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Net profit / (loss) for the financial year

Other Comprehensive Income

Information reclassified later to profit and loss
Foreign exchange differences
Changes in value of financial assets availables#te

Cash flow hedge

Information not reclassified later to profit and loss
Actuarial profit/(loss)

Other

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period (net after taxes)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expenses) for the
period attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lT@pByee Benefits" (note 41).

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

13,24

1-Jan to 1-Jan to
Note 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
(48,980) 32,405 (32,823) (16,376)
(3,502) (3,309) - Q)
(80,589) (41,934) - -
66,868 (29,654) - -
(17,222) (74,898) - (1)
720 (2.029) 9 (6)
(71) (57) - -
648 (1,086) 9 (6)
(16,574) (75,984) 9 (7)
(65,554) (43,579) (32,813) (16,382)
(75,472) (56,513) (32,813) (16,382)
9,919 12,934 - -
(65,554) (43,579) (32,813) (16,382)

The Other Comprehensive Income presented in theeasiatement are net, after taxes. The tax cornelipg to
the figures included in Other Comprehensive Incisweferred to in note 35.

The notes on pages 36 to 126 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Attributed to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Results Non
Share Share Other Treasury carried controlling Total
Note capital premium reserves shares forward Total interests equity
1 January 2012* 182,311 523,847 221,734 (27,072) 152,045 1,052,865 261,600 1,314,464
Net profit for the year - - - - 11,914 11,914 24 32,405
Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences 24 (2,458) - - ,458) (851) (3,309)
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale 24 (41,934) - - 934) - (41,934)
Changes in value of cash flow
hedge 24 - - (23,238) - - (23,238) (6,416) (29)654
Actuarial profit/(loss) 24 - - (751) - - (751) 12 (1.029)
Other - - - - (46) (46) (11) (57)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (net after taxes) - - (68,381) - (46) (68,427) (7,557) (75,984)
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year - - (68,381) - 11,868 (56,513) 12,934 (43,579)
Transfer to reserves 24 62,925 - (62,925) - -
Proportion of non controlling
interests in the distribution of
results of a LTD subsidiary - - - - - (16) (16)
Distribution of dividend - - - - - - (5,672) (5,8
Effect of % change in
participation in sub-group of
HELECTOR &
ALAHMADIAH - - (532) - (29,733) (30,265) 18,978 1287)
Effect of participation change in
other subsidiaries - - - - (65) (65) (131) (196)
31 December 2012* 182,311 523,847 215,746 (27,072) 71,189 966,021 ,6237 1,253,714
1 January 2013* 182,311 523,847 215,746 (27,072) 71,189 966,021 ,6937 1,253,714
Net loss for the fiscal year - - - - (47,972) (47,972) (1,008) (48,980)
Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences 24 (3,433) - - ,433) (68) (3,502)
Changes in value of financial
assets available for sale 24 (81,576) - - (81,576) 987 (80,589)
Changes in value of cash flow
hedge 24 - - 56,950 - - 56,950 9,918 66,868
Actuarial profit/(loss) 24 - - 621 - - 621 99 720
Other - - - - (62) (62) 9) (71)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (net after taxes) - - (27,438) - (62) (27,500) 10,927 (16,574)
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year - - (27,438) - (48,034) (75,472) 9,919 (65,554)
Transfer to reserves 24 11,891 - (11,891) - -
Distribution of dividend - - - - - - (39,696) (3M6)
Effect of participation change in
other subsidiaries - - - - 1,677 1,677 235 1,912
31 December 2013 182,311 523,847 200,198 (27,072) 12,942 892,226 , 1288 1,150,376
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Associates participate in the change to Other vesein 2013 with -€31,772 thousand, and to the ghao
Results carried forward with -€9 thousand. The ammudor 2012 are -€6,897 thousand and -€4 thousand,

respectively.

COMPANY FIGURES

Results
Share Share Other Treasury carried Total
Note capital premium reserves shares forward equity
1 January 2012* 182,311 523,847 103,084 (27,072) 21,915 804,084
Net loss for the fiscal year - - - (16,376) @5B)
Other Comprehensive Income
Foreign exchange differences 24 @) - - @)
Actuarial profit/(loss) 24 - - (6) - - (6)
Other comprehensive income for
the year (net after taxes) - - 7) - - (7)
Total Comprehensive Income for
the year - - ()] - (16,376) (16,382)
31 December 2012* 182,311 523,847 103,077 (27,072) 5,539 787,702
1 January 2013* 182,311 523,847 103,077 (27,072) 5,539 787,702
Net loss for the fiscal year - - - (32,823) &3)
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial profit/(loss) 24 - - 9 - - 9
Other comprehensive income for
the year (net after taxes) - - 9 - - 9
Total Comprehensive Income for
the year - - 9 - (32,823) (32,813)
31 December 2013 182,311 523,847 103,087 (27,072) (27,284) 754,889

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lI8pByee Benefits" (note 41).

The notes on pages 36 to 126 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

All amounts in EUR thousand. Note CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
01.01.2013- 01.01.2012- 01.01.2013- 01.01.2012-
31.12.2013 31.12.2012* 31.12.2013 31.12.2012*
Operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax 15,644 58,085 (32,164) (16,277)
Plus/ less adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 6,7,8,25 107,127 103,226 1,071 1,155
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets, itmesit properties
& financial assets available for sale 31,32 46,062 3,484 14,449 -
Provisions 862 (6,114) 16 8
Foreign exchange differences (2,964) (2,243) - 1)
Results (income, expenses, gains and loss) froesting activities (40,501) (46,508) (587) 300
Profit from sale of % in ELDORADO/EUROPEAN GOLDFIEIS
(EGU) & adjustment at fair value of the remainirgding 32 - (19,091) - -
Debit interest and related expenses 33 91,865 195,1 16,009 14,366
Impairment provisions and disposals of receivables 19,089 12,927 - -
Plus/ less adjustments for changes in working abpécounts or
related to operating activities:
Decrease/ (increase) of inventory 4,581 (14,008) - -
Decrease/ (increase) of receivables 48,660 (88,459) (68) 5,894
(Decrease)/ increase of liabilities (except banks) 27,804 145,590 375 (710)
Less:
Debit interest and related expenses paid (102,920) (98,383) (12,979) (14,125)
Taxes paid (55,318) (29,007) (84) (2)
Total Cash Inflows/(Outflows) from Operating Adigs (a) 159,990 114,613 (13,961) (9,391)
Investing activities
Sale of % holding in ELDORADO/EGU 13 - 112,696 - -
(Acquisition)/ disposal of subsidiaries, associafeiit ventures and
other investments 59,692 7,931 90 (23)
(Placements)/ Collections of time deposits overdhtins 57,222 (101,100) - -
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets andtment properties 6,7,8 (73,947) (95,547) ?3) ) (2
Revenues from sale of tangible and intangible ass®d investment
property 8,638 7,407 - 7
Interest received 31,984 41,211 8 17
Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related parties 48)7 367 (64) (79)
Dividends received 1,850 1,394 1,497 46
Committed deposits 20 (1,690) (33,886) - -
Total inflows/(outflows) from investing activitiés) 74,004 (59,526) 1,528 (34)
Einancing activities
(Acquisition)/Disposal of participation share irbsidiaries from/to
non-controlling interests (288) (10,993) - -
Proceeds from borrowings 636,666 221,341 252,053 79,400
Repayment of borrowings (735,616) (365,904) (237,500) (72,500)
Payments of leases (635) (595) - -
Dividends paid (35,492) (4,915) (68) (175)
Tax paid on dividends (10,170) (2,244) - -
Grants received/(refunded) 26 19,978 8,159 - -
Third party participation in share capital increasubsidiaries 79 745 - -
Total inflows/(outflows) from financing activiti¢s) (125,477) (154,406) 14,485 6,725
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents for the period (a) + (b) + (c) B)H17 (99,319) 2,051 (2,700)
Cash and cash equivalents at year start 21 706,835 806,154 766 3,466
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 21 815,352 706,835 2,818 766

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to 1AS T18pByee Benefits" (note 41). The notes on page® 3&26

form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

The Group operates via its subsidiaries, mainlycanstructions and quarrying, real estate developraaed
management, wind power and environment, and coioeessl he Group's investments are detailed in SofEhe
Group operates abroad in the Middle East counterd, more specifically in the United Arab Emirat@star,
Kuwait, Oman and Jordan, as well as in other cigtrsuch as Germany, Italy, Cyprus, Romania, Bidga
Albania, Serbia, Cameroon, Turkey, Croatia, Bo$téazegovina, FYROM, USA and the United Kingdom.

The Company was incorporated and established ird@rwith registered and central offices at 25 Erstqul45
64, Kifissia, Attica.

The Company’s shares are traded on the Athens Bgeha

These financial statements were approved by thedBofDirectors on 27 March 2014 and are subjecthto
approval of the General Assembly of shareholderseyTare available on the company’s website at:
www.ellaktor.com.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The basic accounting principles applied in the prafion of these financial statements are set elavh These
principles have been consistently applied to adrggresented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated and company financial statenfemte been prepared in accordance with the Infenat
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Imétghions of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they havenbeedorsed by the European Union, and IFRS issyetieb
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).eTfinancial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the finaheissets available for sale at fair value througbfipand loss
(including derivatives) valued at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements unB&9 requires the use of accounting estimates audrgions
by the Management in implementing the accountingcies adopted. The areas involving extensive jueiginor
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates hawgnificant impact on the financial statements a
mentioned in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going Concern
The financial statements as of 31 December 2013mepared in accordance with the International iéred

Reporting Standards (IFRS) and provide a reasonaleleentation of the financial position, profit dieds, and
cash flows of the Group, in accordance with thagple of going concern.

2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations
Certain new standards, amendments to standardsntergretations have been issued that are mand&ory

periods beginning during the current financial yaad subsequent years. The Group’s evaluationeoéttect of
these new standards, amendments to standardstartétations is as follows:
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Standards and Interpretations effective for theemnirfinancial year

IAS 1 (Amendment) “Presentation of Financial Staterents”

The amendment requires entities to separate itaesepted in other comprehensive income into twaigsp
based on whether or not they may be recycled tfitpoloss in the future. The amendment affectyy dhe
presentation of the Statement of Comprehensiventieco

IAS 19 (Amendment) “Employee Benefits”

This amendment makes significant changes to thegrétion and measurement of defined benefit pension
expense and termination benefits (eliminates theidmr approach) and to the disclosures for all leyge
benefits. The key changes relate mainly to recagnivf actuarial gains and losses, recognition astservice
cost / curtailment, measurement of pension expetiselosure requirements, treatment of expensestaxes
relating to employee benefit plans and distincbetween “short-term” and “other long-term” benefitbe effect

of the amendment to IAS 19 on the financial stat#sé presented in note 41, and the additionalassres are
presented in note 29.

IAS 12 (Amendment) “Income Taxes”

The amendment to IAS 12 provides a practical aggirdar measuring deferred tax liabilities and defdrtax
assets when investment property is measured usinfair value model in IAS 40 “Investment Property”

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

IFRS 13 provides new guidance on fair value measent and disclosure requirements. These requiresmnt
not extend the use of fair value accounting but/isi® guidance on how it should be applied whereugs is
already required or permitted by other standardsiwiFRSs. IFRS 13 provides a precise definitibfiair value
and a single source of fair value measurement aselodure requirements for use across IFRSs. Bisoto
requirements are enhanced and apply to all asseétkadilities measured at fair value, not jusaficial ones. The
application of IFRS 13 did not affect significanthe fair value measurements made for the Group.

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Disclosues”
The IASB has published this amendment to includerination that will enable users of an entity’sdicial

statements to evaluate the effect or potentiacefié netting arrangements, including rights ofs#tassociated
with the entity’s recognized financial assets agwbgnized financial liabilities, on the entity’sdincial position.

IFRIC 20 “Stripping costs in the production phase é a surface mine”
This interpretation sets out the accounting forrbueden waste removal (stripping) costs in the potidn phase

of a mine. The interpretation may require miningjtess to write off existing stripping assets toenjng retained
earnings if the assets cannot be attributed talantifiable component of an ore body. IFRIC 20 a&spbnly to
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stripping costs that are incurred in surface miraotvity during the production phase of the miwdjle it does
not address underground mining activity or oil aatural gas activity.

IAS 36 (Amendment) “Recoverable amount disclosurefor non-financial assets”(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

This amendment requires: a) disclosure of the re@ile amount of an asset or cash generating@@iyj when

an impairment loss has been recognized or revenséd) detailed disclosure of how the fair valugsleosts of
disposal has been measured when an impairmenthlsdeen recognized or reversed. Also, it remoles t
requirement to disclose recoverable amount wheiGhl €ontains goodwill or indefinite lived intangibéssets
but there has been no impairment. Although it was nequired to implement the amendment earlier than
1 January 2014, the Group decided to apply on Galgr2013.

Amendments to standards that form part of the IASB5 2011 annual improvements project

The amendments set out below describe the key elsainglFRSs following the publication in May 2012tlee
results of the IASB’s annual improvements project.

IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”

The amendment clarifies the disclosure requiremiamtsomparative information when an entity proagethird
balance sheet either (a) as required by IAS 8 “Aoting policies, changes in accounting estimatesearors” or
(b) voluntarily.

IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”

The amendment clarifies that spare parts and $egveuipment are classified as property, plant eguipment
rather than inventory when they meet the definibbproperty, plant and equipment, i.e. when theywsed for
more than one period.

IAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presentation”

The amendment clarifies that income tax relatedigtributions is recognized in the income statenagt income
tax related to the costs of equity transactionsd®gnized in equity, in accordance with IAS 12.

IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”

The amendment clarifies the disclosure requiremémtssegment assets and liabilities in interim fical
statements, in line with the requirements of IFR®Berating segments”.
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Standards and Interpretations effective for periodsbeginning on or after 1 January 2014

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aft€lanuary 2015)

IFRS 9 is the first Phase of the Board's projectréplace IAS 39 and deals with the classification a
measurement of financial assets and financialliies. The IASB intends to expand IFRS 9 in suhset phases
in order to add new requirements for impairmene Qroup is currently investigating the impact oRE9 on its
financial statements. The Group cannot currentfyesdopt IFRS 9 as it has not been endorsed b¥theOnly
once approved will the Group decide if IFRS 9 Wil adopted prior to 1 January 2015.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments: Hedge accounting andamendments to IFRS 9, IFRS7 and IAS 39"
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2015)

The IASB has published IFRS 9 Hedge Accounting, tiied phase of its replacement of IAS 39 which
establishes a more principles-based approach tgehadcounting and addresses inconsistencies arkhesses

in the current model in IAS 39. The second amendmequires changes in the fair value of an entiebt
attributable to changes in an entity’s own creddit to be recognized in other comprehensive incantethe third
amendment is the removal of the mandatory effeatigge of IFRS 9. These amendments have not yet been
endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 7 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Disclosues” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015)

The amendment requires additional disclosuresansition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9. This amendment hasyet
been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentdion” (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014)

This amendment to the application guidance in |12 Ririfies some of the requirements for offsettfimancial
assets and financial liabilities on the stateméffinancial position.

Group of standards on consolidation and joint arrargements éffective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014)

The IASB has published five new standards on caédestibn and joint arrangements: IFRS 10, IFRS ERS 12,

IAS 27 (amendment) and IAS 28 (amendment). Thesedards are effective for annual periods beginoimgr

after 1 January 2014. Earlier application is peteditonly if the entire “package” of five standaidsadopted at
the same time. The Group is in the process of sgsgpshe impact of the new standards on its codatdd

financial statements. The main provisions are lgvis:
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IAS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control eodsolidation in IAS 27 and SIC 12. The new stadda
changes the definition of control for the purpogedetermining which entities should be consolidat&tis
definition is supported by extensive applicationdgmce that addresses the different ways in whichparting
entity (investor) might control another entity (@stee). The revised definition of control focusastee need to
have both power (the current ability to direct #udivities that significantly influence returns)davariable returns
(can be positive, negative or both) before contsobresent. The new standard also includes guidamce
participating and protective rights, as well asagency/ principal relationships.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

IFRS 11 becomes effective for fiscal years begigrun or after 1 January 2014 with retroactive aggpion and
provides for a more realistic reflection of jointrangements by focusing on the rights and obligatiof the
arrangement, rather than its legal form. The tygfgeint arrangements are reduced to two: jointrafiens and
joint ventures. Proportional consolidation of jougntures is no longer allowed. Equity accountsgnandatory
for participants in joint ventures. Entities thairficipate in joint operations will follow accountj much like that
for joint assets or joint operations today. Thendtad also provides guidance for parties that @g#te in joint
arrangements but do not have joint control. Theu@ris currently under a process of analyzing arséssng all
joint agreements concluded, to determine the efiéthe new standard on its consolidated finanstatements.
The effect of the application of IFRS 11 is expdcte relate mainly to the presentation of the Pimtet of
Financial Position and Comprehensive Income, bobtsexpected to have a material impact on thetgaqnid the
net results of the Group. The Group has been fatigwthe developments relating to the questions stidinto
the IFRS Interpretations Committee concerning a&pgibn of IFRS 11, to ensure that the new standsrd
correctly applied to the financial statements ef @roup.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose informatioejuding significant judgments and assumptionsictvienable
users of financial statements to evaluate the eatigks and financial effects associated withethiity’s interests
in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangementsuandnsolidated structured entities. An entity peavide any or
all of the above disclosures without having to @pRS 12 in its entirety, or IFRS 10 or 11, or #reended IAS
27 or 28.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate Financial Statements”

This Standard is issued concurrently with IFRS @@ #bogether, the two IFRSs supersede 1AS 27 “Cdiaesteld

and Separate Financial Statements”. The amende®TA&escribes the accounting and disclosure reopgints
for investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures asdociates when an entity prepares separate falatatements.
At the same time, the Board relocated to IAS 2Uiregnents from IAS 28 “Investments in Associatesti 4AS

31 “Interests in joint ventures” regarding sepafatancial statements.

IAS 28 (Amendment) “Investments in Associates andjnt ventures”

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and joint vergureplaces IAS 28 “Investments in AssociateBhe objective
of this Standard is to prescribe the accountingrfeestments in associates and to set out therergants for the
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application of the equity method when accountingifivestments in associates and joint venturefviohg the
issue of IFRS 11.

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (Amendment) “Consolidad financial statements, joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other entities: Transitbn guidance” (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014)

The amendment to the transition requirements irS6-R0, 11 and 12 clarifies the transition guidandéRS 10
and limits the requirements to provide comparathfermation for IFRS 12 disclosures only to theipdrthat
immediately precedes the first annual period of3FR application. Comparative disclosures are equired for
interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Amendment) “Investmengentities” (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014)

The amendment to IFRS 10 defines an investmentyemtid introduces an exception from consolidatidany
investment funds and similar entities that meet dedéinition of investment entities are exemptednfrohe
requirement on consolidation of most subsidianesich are accounted for as investments at fairevéifwough
profit or loss, although control is exercised. Hmendments to IFRS 12 introduce disclosures thaiastment
entity needs to make.

IFRIC 21 “Levies” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2014)

This interpretation sets out the accounting forohlfigation to pay a levy imposed by government tisahot

income tax. The interpretation clarifies that thmigating event that gives rise to a liability taypa levy (one of
the criteria for the recognition of a liability amcling to IAS 37) is the activity described in thelevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the IeVie interpretation could result in recognition ofiability later

than today, particularly in connection with leviggt are triggered by circumstances on a specdie.dThis
interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 39 (Amendment) “Financial instruments: Recogniton and Measurement” ffective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

This amendment will allow hedge accounting to ammi in a situation where a derivative, which hasnbe
designated as a hedging instrument, is novateffdoteclearing with a central counterparty as ailtesf laws or
regulations, if specific conditions are met.

IAS 19R (Amendment) “Employee Benefits"(effective for annual periods beginning on or afteluly 2014)

These narrow scope amendments apply to contritaifimm employees or third parties to defined benséins
and simplify the accounting for contributions tha¢ independent of the number of years of emplegedce, for
example, employee contributions that are calculatairding to a fixed percentage of salary. Therament has
not yet been endorsed by the EU.
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Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2017 effective for annual periods beginning on or afteluly 2014)

The amendments set out below describe the key elsangeven IFRSs following the publication of tbsults of
the IASB’s 2010-12 cycle of the annual improvementgect. The improvements have not yet been eeddny
the EU.

IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”

The amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vegtcondition’ and separately defines ‘performancadition’
and ‘service condition’.

IFRS 3 “Business combinations”

The amendment clarifies that an obligation to pawtingent consideration which meets the definitafna
financial instrument is classified as a financiabllity or as equity, on the basis of the defimits in IAS 32
“Financial instruments: Presentation”. It also ifias that all non-equity contingent consideratiboth financial
and non-financial, is measured at fair value thtoppfit or loss.

IFRS 8 “Operating segments”

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgenmatte by management in aggregating operating ségmen

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The amendment clarifies that the standard doesembve the ability to measure short-term receivalaled
payables at invoice amounts in cases where thecingbaot discounting is immaterial.

IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 38tangible assets”

Both standards are amended to clarify how the geass/iing amount and the accumulated depreciatien a
treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.

IAS 24 “Related party disclosures”

The standard is amended to include, as a relatdy pa entity that provides key management persboservices
to the reporting entity or to the parent of theomtipg entity.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013 effective for annual periods beginning on or afteluly 2014)

The amendments set out below describe the key elagfour IFRSs following the publication of thesults of
the IASB’s 2011-13 cycle of the annual improvememtgject. The improvements have not yet been eeddny
the EU.

IFRS 3 “Business combinations”

This amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 does not afipthe accounting for the formation of any jointasmgement
under IFRS 11 in the financial statements of tliet jarrangement itself.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio excapfiv IFRS 13 applies to all contracts (includingn#famancial
contracts) within the scope of IAS 39/IFRS 9.
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IAS 40 “Investment property”

The standard is amended to clarify that IAS 40 I&RES 3 are not mutually exclusive.

IFRS 1 “First-time adoption of International Finaiat Reporting Standards”

The amendment clarifies that a first-time adopter ase either the old or the new version of a esvigandard
when early adoption is permitted.

2.3 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are economic entities in which theuprs able to lay down their financial and businpekcies,

usually in conjunction with a holding in their sharapital with voting rights in excess of 50%. Existence and
effect of voting rights that can be exercised anasted are also taken into account to documenthieaGroup is
in control of the economic entity. There may algodontrol in cases where the holding in the shapatal with

voting rights is less than 50%, but the Group ig &b exercise control over the financial and besimpolicies on
a de facto basis. There is de facto control whigeenumber of voting rights held by the Group, ilatien to the

number and allocation of the rights held by othearsholders, enable the Group to exercise contret the

financial and business policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the datemcontrol over them is acquired and cease toheatidated
from the date when control no longer exists.

The purchase method of accounting is used to atcfmunthe acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
Acquisition cost is calculated as the fair valughaf assets assigned, of obligations undertakém mace, and of
the equity instruments issued as of the date asaetion. The acquisition cost includes the falueaf the assets
or liabilities arising from contingent consideratiarrangements. The individual assets, liabiliiad contingent
liabilities that are acquired during a business loimation are valued initially at their fair valuasthe acquisition
date. The Group recognizes non-controlling intarésproportion to the subsidiary’s equity. The @isijion costs
are posted in profit and loss as incurred.

In a business combination achieved in stages,dheirer shall remeasure its equity interest presiipbield in the
acquiree at fair value at the acquisition dateraedgnize any gain or loss in income.

Any contingent consideration to be paid by the @raurecognized initially at fair value at the aisifion date.
Any changes in fair value of contingent consideratihat qualify for classification as an assetiability are
recognized in accordance with IAS 39 either in prof loss or as effect on other comprehensive rimeoA
contingent consideration recognized as equity tsexalued and its subsequent settlement is aceddat within
equity.

When the sum of (a) the cost of acquisition, (l&) dmount recognized as non-controlling interests(anthe fair
value at the acquisition date of the Group's shthe combination is achieved in stages, is gnetltan the net
assets acquired, the excess is recognized as dbdéittie above sum is less than the fair valughef net assets
acquired, the difference is recognized directlpiafit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealga&ids on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminai@egt if the transaction provides indication of aimment of the
transferred asset. The accounting principles oftlsidiaries have been amended so as to be inroaity with

the ones adopted by the Group. In the parent cop'p&tatement of Financial Position, subsidiaries\alued at
cost less impairment.
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(b) Changes to holdings in subsidiaries withouslo§control

Any transactions with minority shareholders havimg effect on the control exercised by the Grouprdhe
subsidiary are measured and recorded as equitgatdans, i.e. they are handled in the same wathais
followed for transactions with key Group sharehaddd he difference between the price paid and éhevant
share acquired in the book value of the subsidsaeyuity is deducted from equity. Any profit ordaaising from
the sale to majority shareholders is also posteuequity.

(c) Sale of / loss of control over subsidiary

As soon as the Group ceases to exercise contsijoificant influence on a subsidiary, the remaingercentage
is measured at fair value, and any differencespasted in results. Subsequently, this asset isifiled as an
associate or financial asset, its acquisition valeng that fair value. In addition, any amounteviusly
recorded under Other Comprehensive Income will tmanted for as in the case of sale of a subsidemy
therefore they may be accounted for in profit @slo

(d)  Associates

Associates are economic entities on which the Goaupexercise significant influence but not “cofiffravhich is
generally the case when the Group holds a percerttegveen 20% and 50% of a company’s voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for ubmgduity method. In accordance with the equityhmet an
investment in an associate is recognized initiathacquisition cost and the book value increasedeoreases in
order for the investor's share to be recognizethénassociate’s profit or loss following the dafeaoquisition.
The “Investments in associates” account also ireduthe goodwill resulting on acquisition (reduced dmy
impairment losses).

In case of sale of a holding in an associate orchlwlthe Group continues, however, to exercise somf
influence, only the portion of amounts previouststed directly in Other Comprehensive Income wéllgmsted
in results.

Following the acquisition, the Group’s share in ti@ns or losses of associates is recognized innteme

statement, while the share of changes in other celmemsive income following the acquisition is reaiagd in

other comprehensive income. The cumulative chamadfest the book value of the investments in assesia
When the Group’s share in the losses of an assadsi@rjual or larger than the carrying amount efitivestment,
the Group does not recognize any further losselgssirit has guaranteed for liabilities or made payis on

behalf of the associate.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet dateewkimhe is evidence of impairment of investmemts i
associates. If any investment must be impaired@tmup calculates the amount of impairment as tfierdnce
between the recoverable amount of the investmehitarbook value. The amount of impairment is redpgd in
the income statement, in the row 'Profit/loss fragsociates'.

Unrealized profits from transactions between theuprand its associates are eliminated accorditiget@roup’s
percentage ownership in the associates. Unrealizesks are eliminated, except if the transacticoviges
indications of impairment of the transferred as3ée accounting principles of affiliates have beeljusted in
order to be in conformity to the ones adopted leyGmoup. In the parent company’s balance sheaiciadss are
valued at cost less impairment.
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(e) joint ventures

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are anted for on the basis of proportionate consolidatiexcept
for those which are inactive on the date of filRRE adoption, which are consolidated using thetgeuiethod as
described above). The Group adds its share omitwnie, expenses, assets and liabilities and casls fhf each
joint-venture with the respective figures of theoGp.

The Group recognises the share in the gains oedoBem sales of the Group to the joint-venturescivhs
attributed to the other partners of the joint-veattrhe Group does not recognise its share indives@r losses of
the joint-ventures which resulted from purchasethefGroup by the joint-ventures until the assetjuaed are
sold to a third party. Occurring losses from sudhaasaction is recognized directly if it evideneeszduction in
the net liquidation value of current assets or iimpant. The accounting principles of the joint-uaes have
been adjusted in order to be in conformity to thesoadopted by the Group. In the parent comparsianbe
sheet, joint ventures are valued at cost less imest.

2.4 Information by segment

Reports by segment are prepared in line with ttermal financial reports provided to the Chairmite, CEO and
other executives of the Board of Directors, who eua@nly responsible for decision-making. The keyspas
responsible for decision-making undertake to esfhlal strategy, allocate resources and evaluateetiermance
of each business segment.

2.5 Foreign exchange conversions

(@) Functional and presentation currency

The items in the financial statements of the Greugompanies are measured in the currency of thmapyi
economic environment in which the Group operatasdional currency). The consolidated financiatestaents
are reported in Euros, which is the functional enay and the reporting currency of the parent Camppa

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated lmdfnctional currency using the exchange rategaineg at the
dates of the transactions. Profits and losses fiargign exchange differences that arise from thteseent of
such transactions during the financial year andhftbe translation of monetary items into foreigmleange at
current rates applicable on the balance sheetadateecorded in profit and loss, except where #reytransferred
directly to Other comprehensive income due to bedhated to cash flow hedges and net investmerigdwed

Any changes to the fair value of financial secastin foreign currency designated as availablsdte are broken
down into foreign exchange differences from a cleatrgthe net value of the security and other chamiye to
book value. Foreign exchange differences are defeten profit and loss, and other differences aaegferred to
other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange differences from non-monetarystémt are valued at their fair value are consiiesepart of
their fair value and are thus treated similarlyfaor value differences. Foreign exchange differsnoe non-
financial assets and liabilities, such as sharassdied as available for sale are included in otoenprehensive
income.
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(¢)  Group Companies

The results and financial position of all groupities (none of which has the currency of a hypéatidnary
economy) that have a functional currency differénetm the presentation currency are translated thi®
presentation currency as follows:

i) The assets and liabilities are converted usingates in effect at the balance sheet date;

ii) The income and expenses are converted using thageveates of the period (except if the average
rate is not the reasonable approach of the acctealilmpact of the rates in effect at the datedef t
transactions, in which case income and expensesarerted using the rates in effect at the dates
of the transactions) and

iii) Any differences arising from this process are pbstader other comprehensive income and are
transferred to the income statement upon dispdshkse companies.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the cmsiga of the net investment in a foreign comparsynall as
of the borrowing characterized as hedging of t&stment are posted under other comprehensiveni.cdpon
disposal of a foreign company in part or in whalecumulated exchange differences are transferrddbtmcome
statement of the period as profit or loss resulfing the sale.

Gains and changes to fair value from the acquisitibforeign companies are deemed to be assettiadnilities
of the foreign company and are measured at theccyrrate applicable on the balance sheet datereudting
foreign exchange differences are recorded in Qtbeprehensive income.

2.6 Investment property

Properties held under long-lasting leases or dagains or both and are not used by Group compaaies
classified as investments in property. Investmeoperty includes privately owned plots and buildings well as
properties under construction which are erectedeoeloped with a view to being used as investmespgrty in
the future.

Investment property is recognized initially at gastluding the relevant direct acquisition andrbering costs.
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition or constime of investment property are capitalized to imeestment
cost for the duration of the acquisition or constian and are no longer capitalized when the figadet is
completed or stops to be constructed. After initedognition, investments in property are valueatct, less
depreciation and any impairment. Investment bugdiare amortized based on their estimated usé&uhtich is
40 years; however historic non refurbished buildiage amortized in 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is added to the carryingevad the property only if it is probable that fteuleconomic
benefits related to such property will flow to tBeoup and their cost can be reliably measured. r€pair and
maintenance cost is booked in the results when isugfalized.

If an investment in property is modified to an a$ee own use, then it is classified in tangiblsets. Also, when
there is a change in use of the investment promariyenced by commencement of development withew w0
sale, it is classified as inventories.

Property held by the parent company and leasedmopanies in the Group are classified as investmiants

property in the financial statements of the Compang as tangible fixed assets in the consolidatezh€ial
statements.
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2.7 Leases

€)) Group Company as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantiallyhallrisks and rewards of ownership are classifiedpesating
leases. Operating lease expense is recognize@ imtbme statement proportionally during the |lgaegod and
includes any restoration cost of the property dtsaolause is included in the leasing contract.

Leases of fixed assets where all the risks andnasaaf ownership are maintained by the Group aassified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalizeutedeases inception at the lower of the fair valfiehe leased
property and the present value of the minimum lgesanents. Each lease payment is apportioned betthee
reduction of the liability and the finance chargetlsat a fixed interest rate on the remaining faianliability is

achieved.} The respective lease liabilities, neffionce charges, are included in borrowings. The pf the
finance charge relating to finance leases is reizednin the income statement over the lease. Fasskts
acquired through finance leases are depreciatettioweshorter of their useful life and the leasente

(b) Group Company as lessor

The Group leases assets only through operatinggedea@3perating lease income is recognized in theniec
statement of each period proportionally duringgeod of the lease.

2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are reported in the financial staténanhacquisition cost minus accumulated depreciasind
possible impairment. The acquisition cost includiéshe directly attributable expenses for the asitjan of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s ngrgfinount or recognized as a separate asset, a¥papte,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Groapd the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The repair maintenance cost is recorded in the results veueh is
realized.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other FP&alculated using the straight line method oweirtuseful
life as follows:

- Buildings 20-4C year:
- Mechanical equipme 5-7 year:
- Mechanical equipment of wind farr 2C year:
- Hydroelectric plant mechanical equipm 25 year:
- Transportation equipme 5-7 year:
- Other equipmel 5-7 year:

The residual values and useful economic life of RRESubject to reassessment at least at eaclcbalhaet date.

PPE under construction are included in propergntand equipment, and their depreciation stareswvdomplete
and finished for their intended use.

When the book values of tangible assets exceed rindverable value, the difference (impairmentasted in
the income statement as expense (note 2.10).

Upon the sale of PPE, any difference between tbegads and the depreciable amount is recordedoéis qr
loss in the results.

Financial assets concerning the construction oétasare being capitalized for the period needed thn
completion of the construction. All other financédpenses are recognized in the income statement.
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2.9 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (a) the costogjuisition, (b) the amount recognized as non-cdimgp
interests and (c) the fair value at the acquisitlate of the Group's share, if the combinatiorclieved in stages,
compared to the net assets acquired. Goodwillngrisbm acquisitions of subsidiaries is recogniethtangible
assets. Goodwill is not depreciable and is testedirhpairment annually, or even more frequentlythié
circumstances indicate possible impairment, andgeized at cost, less any impairment losses. Gdblbsses
cannot be reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating unitsifopairment testing. Allocation is made to thosetsimr cash
generating unit groups which are expected to befrefn the business combinations which created gabdind
is recognized in line with the operating segment.

Profit and losses from the disposal of an undemtaknclude the book value of the goodwill of thedartaking
sold.

Negative goodwill is written off in profit and loss
(b) Software

Software licenses are valued at acquisition cast tepreciation. Depreciation is accounted for with straight
line method during the useful lives which vary frano 3 years.

(c) Concession right

Concession rights are valued at the acquisitiont, dess depreciation. Depreciation is carried osing the
straight line method during the Concession conffiaate 2.24).

(d) User licenses

User licenses are measured at acquisition cosalesstization. Amortization is accounted for by tee of the
straight line method from the commissioning dateviofd farms, during their useful lives, which is gars.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life, e.g. goodwalre not depreciated, and are subject to impaitrgsting on an
annual basis, and when certain events or changée wrcumstances suggest that their carryingevaiay not be
recoverable. Assets that are depreciated are subjempairment audit when indications exist thiagit book
value is not recoverable. Impairment loss is recmghfor the amount by which the fixed asset'syéag value
exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverable\althe higher between fair value, reduced byct® required
for the disposal, and the value in use (currentieradf cash flows anticipated to be generated basethe
management’s estimates of future financial and atpey conditions). For the calculation of impairméssses,
assets are classified in the minimum cash generatiits. Any non-financial assets, apart from godidwhich
have been impaired are reassessed for possibléringrd reversal on each balance sheet date.
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2.11 Financial Assets

2.11.1 Classification

The financial instruments of the Group have beessified to the following categories accordinghe bbjective
for which each investment was undertaken. The Mamegmt makes the decisions on classification atainit
recognition.

(&) Financial instruments valued at fair value thgh the income statement

This class comprises financial assets held forinigadDerivatives are classified as held for tradiegcept when
they are designated as hedges. Assets falling uhidecategory are recorded in the current asbétgy are held
for trading purposes or are expected to be soldinvit2 months from the balance sheet date.

(b) Borrowings and receivables

These include non-derivative financial assets \iiited or predefined payments which are not tradedadtive

markets. They are included in current assets, ¢Xoepnaturities greater than 12 months after thkatce sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assetsodngs and receivables are included in the traae other
receivables account in the Statement of Finana@aitien.

(c) Financial assets available for sale

These include non-derivative financial assets d@hateither designated as such or cannot be includauly of the
previous categories. They are included in non-cdri@ssets unless management intends to disposkeof t
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet.da

(d) Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets held to maturity are non-derieatssets with fixed or determined payments andifgpec
maturity, which the Group management intends toianid position to hold until maturity. Should troup sell
a significant portion of financial assets held tatunity, the entire portfolio of assets classifiagl such are
reclassified under financial assets available &le.sFinancial assets held to maturity are postedon-current
assets, with the exception of assets whose maiarigss than 12 months from the date of the firdmeport, in
which case they are classified under current assets

2.11.2 Recognition and Measurement

The purchase and sales of investments are recéodexh the trade-date, which is the date on whiwh Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investmargsinitially recognized at their fair value, plegpenses
directly related to the transaction, with the exmap of those assets, regarding expenses direeliyed to the
transaction, which are valued at their fair valbeotigh profit and loss. Financial assets valuefhiatvalue
through profit and loss are initially recognizedfat value, and transaction expenses are recogjiizessults in
the period they were incurred. Investments areieéited when the right in cash flows from investnsesids or
is transferred and the Group has transferred aceéfll risks and benefits attached to ownership.

Subsequently, financial assets available for sedenseasured at fair value and the relative gainesses from
changes to fair value are recorded in other congureifle income till those assets are sold or detg#dnas
impaired. Upon sale or when assets are charaatesizémpaired, the gains or losses are transféortite income
statement. Impairment losses recognized in remdtg not be reversed through profit and loss.

Borrowings and receivables, as well as financiaktsheld to maturity are recognized initially @it fvalue and
are measured subsequently at net book cost basheé effective rate method.
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The realized and unrealized profits or lossesmgiiom changes in the fair value of financial assehich are
valued at fair value through the income statemanetrecognized in the profit and loss of the pedadng which
they occur.

The fair values of financial assets that are traiedctive markets are defined by their prices. Ron-traded
assets, fair values are defined with the use ofiatEdn techniques such as analysis of recent tctinsa,
comparative items that are traded and discountsial ftaws.

2.11.3 Offsetting of financial receivables and liabilities

Financial receivables and liabilities are offsetl ghe net amount is presented in the StatementiranEial
position only where the Group or Company holdsléwgal right to do so and intends to offset themaociear
basis between them or to retrieve the financiateessd offset the liability at the same time.

2.11.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemthette is objective evidence that a financiattes a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case ofitggsecurities classified as available for salesignificant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the secubigow its cost is considered as an indicator ttatsecurities are
impaired. If impairment is demonstrated, accumuldtss in equity which is the difference betweea tost of

acquisition and the fair value shall be carriedrdeeresults. Impairment losses of equity instrutegecognized
in the income statement are not reversed throughitbome statement. Reversal of security impairmang

recognized in profit or loss if the increase in taie value of these items can be correlated objelgtto a certain

event that took place after recognition of impaintriess in profit or loss.

In case of objective indications that financialeassheld to maturity and presented at net bookisitigm value
have been impaired, the amount of impairment lessalculated as the difference between their aagryalue
and the current value of estimated future cashdl¢except for future losses from credit risks net realized),
discounted at the initial effective rate. Impairmksses of financial assets helt to maturity arst@d in results.

The impairment test for receivables is describenbite 2.14.

2.12 Financial derivatives

Group companies evaluate, on a case by case Wasisnaking of financial derivative contracts to gedhe
exposure to rate fluctuations connected to longr+iean agreements.

Upon commencement of a transaction, the Group lestab the relation between the hedging instrumants
hedged assets, as well as the risk managemerdggtriat take various hedging actions. This procedheiides
the linking of all derivatives used as hedges tec#jt assets and liabilities or specific commitrserr
prospective transactions. Furthermore, when stadimedge and thereafter, the extent to which dravatives
used in hedging transactions are effective in elating fluctuations to the market value or cashviioof the
hedged assets.

The fair values of derivatives used for hedgingppsges are disclosed in note 16. Changes to the ftagh
hedging reserve under Other comprehensive incomealiaclosed in note 23. The total fair value of dind
derivatives is classified under non-current aseett®ong-term liabilities when the remaining hedgesbet has a
maturity over 12 months, or under current asseshort-term liabilities when the residual matuitythe hedged
asset is less than 12 months. Derivatives helttdole are classified under current assets or $éortdiabilities.
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Cash flow hedge

Derivative assets are initially recognized at dfest value) as of the date of the relevant agregraed are then
measured at fair value.

The portion of change to the derivative’s fair \ealoonsidered effective and meeting the cash flodgimg
criteria is recognized in Statement of Comprehansicome. Profit or loss associated with the ndeetive
portion of change is directly recognized in theome Statement, under “Financial expenses (inconat)-

The cumulative amount posted under Equity is temetl in the Income Statement to the periods ovéchwthe

hedged asset has affected period profit or lo§3®s profits or losses associated with the effegiegion of the
hedging of floating rate swaps is recognized inltteome Statement under “Financial expenses (ingemet”.

However, when a prospective transaction to be tebdgsults in the recognition of a non-financialeagsuch as
reserves or fixed assets), then earnings and Ipssem®usly posted in net equity are transferrednfEquity and
are accounted for at the original cost of suchta3dese amounts are ultimately charged to regluftsigh the
cost of sales in the case of reserves, and thrdegheciation in the case of tangible assets.

When a financial product matures or is sold, or waehedging relation no longer meets the critefihemge
accounting, the cumulative profits or losses po$tetthat time under Equity remain in Equity and egeognized
when the prospective transaction is ultimately @ash the Income Statement. When a prospectivesdrdion is
no longer expected to be made, the cumulativetgrofilosses posted under Equity are directly feared to the
Income Statement under “Other operating incomgiéazes) (net)”.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of acquisitimst and net realisable value. The cost is caledlasing the
weighted average cost method. The cost of end ptedand semi-finished inventories includes costledign,
materials, average working cost and a proportioth@fgeneral cost of production.

Investments in properties to which a constructitidtes aiming at a future sale are re-classifisdnventories at
book value at the balance sheet date. From noweynwill be calculated at the lowest value betwiéencost and
net realisable value. Financial expenses are whided in the acquisition cost of inventories. Tiet realizable
value is estimated based on the stock’s curreesgaiice, within the framework of ordinary businassvities,
less any possible selling expenses, wherever saaleaconcurs.
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2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fatue and subsequently measured at amortized sogj the
effective interest method, except if the discountcome is not important, less provision for impann A
provision for impairment of trade receivables itabished when there is objective evidence thatGhaup will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due, etiog to the original terms of receivables.

Trade receivables comprise of commercial papersates payable from customers.

Serious problems that the customer encountergpdbsibility of bankruptcy or financial reorganizatiand the
inability of scheduled payments considered to hdence that the receivable value must be impaifad.amount
of the provision is the difference between the tssarrying value and the present value of estahdtiture cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest ratke Bmount of the provision is recognized as an resgpén the
income statement.

2.15 Committed deposits

Committed deposits are cash equivalents not reagidjlable for use. These cash equivalents map@aaised by
the Group until a certain point of time or eventésached or occurs in the future. In the cases avbemmitted
deposits are expected to be used within one yean the date of the statement of financial posititiese are
classified as a short-term asset. However, if gr@ynot expected to be used within one year frardtte of the
statement of financial position, they are clasdifis a long-term asset.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight depand short-term investments of up to 3 montith high
liquidity and low risk.

2.17  Share capital

The share capital includes the Company’s ordindgres. Whenever, any Group company purchases sbiares
the Company (Own shares), the consideration paiteducted from equity attributable to the Groupislity
holders until the shares are cancelled or dispo§etihe profit or loss from the sale of own shargesecognized
directly to equity.

Direct expenses for the issue of shares appeaf gty relevant income tax benefit, to the reductdequity.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair valugst of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings atgssquently
stated at net book cost, using the effective isterate method. Any difference between the procéeds of
transaction costs) and the redemption value isgrized in the income statement over the periodhef t
borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Any borrowing expenses paid upon execution of nesdit agreements are recognized as borrowing ergens
provided that part or all of the new credit linewghdrawn. In this case, they are recorded asréubwrrowing
expenses until withdrawal is made. If the new bemgs are not used, in part or in all, these expsrare
included in prepaid expenses and are recognizpobiit or loss during the useful life of the relew&redit line.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedess the Group has an unconditional right to deétiement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the lvela sheet date.

2.19 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax for the financial year comprises currentl deferred taxation. Tax is recognized in theoine
statement, unless relevant to amounts recognizether comprehensive income or directly in equitythis case,
tax is also recognized in other comprehensive ircomequity, respectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordancthhie tax legislation established as of the baasteet date in
the countries where the Group operates, and isgréoed as expense in the period during which pnoéis
generated. The management regularly evaluates #dsescwhere the applicable tax legislation requires
interpretation. Where necessary, estimates are fadee amounts expected to be paid to tax autbsri

Deferred income tax is determined using the ligbihethod on temporary differences arising betwnentax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgingunts, as shown in the financial statements. déferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises framitial recognition of an asset or liability in afrsaction, other
than a business combination, that at the time efithnsaction affects neither the accounting ottdlRable gains
or losses. Deferred tax is determined using thedtes and laws in force as of the date of theroalaheet, and
expected to be in force when the deferred tax vabées will be due or deferred tax liabilities Wik repaid.

Deferred tax receivables are recognized to thenéxtat there could be future taxable gains tothegemporary
difference that gives rise to the deferred taxikeddes.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are offsdy if the offsetting of tax receivables and lldies is permitted
by law, and provided that deferred tax receivahbied liabilities are determined by the same taxaitihto the
tax paying entity or different entities, and théeimtion has been expressed to proceed to settlcloyewny of
offset.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Post-employment benefits

The employee benefits after their retirement ineldéfined contribution programs and defined bemeéigrams.
The Group participates in various pension plangnfeats are defined by Greek law and the funds’legiguns.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defia specific amount to a pension to be receiveahtgmployee
when he retires, which usually depends on one gerfaxtors such as age, years of service and ¢d\ezllary.

A defined contribution scheme is a pension planeunchich the Group makes fixed payments to a sépsgal
entity. The Group has no legal obligation to payHer contributions if the fund does not have sigfit assets to
pay to all employees the benefits relating to elygoservice in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays KGbuations to public social security funds on a matody basis.
The Group has no obligation other than paying dstiibutions. The contributions are recognized taff sosts
when the debt arises. Prepaid contributions aregrézed as an asset if there is a cash refund hplitysior
offsetting against future debts.

The liability that is reported in the balance sheith respect to defined benefit schemes is thegimevalue of the
liability for the defined benefit on the balanceeshdate, less the fair value of the scheme’s sissbe defined
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benefit obligation is calculated annually by andpdndent actuary using the projected unit credthate The
present value of the defined benefit obligationlésermined by discounting future cash flows atstaint rate
equal to the rate of long-term investment grad@a@te bonds that have a maturity approximatehaktuthe
pension plan.

Actuarial gains or losses arising from experierdjgstments and changes in actuarial assumptionsharged or
credited to other comprehensive income in the geriovhich they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediatelyeiintome statement.

b) Employment termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmetgrisinated before the normal retirement date, logrwan

employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchamgihése benefits. The Group recognizes these iteaéthe

earliest of the following dates: (a) when the Greap no longer withdraw the offer of such beneéitsj b) when
the Company recognizes restructuring costs falliipin the scope of IAS 37 and includes the paymait
termination benefits. In the case of an offer mamencourage voluntary redundancy, retirement hisnafe

calculated based on the number of employees expéataccept the offer. When such termination béseifie

deemed payable in periods that exceed 12 months thhe Balance Sheet date, then they must be ditebar

their current value.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration and ouidtag litigations are recognized when an actuabllegyy
assumed commitment exists as a result of past gwshen settlement of such commitment will likebguire an
outflow of resources, and when the required amoantbe reliably estimated.

When concession contracts (note 2.24) include thecessionaire’s contractual obligation to mainttie
infrastructure at a certain service level or restihre infrastructure to a certain state beforevdshig it to the
conceder at the end of the concession period, tfeigs as concessionaire, acknowledges and valuss th
obligation under IAS 37.

Provisions are recognized on a discounted basis wieeffect of the time value of money is sigrfi using a
pre-tax rate which reflects current market assestsnef the time value of money and the risk spedifi the
liability. When provisions are discounted, the gwmse in provisions due to the lapse of time isgeized as a
financial expense. Provisions are reviewed on eath of financial statements and if an outflowwnids to settle
the obligation is unlikely, they are reversed ia thcome statement.
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2.22 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the delitor collectable price, after deduction of arscdunts.

The Group recognises revenue when this can béheliaeasured and it is probable that the economnefits of
the transaction will flow to the Group.

Revenue mainly comes from technical projects, to#s, operating leases or sale of property, gdaiterand sale
of energy, waste management, production and tradeasrying products.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wherGroup has transferred material risks and thendsvof
ownership to the purchaser.

Revenue and profit from construction contracts r@@gnized according to IAS 11 as described in 2028
below.

Revenue from operating leases is recognized irirtb@me statement using the straight line methodnduthe
lease period. When the Group provides incentivasstolients, the cost of these incentives is read through
the lease period with the straight line method d&dely of the income from the lease.

Income from the provision of services and real testaanagement are recorded in the period duringtwtiie
services are rendered, based on the stage of cionpdd the service in relation to total servicese provided.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basisguthe effective rate method. In case of impairmef
borrowings and receivables, interest income is geized using the rate which discounts future flofes
impairment purposes.

In the case where the Group acts as a represemtétiis the commission and not the gross revehat is
accounted for as revenue.

Dividends are accounted for as income when thd t@heceive payment is established.

2.23 Contracts for projects under construction

A construction contract is a contract specificalggotiated for the construction of an asset orrabtoation of
assets that are closely interrelated or interdegmanioh terms of their design, technology and fuorctor their
ultimate purpose or use.

Expenses associated with construction contracteeamgnized in the period in which they are incdrre

When the result of a construction contract canmotdiiably assessed, only the expenses realizedpmcted to
be collected are recognized as income from theraomnt

When the result of a construction contract candbiably assessed, such contract’'s income and ezpemil be
recognized during the term of contract as incona expenses, respectively. The Group uses the pgagmeiof
completion method to estimate the appropriate amofinincome and expense to be recognized for aaicert
period. The stage of completion is calculated basethe expenses which have been realized up tbalamce
sheet date compared to the total estimated expdosesch contract. If it is possible that the taast of the
contract will exceed total income, then anticipdtesses are directly recognized in profit and Bs&xpenses.

In order to determine the cost realized by the @nthe period, any expenses relating to futuregas&luded in

the contract are exempted and presented as wqukogress. The total realized cost and recognizefit grloss
for each contract is compared with sequential icestill the end of the financial year.
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Where the realized expenses plus the net profis (lesses) recognized exceed the sequential irsjothe
occurring difference is presented as a receivabla ftonstruction contract customers in the accétirade and
other receivables”. When the sequential invoiceseed the realized expenses plus the net profis (Esses)
recognized, the balance is presented as a lialbdlilsards construction contract customers in th@acc“Trade
and other payables”.

2.24  Service Concession Arrangements

With regard to Service Concession Arrangements &hean public sector body contracts with a privaierator
for the provision of services, the Group applieRIIE 12, provided that the following two conditioase met:

a) the grantor controls or determines which sessibe operator should provide to whom and at whiite, and

b) the grantor controls any other significant ietgs in the infrastructure upon completion of th@ocession
arrangement period.

In accordance with IFRIC 12, such infrastructures ot recognized as tangible assets of the opetaub as a
Financing Contribution of the State under finaneis$ets (financial asset model), and/ or as a GsiweRight
under intangible assets (intangible asset modepedding on the contractually agreed terms.

i) Guaranteed receipt from grantor (Financial Assabdel)

As an operator, the Group recognizes a financisgta®s the extent that it has an unconditional reattial right to
receive cash or another financial asset from theatgr for the construction services.

In the case of service concession contracts, tkeatqr has the unconditional right to receive dashe grantor
contractually guarantees to pay the operator:

a) specified or determinable amounts, or

b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts receifreth users of the public service and specific aiedminable
amounts provided for in the Service Concessionracht

The financial assets resulting from the applicatibh~RIC 12 are recorded in the Statement of FirarPosition
as “Guaranteed receipt from grantor” and recognaeghamortised cost based on the effective rathadealso
deducting any impairment losses. The effective itqual to the average weighted capital costhferoperator,
unless otherwise stipulated in the Concession aontr

ii) Concession Right (Intangible Asset Model)

As an operator, the Group recognises an intangitset to the extent that it receives a right (ke¢rio charge
users of the public service. The right to chargeraief a public service does not constitute ansamed right to
collect cash, since the amounts collected depenghether the public uses such service.

Intangible assets resulting from the applicatiomF&IC 12 are recorded under Intangible AssetfiinStatement

of Financial Position, analysed as a “ConcessioghRiand valued at acquisition cost less depremiati
Depreciation is carried out using the straight limethod during the Concession contract.
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iii) Guaranteed receipt from grantor and Concessiight (Mixed Model)

When the service concession contract anticipatas tthe operator will be remunerated for the comsion
services partly with a financial asset and partithwan intangible asset, the Group recognises eagiponent of
its remuneration separately, according to the aljGuaranteed receipt from grantor and ConcessightRi

The Group recognises and accounts for the reveandscosts associated with the construction or wlgga
services in accordance with 1AS 11 (note 2.23)leviévenues and costs associated with operatimicesrare
recognized and accounted for in accordance with18%note 2.22).

IFRIC 12, and the Mixed Model (Guaranteed receipinf grantor and Concession Right) in particulapligg to
MOREAS, a company that has undertaken the conatryabperation and exploitation of the Corinth-Talig-
Kalamata motorway for 30 years (until 2038). Thexstauction period of said project had been contiabt
extended (with the fault of the State) by 14.5 rhertb 16 November 2013, while the determinatioa d@drther
extension of the construction period by the indejeem engineer to 3 July 2014 is currently at tregetof
resolution, and construction is anticipated to taleee under the new construction schedule.

The concession right to the intangible assets someinly from MOREAS SA and ATTIKI ODOS SA. The

latter has undertaken the operation of the 65kng ldnsed motorway comprised of two sections, thefdita-
Stavros-Spata Free Avenue and the Western Ymitteside. Its operating period will be completed 220

2.25 Distribution of dividends

The distribution of dividends to equity holderstbé parent company is recognized as liability whestribution
is approved by the General Meeting of the sharedeld

2.26 Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at th&ivalue where there is a reasonable assuraatéhid grant
will be received and the Group will comply with atipulated conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferredracognized in the income statement to match thi@mthe
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants regarding the purchase of fisséta or the construction of projects are includddng term
liabilities as deferred state grants and are reizegnas income through profit and loss using thaigt line
method according to the asset expected useful life.

Grants received to finance Concession contractprasented in accordance with IFRIC 12 as a regludt the
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (note 2.24).
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2.27 Non-current assets available for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets alafl@bsale and stated at the lower of carrying amand fair
value less costs to sell if their carrying amountestimated to be recovered by the Group througiala
transaction rather than through their use.

2.28 Trade and other liabilities

Trade liabilities are usually obligations to makeyment for products or services obtained durindoperance of
typical commercial activity by suppliers. The acotsupayable are classified as short-term liabditiE the
payment is due within not more than one year. if tliey are classified as long-term liabilitiesadle liabilities
are recognized initially at fair value and are nuead subsequently at net book cost by the useecéffiective rate
method.

2.29 Reclassifications and rounding of items

The numbers contained in these financial statenteamis been rounded to thousand Euros. Possiblereliifes
that may occur are due to rounding.

The reclassifications and adjustments of fundgeagsented in note 41.

3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to several financial riskshsas market risks (macroeconomic conditions inGineek
market, changes to prices for the purchase of prgp@w materials, such as iron and cement, foreigchange
risk, interest rate risk, etc.), credit risk arglidity risk. Financial risks are associated with following financial
instruments: accounts receivable, cash and casivadeputs, accounts payable and other liabilities @bt
liabilities. The accounting principles referrecthe above financial instruments are presented ie [No

Risk management is monitored by the finance diwisiand more specifically by the central Financial
Management Division of the Group, and is determibgdlirectives, guidelines and rules approved leyBbard

of Directors with regard to rate risk, credit riske use of derivative and non-derivative instrutegand the
short-term investment of cash.

@) Market Risk

Market risk is related to the business sectorsgaudjraphical areas in which the Group operatescadtidely, the
Group is exposed to the risk resulting from a cleatggthe conditions prevailing in the domestic dmakign

construction sector, a change to raw material priaechange to the value of properties and iteléaess, along
with risks associated with the completion of prégein undertaken by joint ventures. The Group’satpents
are closely monitoring the trends in the individagrkets in which it operates and plan actionspf@mpt and
efficient adaptation to the individual markets’ neincumstances.
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(i) Macroeconomic conditions in Greece

The economic recession continued in Greece in 2048 has negatively affected the Company’s opemtion
(delayed concession projects, limited constructotivity in Greece, lack of resources to financev ojects,
higher cost to refinance existing loans, etc). Haave 2013 also saw a gradual improvement in thex@oic
climate in Greece due to better macroeconomic &ualfindicators of the Greek public finances thaitd the
achievement of primary surpluses. The above, combimith the recapitalization of Greek banks andrésart

of stalled road works implemented under concessanttracts in December 2013, have allowed more agtim
about future conditions in Greece.

In this backdrop, the Group continues to pursue ghrategy of geographic dispersion of operationd an
strengthens its international presence. Despitechiadlenges (mainly lack of support from internatib credit
institutions, etc), the Group undertakes projedisoad, particularly in the Balkans (e.g. FYROM, aita,
Bulgaria, Serbia, Croatia, etc) and in Qatar.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has been active in foreign countries,timas the Middle East and the Balkans (RomanialgBria,

Albania, etc.). With respect to its activities imetMiddle East, the Group is exposed to foreigrharge risk
relating mainly to the exchange rates of local encies (e.g. AED, QAR, RON, etc.) and the US Dolduro

exchange rate. It should be clarified that the arge rates of certain currencies (mainly local engies in
Middle East countries) are linked to the US DolRroceeds are made in local currency and in USaboknd
despite the fact that the larger portion of thet emsl expenses are made in the same currencyeigriagxchange
risk exists for the remaining part. Foreign exchlangk, where it is considered to be significand avorthy of

being hedged, will be hedged by the use of deriedirward contracts. These derivatives are pratettheir fair

values and are recognized as a receivable orititliab the financial statements.

Regarding activity in other foreign countries, liletlocal currency rates had been overvalued/deddbye5%

compared to the Euro at 31.12.2013, the Group'siegs before taxes would have been increased by ERSO

thousand or decreased by EUR 1,426 thousand, tesggcand the reserves available for sale wowddehbeen
decreased by EUR 3,007 thousand or increased by £ZBEB thousand, respectively, due to foreign emgha
losses/gains after translation of the assets|itialsi cash and financial instruments availablesiale.

(iii) Cash flow risk and risk arising from fair ua¢ change due to a change in interest rates

The Group holds significant interest-bearing assetsprising sight deposits, short-term bank depasiid bonds
of the European Investment Bank. The Group is eegbds risk from fluctuations of interest ratessang from
bank loans with floating rates. The Group is expose floating interest rates prevailing in the ne&rkwhich
affect both the financial position and the cashwvfloCost of debt may increase as a result of theaages thus
creating losses or it can decrease on the occwmragnexpected events. It should be noted thafiubguation in
interest rates in recent years has been causedryifoy the increase in spreads due to the ladiqaidity in the
Greek banking market and the estimated risk of IGoeenpanies, and to a lesser extent by the incrieakase
interest rates (e.g. Euribor).

As regards long-term borrowings, the Group’s Mamagyat systematically and constantly monitors interate
fluctuations and assesses the need to take relpeaitions to hedge risks, when and if necessaryhe context
of risk offsetting, Group companies may enter ias¢iswap contracts and other derivatives.

A significant part of the Group’s loans are signeith floating rates and the largest part of Groaans is in
Euros. As a consequence interest rate risk is pitynaderived from the fluctuations of Euro interasttes and
secondly from the interest rate fluctuations oreotturrencies in which bank loans exist (US DollsED, Qatari
riyal, etc).
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The Group constantly monitors interest rate tremgswell as the duration and nature of subsidiafieancing
needs. Decisions on loan terms as well as theiopléietween variable and fixed interest rate anesictered
separately on a case by case basis.

(iv) Price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk relating to thetfiation of the fair value of its financial assatsilable for sale
which can affect the financial statements, as selegains or losses from fair value adjustmentslwelrecorded

as an reserve under equity until these assetolt@isdesignated as impaired. It should be poiotgdhat, if the
closing price of ELDORADO GOLD on 31/12/2013 wasrgased (or decreased) by 5%, the reserves awilabl
for sale would be increased (or decreased, respégtby €3,2 million.

(b) Credit Risk

The Group has developed policies in order to enthaetransactions are conducted with customessfficient

credit rating. Due to the conditions prevailingtie market, credit line approval results from &tr procedure
that involves all senior management levels. Theu@roas been monitoring its debtors’ balances vargfally,

and where receivables with credit risk are idegtifithey are assessed in accordance with establxhieies and
procedures and an appropriate impairment provisidormed.

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and filaterizative contracts potentially involve credihk as well. In
such cases, the risk may arise from counterpaitiyréato fulfill their obligations towards the Grpuln order to
manage this credit risk, the Group sets limitshte degree of exposure for each financial institytivithin the
scope of the policies of the Board f Directors.

(c) Liquidity risk

Given the current crisis of the Greek State andGheek financial sector, the liquidity risk is haghand the
management of cash flows is urgent. To manageidhéality risk, the Group budgets and regularly ntors its
cash flows and ensures that cash on hand is alailalsluding the options of intra-company loansl amused
credit lines to meet its needs (e.g. financingrauotee letters, etc).

The long-term refinancing of the loans of AKTOR afiALOU TRADING SA was completed during the first
half, and the long-term refinancing of the loansghaf parent company ELLAKTOR SA (EUR 227.5 milliand
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA (EUR 170 million) was comptete December 2013.

Group liquidity is regularly monitored by the Mamagent. The table below presents an analysis détbep and
Company financial liability maturities as of 31 [@eaber 2013 and 2012 respectively:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES 31 December 2013

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 year Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 483.743 3,020 10,866 551 498,180
Financial leases 1,029 951 1,572 - 3,552
Financial derivatives 17,240 16,808 36,116 51,965 122,129
Borrowings 302,565 159,755 556,111 1,162,007 2,180,439
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31 December 2012
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 year Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 559,862 4,720 17,874 551 583,007
Financial leases 593 1,219 344 - 2,156
Financial derivatives 17,504 17,411 43,972 80,011 158,898
Borrowings 624,056 236,073 502,213 723,170 2,085,513
COMPANY FIGURES 31 December 2013

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 year Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 3,602 - 223 2,027 5,852
Borrowings 7,619 40,919 75,075 246,095 369,708

31 December 2012
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Total
Suppliers and other liabilities 1,956 - 866 2,822
Borrowings 97,118 91,475 77,709 266,302

The above amounts are presented in the contractualdiscounted cash flows and therefore are natalgnt to
the respective amounts shown in the financial states with respect to Supplier and other liab#itiEinancial
lease commitments, Financial derivatives, and Loans

The Trade and Other liabilities breakdown is exeli®f Advances from customers, Amounts due toausts
for contract work, and Social security and otheeta

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis of Group Borrowngs

A reasonable and possible interest rate changedyty five base points (0.25% increase/decreasajdiead to
a decrease / increase in profit before tax for 2@li3other variables being equal, by €2,053 thadsg012:
EUR 1,889 thousand). It should be noted that tbeeaientioned change in earnings before taxes ¢siledéd on
the floating rate loan balances at year end and doginclude the positive effect of interest ineofrom cash
deposits and cash equivalents.

At a parent company level, a reasonable and pessgilérest rate change by twenty five base poidi2506
increase/decrease) would lead to the decreasedaige in profit before tax for 2013, all other ghtes being
equal, by €561 thousand (2012: EUR 443 thousard}3hduld be noted that the aforementioned change in
earnings before taxes is calculated on the floatatg loan balances at year end and does not m¢halpositive
effect of interest income from cash deposits arsth @mjuivalents.

(d) Other risks — additional tax charges

In previous years, the Greek State imposed extienyl tax contributions that had a significant effen the
results of the Group and the Company. Pursuantate 4£093/2012, during the previous year a specigl \eas
imposed on the turnover of companies operatinghan production of electricity using RES (for the ipdr
1/7/2012-30/6/2014) which was charged to the Graupsults (Note 32) Given the current financialdibon of
the Greek State, additional tax measures may blemgnted, which could have a negative effect orfittacial
position of the Group.
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3.2 Cash management

Capital management is aiming in the safeguard ef ¢bntinuity of operations of Group companies, the
achievement of its developing plans along with @ooredit rating

To evaluate the Group’s creditworthiness, the Giobiet Debt should be evaluated (i.e. total lond) stmort-term
loans with banks less cash and cash equivaleras)ever excluding non-recourse debt and respectgé and
cash equivalents connected to the financing of seHinanced projects.

The Group’s net debt as of 31.12.2013 and 31.12.2@kpectively, is detailed in the following table

All amounts in EUR million. CONSOLIDATED FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Short term bank borrowings 248.0 552.8
Long-term bank borrowings 1,409.6 1,203.6
Total borrowings 1,657.5 1,756.5
Less: Non recourse debt 932.5 999.1
Subtotal of Corporate Debt (except non recoursésjleb 725.0 757.4
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts 370.2 244.1
Net Corporate Debt/Cash 354.8 513.2
Total Group Equity 1,150.4 1,253.7*
Total Capital 1,505.2 1,766.9
Gearing Ratio 0.236 0.290

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS T8pByee Benefits" (note 41).

Cash and cash equivalents &tdetermined as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Cash and cash equivalents 815,4 706,8
Plus:

Committed deposits 83,5 81,8

Time deposits over 3 months 43,9 1011

Bonds held to maturity 80,3 158,7
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents, committed deposits,d@pesits over 3

months and bonds held to maturity correspondimptorecourse

loans 652,9 804,3
Cash and cash equivalent? 370,2 244.1

The gearing ratio as of 31.12.2013 for the Groupaiulated at 23.6% (31.12.2012: at 29.0%). Thiforis
calculated as the quotient of net debt to totalleymgal capital (i.e. total equity plus net debt)aparent company
level, the total borrowings as of 31.12.2013 amedrib €264,9 million

(31.12.2012: £€251.3 million), representing longxidsorrowings of €264.9 million (31.12.2012: €16né@lion)
and short-term borrowings of €31.12.2012 millioBY£ million).

The Group’s cash on hand (including Committed diégjoas of 31.12.2013 stood at €898.9 million (212012:

788.7 million). Furthermore, receivables includendi deposits over 3 months standing at €43.9 million
(31.12.2012: €101.1 million). Moreover, the amouwfit €80.3 appears in financial assets held to nigturi
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(31.12.2012: €158.7 million). Finally, equity as &f.12.2013 stood at €1,150.4 million (31.12.2082,255,2
thousand).

3.3 Fair value determination

The financial assets measured at fair value alseobalance sheet date are classified under thewfiolyy levels, in
accordance with the method used for determininig fae value:

- Level 1: for assets traded in an active market amose fair value is determined by the market gwic
(unadjusted) of similar assets.

- Level 2: for assets whose fair value is deterchibg factors related to market data, either diye@trices) or
indirectly (prices derivatives).

- Level 3: for assets whose fair value is not daeteed by observations from the market, but is nyabdsed on
internal estimates.

The table below presents a comparison of the cagryalues of the Group's financial assets heldratrzed cost
and fair values:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Book value Fair value
Amounts in thousand euros 31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12
Financial Assets
Trade 406,948 459,365 406,948 459,365
Committed deposits 83,518 81,828 83,518 81,828
Cash and cash equivalents 815,352 706,835 815,352 706,835
Financial liabilities
Long & short-term loans 1,657,547 1,756,456 1,641,943 1,724,462
Trade payables 263,132 257,668 263,132 257,668

COMPANY FIGURES

Book value Fair value
Amounts in thousand euros 31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12
Financial Assets
Trade 2,463 2,126 2,463 2,126
Cash and cash equivalents 2,818 766 2,818 766
Financial liabilities
Long & short-term loans 264,855 251,314 263,782 250,177
Trade payables 68 370 68 370

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, cotachiteposits, customers and suppliers is clodeeio ¢arrying
values. The fair value of loans is determined tscaunting future cash flows and are included indl&vof the
fair value hierarchy.

The table below presents the Group’s financialtassed liabilities at fair value as at 31 Deceni@t3 and 31
December 2012. Note 22 lists the disclosures rgatid non-current assets held for sale and meastréair
value.
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in thousand euros

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit aoss|
Financial assets available for sale

Derivatives - Warrants

Financial liabilities

Derivatives as hedging instruments

Amounts in thousand euros

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit avss|
Financial assets available for sale

Financial liabilities

Derivatives as hedging instruments

31 December 2013

CLASSIFICATION

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
3 - - 3
71,909 - 5,091 77,000
3,601 - - 3,601
- 111,661 - 111,661

31 December 2012

CLASSIFICATION

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
3 - - 3
144,518 - 4,817 149,335
- 147,874 - 147,874

The table below presents the changes to Levelaéhdial assets for the fiscal year ended on 31 Deeei2013

and 31 December 2012:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Amounts in thousand euros

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

LEVEL 3 LEVEL 3
Financial Financial
assets assets
available for available for
sale TOTAL sale TOTAL
At year start 4,817 4,817 4,793 4,793
Additions for the year 775 775 23 23
(Impairment) (500) (500) - -
At year end 5.091 5.091 4,817 4,817

The fair value of financial assets traded on aatimey markets (e.g. derivatives, stocks, bondsyahfunds), is
determined on the basis of the published pricedlabla at the balance sheet date.An “active” mon&yrket
exists where there are readily available and relyutavised prices, which are published by the Istowarket,
money broker, sector, rating organization or suigerg organization. These financial tools are ideld in level
1. This level includes mainly the Group investmémtELDORADO GOLD (which acquired EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS LTD -EGU), which is listed on the ToronStock Exchange and has been classified as acfalan
asset available for sale.

The fair value of financial assets traded on activeney markets (e.g. derivatives traded outsideravative
market) are determined by measurement methods Ipaisedrily on available information on transactiarasried
out on active markets and using less the estinmsete by the economic entity. These financial taoésincluded
in level 2.
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Where measurement methods are not based on aeaiteoket information, the financial tools are intgd in
level 3.

The methods used by the Group for financial assetsurement include:
» Market prices or negotiators’ prices for simiéensets.

» The fair value of interest rate risk hedges, Whicdetermined as the current value of future ¢asts.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments of thenanagement

Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluatedare based on historic data and expectationBufiore
events, as considered reasonable under the ciranoest.

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Annual financial statements along with the accompannotes and reports may involve certain judgmertd
calculations that refer to future events regardipgrations, developments, and financial performasfcéhe
Company and the Group. Despite the fact that seshraptions and calculations are based on the bssthte
knowledge of the Company's and the Group's managemi¢h regard to current conditions and actiomg t
actual results may eventually differ from calcudag and assumptions taken into consideration imptbparation
of the Company's and the Group's annual finantaa¢ments.

Assessments and assumptions that involve imparitnbf causing future material adjustments toahsets’ and
liabilities’ book values:

(a) Estimates regarding the accounting conductaafstruction projects according to IAS 11 “Constiioat
Contracts”

(i) Realization of income from construction contracisdd on estimation of the percentage completion of
the project.

For the estimation of the percentage completiothefconstruction projects in progress according to
which the Group recognizes income from constructommtracts, the Management estimates the
expected expenses to be made until the completithregrojects.

(i)  Requests for compensation for additional work nitaelgond the contractual agreement.

The Group’s Management estimates the amount toebeived for additional work and recognizes
income based on the percentage of completion @sdert considers that the collection of this amoun
is probable.

(b) Provisions

(i) Potential provision for landscape restoration

In accordance with article 9 of Ministerial Decisid726/2003, companies operating wind farms
should remove the facilities and restore the laadsapon termination of operation of the Power tPlan

(i)  Income tax
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(i)

Estimates are required in determining the provis@mrincome taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determipatis uncertain. Where the final tax outcome oféhe
matters is different from the amounts that wergialty recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkmiowhich such determination is made.

Provisions for disputed cases

There are pending disputed cases relating to tbegsThe Management assesses the outcome of these
case and, where a negative outcome is possibleGithep forms the required provisions. Provisions,
where required, are calculated on the basis of dimeent value of the estimates made by the
management of the cost to be incurred for settlimgexpected liabilities as of the Balance Shett.da
The current value is based on a number of fachaisrequires the exercise of judgment.

(c)Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments not listedan active market is determined using valuation
methods which require using assumptions and judtgn@he Group makes assumptions based mostly
on current market conditions in the preparatiofirgncial statements.

(d) Estimate of useful life and residual value séets

Judgment is required to determine the useful lifd ¢he residual life of PPE and intangible assets
which are recognized either at acquisition or tgfobusiness combinations. The estimate of an asset’
useful life is a matter of judgment based on theupis experience with similar assets. The residual
value and useful life of an asset are revieweceastl annually, taking into account new facts amd th
prevailing market conditions.

(e) Post-employment benefits

The present value of the staff retirement bendfligation is based on a number of factors that are
determined using actuarial methods and assumptiunsh actuarial assumption includes the discount
rate used to calculate the cost of the benefit.

The Group determines the appropriate discountatatee end of each year. This is defined as the rat
that should be used to determine the present wafifature cash flows, which are expected to be
required to fulfill the staff retirement benefit ladation. In determining the appropriate discoueter

the Group uses the rate of long-term investmerdeym@rporate bonds whose maturity is close to that
of the relevant obligation.

Other important assumptions relating to the staffrement benefit obligation are partly based on
current market conditions. Further information ieydded in note 34.
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4.2 Considerable judgments of the Management on the afipation of the accounting
principles

Distinction between investments in property anctsssed by the Group.

The Group determines whether an asset is charaeteds investment property. In order to form tHewvamnt
assumption, the Group considers the extent to wilaicproperty generates cash flows, for the most part
independently of the rest of the assets owned byctimpany. Assets used by the Group generate tmash f
which are attributed not only to the properties &lsb to other assets used either in the produptiocedure or to
the purchasing procedure.

Impairment of tangible assets and investment pityper

Tangible assets and investment in property are gwnfor possible impairment when events or changed
conditions indicate that their book value may netrbcoverable. When the recoverable value is lems their
carrying value, investment properties are deprediaib the recoverable amount. The Group assesses, a
discretion, whether the indications for the impannof a tangible asset or investment propertysatestantial

and objective.
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5 Information by segment

As of 31 December 2013, the Group was mainly opeyah 6 business segments:

Concessions
Wind farms
Environment
Other activities

Construction & Quarries
Real estate development

The Chairman, the CEO and other executive membfettseoBoard of Directors are the persons respoaditn
making business decisions. Having determined thexating segments, the above persons review thenaite
financial reports to evaluate the Company and Grpepiormance and to make decisions regarding fund
allocation. The Board of Directors uses varioutedia to evaluate Group activities, which vary degirg on the
nature, the maturity and particularities of eaedfi with regard to any risks, current cash needsiaformation

about products and markets.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

The results for each segment for 2013 are as fellow

Total gross sales per segment
Intra-group sales

Net sales

Operating results

Share of profit/ (loss) from associates
Financial income

Financial (expenses)

Profit/ (Loss) before taxes

Income tax

Net profit/ (loss)

Note

33

33

35

The results for each segment for 2012* are asv@io

Total gross sales per segment
Intra-group sales

Net sales

Operating results

Share of profit/ (loss) from associates
Financial income

Financial (expenses)

Profit/ (Loss) before taxes

Income tax

Net profit/ (loss)

Note

33
33

35

Construction Real estate Wind
& Quarries  development  Concessions  farms  Environment Other Total
903,542 5,643 221,4437,113 89,625 1,564 1,258,933
(10,994) - (252) - (5,447) (415) (17,107)
892,548 5,643 221,194 37,113 84,179 1,149 1,261,82
26,426 (18,093) 65,848 12,669 ,aan (20,906) 75,988
(449) j153 (156) - (14) (819) (1,591)
6,487 249 26,673 129 2,861 12 36,411
(13,691) (2,225) (54,343)8,146) (2,007) (14,752) (95,164)
18,773 (20,223) 38,022 4,652 10,885 (36,465) 15,644
(8,431) (540) (48,847)  (1,096) (5)09 (615)  (64,624)
10,342 (20,763) (10,825) 3,556 5,790 (37,080) (48,980)
Construction Real estate Wind
& Quarries  development Concessions  farms  Environment Other Total
907,120 5,881 233,18 31,787 77,617 1,444 1,257,032
(16,880) - (313) - (6,606) (416) (24,215)
890,240 5,881 232,870 31,787 71,011 1,028 1,232,81
22,908 (2,421) 70,688 13,168 B, (5,245) 114,799
(315) 23 ,492 (1) 65 21 2,288
6,391 205 33,174 102 1,011 32 40,915
(16,232) (2,314) (57,395)(8,547) (1,661)  (13,769)  (99,917)
12,751 (4,506) 48,963 4,723 15,116 (18,962) 58,085
(7,193) (1,036) (11,421) (946) (3)85 (231) (25,680)
5,558 (5,542) 37,542 3,776 1632  (19,193) 32,405

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lT@pByee Benefits" (note 41).
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Other information per segment through profit areklas of 31 December 2013 is:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Construction & Real estate Wind
Note Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Depreciation of PPE 6 (20,865) (18) (2,308)  (12)44 (3,880) (958)  (39,471)
Depreciation of intangible assets 7 (504) 1) 188) (601) (2,442) - (69,695)
Depreciation of investment property 8 (281) (129 - - - (199) (1,709)
Impairment 31,32 (12,006) (15,961) (2,462) - (1)184 (14,449)  (46,062)
Amortization of grants 26 133 - 211 2,409 995 - 3,749
Other information per segment through profit argslas of 31 December 2012 is:
All amounts in EUR thousand.
Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Depreciation of PPE 6 (24,851) (30) (2,324)  (9)821 (4,077) (1,278)  (42,382)
Depreciation of intangible assets 7 (112) 1) @8o) (617) (2,444) - (63,253)
Depreciation of investment property 8 (161) (an93 - - - (111) (1,465)
Impairment 31,32 - (2,340) - - (1,144) - (3,484)
Amortization of grants 26 58 - 211 2,687 917 - 3,873
Inter-segment transfers and transactions are ehiete under the normal commercial terms and caomt
similar to those applicable for transactions witinalated third parties.
Assets and liabilities of segments as of 31 Decer2b&3 are as follows:
Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Assets (less Investments in associates) 1,309,087 145,075 2,031,581 282,986 177,357 66,796012,882
Investments in associates 11 6,312 - 44,999 3,539 4,299 90,730 149,879
Total Assets 1,315,399 145,075 2,076,580 286,526 181,656 157,52,162,762
Liabilities 919,998 41,064 1,522,079 209,534 80,142 239,568012,386
Investments in PPE, intangible assets, and
investment property 6,7,8 13,205 1,505 43,871 63,4 888 10 73,947
Prepayments for long-term leases 14 417 - 4,874 - - - 5,291
Assets and liabilities of segments as of 31 Decer2b&2* are as follows:
All amounts in EUR thousand.
Construction Real estate Wind
& Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Assets (less Investments in associates) 1,384,820 167,875 2,151,397 270,298 167,015 77,761219,166
Investments in associates 11 2,337 - 31,211 3,539 4,253 93,550 134,891
Total Assets 1,387,157 167,875 2,182,607 273,837 171,269 121,34,354,057
Liabilities 920,328 40,794 1,625,469 199,696 78,610 235,44%100,343
Investments in PPE, intangible assets, and
investment property 6,7,8 18,496 4,230 45,215 5,6 1,432 486 95,547
Prepayments for long-term leases 14 - - 11,355 1 - - 11,355
*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS 1@pByee Benefits" and reclassifications for comgami

purposes (note 41).
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The Group has also expanded its activities abrtagarticular, it operates abroad in the GUIf coigs, and
more specifically in the United Arab Emirates, Qatauwait, Oman and Jordan, as well as in othemuigs,
such as Germany, Italy, Cyprus, Romania, Bulgafihania, Serbia, Cameroon, Turkey, Croatia, Bosnia-
Herzegovina, FYROM and the United Kingdom. Totdésaare allocated per region as follows:

1-Jan to
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Greece 924,048 947,682
Gulf countries — Middle East 73,937 77,353
Other countries abroad 243,841 207,783
1,241,826 1,232,817

Non-current assets, save financial assets andrddfeax receivables, are allocated per region l&mAfs:

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Greece 1,565,718 1,644,127
Gulf countries — Middle East 3,128 11,500
Other countries abroad 77,934 80,401
1,646,779 1,736,029

Out of the sales made in Greece, the amount of £238housand for 2013 and the amount of €353 ,8288sand
for 2012 come from the Public Sector, including IRubtility Companies, Municipalities, etc.
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6 Property, plant and equipment

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Furniture

Land & Transportation ~ Mechanical PPE under
buildings equipment equipment & gther construction
Note equipment Total
1 January 2012 176,605 42,311 461,709 44,170 35,51 760,315
Foreign exchange differences (704) (121) (498) (373) 2) (1,697)
Disposal of subsidiaries/ reduction of % in JVs - (110) (434) (5) (517) (1,066)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 16 - 8,418 - 985 9,420
Additions except for leasing 1,096 7,582 9,294 0,2 29,244 48,415
Additions with leasing - - 2,400 - - 2,400
Disposals (1,265) (3,419) (12,751) (7,793) (1,514) (26,743)
Impairment 31 (1,144) - - - - (1,144)
Transfer to Investments in Property 8 (18,907) - - - - (18,907)
Reclassifications from PPE under construction 839 - 29,383 - (30,222) -
31 December 2012 156,536 46,243 497,521 37,199 4933, 770,993
1 January 2013 156,536 46,243 497,521 37,199 33,49 770,993
Foreign exchange differences (328) (142) (771) (362) (28) (1,630)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - 2 5 - - 6
Additions except for leasing 199 3,132 8,587 2,568 15,466 29,953
Additions with leasing - - 1,889 - - 1,889
Disposals (9,910) (2,801) (6,125) (7,337) (1,016) (27,190)
Impairment 31 (6,033) - - - - (6,033)
Transfer to Investments in Property 8 (9,902) - R R R (9,902)
Reclassifications from PPE under construction 7,583 R 23,521 R (31,105) R
31 December 2013 138,144 46,434 524,628 32,069 8116, 758,086
Accumulated Depreciation
1 January 2012 (22,262) (29,321) (200,884) (36,262 - (288,729)
Foreign exchange differences 166 103 442 311 - 1,022
Depreciation for the year 31 (4,937) (4,808) (29,705) (2,932) - (42,382)
Transfer to Investments in Property 8 1,975 - - - 1,975
Disposals 499 2,992 10,033 7,218 - 20,742
31 December 2012 (24,559) (31,034) (220,114) (82)6 - (307,371)
1 January 2013 (24,559) (31,034) (220,114) (31,664 - (307,371)
Foreign exchange differences 117 106 662 276 - 1,162
Depreciation for the year 31 (4,199) (4,990) (28,290) (1,992) - (39,471)
Transfer to Investments in Property 8 967 - - - - 967
Disposals 5,086 2,585 3,471 5,843 - 16,985
31 December 2013 (22,588) (33,333) (244,271) (37)5 - (327,729)
Net book value as of 31 December 2012 131,978 15,2 277,407 5,535 33,493 463,622
Net book value as of 31 December 2013 115,557 03,1 280,357 4,532 16,811 430,357
Leased assets included in above data under firldeasng:
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Transportation Mechanical Transportation ~ Mechanical

equipment equipment Total equipment equipment Total
Cost — Capitalised financial leases 250 8,315 8,56 250 6,426 6,676
Accumulated Depreciation (241) (3,377) (3,618) 31 (2,696) (2,927)
Net book value 9 4,938 4,947 19 3,730 3,749
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COMPANY FIGURES

Furniture
Land & Transportation ~ Mechanical & other
Note buildings equipment equipment equipment Total
1 January 2012 3,217 39 82 1,805 5,143
Additions except for leasing - - - 2 2
Disposals - (34) - - (34)
31 December 2012 3,217 5 82 1,806 5,111
1 January 2013 3,217 5 82 1,806 5,111
Additions except for leasing - - - 3 3
Disposals - (5) - - (5)
Impairment 31 (473) - - - (473)
31 December 2013 2,744 - 82 1,809 4,636
Accumulated Depreciation
1 January 2012 (228) (33) (58) (1,600) (1,919)
Depreciation for the year 31 (58) 1) @) (120) (186)
Disposals - 29 - - 29
31 December 2012 (286) (5) (65) (1,721) (2,076)
1 January 2013 (286) 5) (65) (1,721) (2,076)
Depreciation for the year 31 (58) - 4 (40) (102)
Disposals - 5 - - 5
31 December 2013 (344) - (69) (1,760) (2,174)
Net book value as of 31 December 2012 2,931 - 18 6 8 3,034
Net book value as of 31 December 2013 2,400 - 13 9 4 2,462

The loss of tangible asset impairment which theu@rpresented in 2013 amounts to 6,033 thousandaipG
level and 473 thousand at company level, and pertai the Group’s office building on 25 Ermou StrieeN.
Kifissia. The total impairment calculated for thigilding is EUR 7,484 thousand.

The difference with regard to the above amountsREW51 thousand for the Group and EUR 7,011 thwlifar
the company, is incorporated into the amount ofinkestment property impairment of note 8.

The recoverable amount of the above fixed asset,determined by using the direct capitalizationhodt

The exit yield rate of the period that was used ®&96. If it was 1% higher, the Group would recagni
additional impairment loss of EUR 3,245 for 2013.

No liens exist on fixed assets other than mortgagea parent company property on 25 Ermou Streetiofin
collateral of subsidiary ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMDS S.A., at location “Dilinata” of the Kefalonia
Prefecture.
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7 Intangible assets

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Software Concession  Goodwill User Other Total
right license

Cost
1 January 2012 4,339 1,246,893 44,608 21,724 2,548 1,320,112
Foreign exchange differences (21) - (21)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - 5,852 5,852
Additions 230 42,682 - 68 42,980
Disposals (244) - - - (244)
31 December 2012 4,303 1,289,575 44,608 27,576 62,611,368,678
1 January 2013 4,303 1,289,575 44,608 27,576 2,616 1,368,678
Foreign exchange differences (23) 1) - (24)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - - 2,410 2,410
Additions 295 42,196 - - 2 42,494
Disposals (68) - (765) - (69) (903)
Impairment - - (523) (523)
31 December 2013 4,507 1,331,772 43,318 29,986 P?,541,412,131
Accumulated Depreciation
1 January 2012 (4,152) (221,343) (359) (1,135) 26289)
Foreign exchange differences 14 - - - 14
Depreciation for the year (226) (62,416) (601) 0)(1 (63,253)
Disposals 235 - - 235
31 December 2012 (4,129) (283,758) (960)  (1,146)(289,993)
1 January 2013 (4,129) (283,758) (960)  (1,146) 8¢D93)
Foreign exchange differences 19 - - - 19
Depreciation for the year (205) (68,477) (1,001) (13) (69,695)
Disposals 63 - - 63
31 December 2013 (4,251) (352,235) (1,961)  (1)159 (359,606)
Net book value as of 31 December 2012 175 1,005,817 44,608 26,616 1,470 1,078,685
Net book value as of 31 December 2013 256 979,536 3,348 28,025 1,390 1,052,525

The increase of €2,410 thousand in the Licenseués td the consolidation of ANTOS HOLDINGS LTD its
subsidiary ILIOSAR ANDRAVIDAS SA which were consdéited in Q1 2013 by BIOSAR PV PROJECT
MANAGEMENT LTD with a participation cost of €2,20RBousand.

The impairment of goodwil by €523 thousand relate®OAL SA, a subsidiary of HELECTOR SA, which was
first consolidated in the 1st half of 2011 using thll method.

The amount of 765 thousand on the line of SalesBAfffs pertains to the goodwill created during the
consolidation of company EFA S.A. (which was rendrmreePANTECHNIKI S.A.), as segment of which split o
and was then sold during the 4th quarter of 20b8(8a).

Additions to Concession Arrangements for the curpamiod relating mostly to MOREAS SA include Addits
from capitalised interest of €15,286 thousand.122012: EUR 15,591 thousand).

The parent Company has no Intangible assets.
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Goodwill impairment test

Goodwill concerns mainly the construction and giearsegment, which has been defined as the casnagenm
unit for the impairment test carried out. This gatidamounts to €41.8 million.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating wag determined based on the value-in-use methbd. T
value-in-use was calculated by using cash flow dasés that were based on the budget approved by
Management, three years of provisions, which wieea projected into perpetuity.

The main assumptions used by Management in thailletiin of the cash flow forecasts in the contelxtha
annual goodwill impairment test, are the following:
e The budgetary margins of the operating profit weakeulated based on the actual historic data op#st
years, adjusted in order to take into account thigipated changes in profitability;

e With regard to the working capital, Management wasrely based on historical data;
e For the projection of cash flows into perpetuitygesio growth rate was used for the specific CGU;

e The discount rate (net of tax) for the CGU was 11%.

Based on the results of the impairment test on 8tebhber 2013, the recoverable amount of the abasie-c
generating unit is greater than the book valueand consequence there were no impairment lossektion to
the above goodwill.

Impairment testing of wind farm licenses

The User licenses pertain to the photovoltaic seeod mainly wind farms. The intangible assetshef latter
amount to EUR19.4 million.

The recoverable amounts of the wind farm licensexewetermined using the value-in-use method. Bheevin-
use was calculated by using cash flow forecastswbee based on the budget approved by Managementha
forecasts up to the end of the useful life of eaxthngible asset, according to the relevant cohtvath the
competent authority.

The assumptions used by Management in the calonlafti the cash flow forecasts in the context of dhaual
impairment test for the value of intangible assats,the following:

e Discount rate (net of tax) from 10.4% to 12.2%

e Forecast sales: The rate of change of the saléalpacoincides with the increase of the Consuece
Index (as arises from sources such as IMF/ElU)ceoedance with the energy sale contracts in each
case.

e Budgetary profit margins: The budgetary operatirgfipmargins and EBITDA were calculated based on
the actual historical data of the past years, &gjusn order to take into account the extraordinary
contributions for 2014/2015 and decreased by thanter@ance costs for the licenses related to new
farms.

e With regard to the working capital, Management ematirely based on historical data.

The main assumptions used are consistent with arignt external information sources as commentexbowe.
Based on the results of the impairment test on 8dember 2013, the recoverable amount of the abawe farm

licenses appears to be greater than the book aldeas a consequence there were no impairmentslasse
relation to the above intangible assets.
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Concession rights impairment test

The concession rights pertain mostly to usage sigélated to highway concessions and specificalypmganies
ATTIKI ODOS S.A. and MOREAS S.A. These intangiblssats amount to EUR 520 million and EUR 423
million respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the above intangibletassere determined using the value-in-use metfibd.
value-in-use was calculated by using cash flowdasés based on Management’s financial models, tnaibend
of the useful life of each intangible asset.

The basic assumptions taken into consideratiortdtoulating the value-in-use of each intangibleegssere the
following:

ATTIKI ODOS SA

e The average annual cash flow increase rate fo2@hid-2025 period amounts to approximately 3.8%.

e The discount rate for the specific intangible as&et 11.1%

MOREAS SA

e The average annual sales increase rate for the-20@% period (i.e. after the construction pericgl) i
approximately 2.2%.

e The estimated operating profit margin was basedata arising from the financial model.

e With regard to the working capital, Management wasrely based on historical data.

e The discount rate for the specific intangible assas based on the average weighted capital cost and
amounted to 6.6%.

Based on the results of the impairment test on 8teimber 2013, the recoverable amount of each iiiang
assets appears to be greater than the book valuasam consequence there were no impairment losselgation
to the above intangible assets.
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8 Investment property

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Cost

1 January 2012

Foreign exchange differences
Additions

Transfer from PPE
Impairment

31 December 2012

1 January 2013
Foreign exchange differences
Additions

(Transfer to Non-current assets held for sale)
Transfer from PPE

Impairment

31 December 2013

Accumulated Depreciation

1 January 2012

Foreign exchange differences
Depreciation for the year
Transfer from PPE

31 December 2012

1 January 2013

Foreign exchange differences

Depreciation for the year

Transfer to Non-current assets held for sale
Transfer from PPE

31 December 2013

Net book value as of 31 December 2012

Net book value as of 31 December 2013

For FY 2012:

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES
158,138 63,433
(502) -
4,152
18,907
(2,340) -
178,355 63,433
178,355 63,433
178 -
1,501 -
(6,934) -
9,902 -
(35,883) (13,976)
146,763 49,457
(3,866) (5,586)
6 -
(1,465) (969)
(1,975) -
(7,300) (6,555)
(7,300) (6,555)
3 -
(1,709) (969)
2,417 -
(967) -
(7,556) (7,524)
171,055 56,879
139,206 41,934

The additions realized by the Group during the disgear amounted to €4,152 thousand, of which
€3,601 thousand pertained to the construction ef‘@ommercial Park” of subsidiary YIALOU EMPORIKI &
TOURISTIKI SA. The Transfer from PPE of €18,907 ukand (and the corresponding depreciation of €1,975
thousand) pertains to the building on Kavallierafty Nea Kifissia, which was leased in 2012 to canips

outside the Group.

The impairment of €2,340 thousand corresponds fmirment of €1,800 thousand for a property of PROFI
CONSTRUCT Srl in the area of Unirii, Bucharest, afi€540 thousand of SC CLH ESTATE SRL.

For FY 2013:

The income from rents for FY 2013 amount for the@rto EUR 5.592 thousand (2012: EUR 4,895 thoysand
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The transfer to Non-current assets held for saf@ajmeto the building of Kavallieratou Street in dNKifissia, for
which there is a preliminary sale agreement dafed232103, while the sale was completed in the duarter of
2014. According to IFRS 5, the building is presdras held for sale (note 22) and is measured avéfie less
sale costs, which was lower of its book value. T&ie value of the building was based on the pri€ghe
preliminary sale agreement. The impairment losSraup level of EUR 12,006 thousand, has been reésedrin
the Income Statement for the period, in line Otheerating income/expenses. This property is follbue the
Constructions & Quarries segment of the group.

Impairment Test

Due to the decreasing trend in property values@Gtmip proceeded with an impairment test of thestwments in

properties.

The remaining amount of the impairment which is ERBR877 thousand, comes from companies:
e The parent company which was impaired by EUR 8thtb6sand.

GYALOU EMPORIKI SA euro 8,635 thousand
KANTZA EMPORIKI SA euro 3,046 thousand
PMS SA euro 500 thousand
REDS SA euro 2,700 thousand
PMS SA euro 500 thousand
PROFIT CONSTRUCT SRL euro 440 thousand
SC CLH ESTATE SRL euro 140 thousand

The fair values and the valuation techniques usethgir determination are presented in the follgyiable:

Country Sector Property Fair Value Valuation Technique Value determination Range of value
Category (in data (in euros or %)
thousands of
EUR)
Greece Other Office 2,436 | Real estate market method, Discount rate/capital exit 12% / 8.25%-
Buildings discounted cash flow approach | yield at end of period/ 9.50% / 750
and income capitalization metho{ Price sq.m.
Greece Other Land area 3,921 | Real estate market method Price sq.m. 1350-1450
Greece Other Office 7,361 | Discounted cash flow approach Discount rafstal exit 11.5% / 95%
Buildings yield at end of period/
Price sq.m.
Greece Real estate Land areas 10,614 | Real estate market method Price sq.m. 12-700
development
Greece Real estate Building 2,168 | Real estate market method and | Price sq.m. 290-300
development development method
Greece Real estate Land area 48,737 | Real estate market method Price sq.m. 15-383
development Residual replacement cost
method
Greece Real estate Commercial 56,751 | Discounted cash flow approach,| Discount rate/capital exit | 12.91% / 9% /
development park real estate market method and | yield at end of period/ 5-15
development method Price sq.m.
Romania Real estate Land areas 15,920 | Real estate market method Price sq.m. 340-835
development
Total 147,907

The fair value was determined by an independerdreat certified appraiser, member of the body ofifted
appraisers. The determination of the fair valuglassified at level 3 of the determination of feues.
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9

Group Participations

9.a The companies of the Group, consolidated wmighfall consolidation method, are as follows:

PARENT %

SIN | comPANY REGISTERED | piRecT | INDIRECT | TOTAL UNAUDITED

1 | AIFORIKI DODEKANISOU SA GREECE 94.44 94.44 202013*

2 | AIFORIKI KOUNOU SA GREECE 92.42 92.4p 2010-201B
3 | EOLIKA PARKA MALEA SA GREECE 4861 48.61 201023+

4 | AEOLIKI KANDILIOU SA GREECE 86.00 86.00 2010-28*

5 | EOLIKI KARPASTONIOU SA GREECE 43.8¢ 43.86 202013

6 | EOLIKIMOLAON LAKONIAS SA GREECE 86.00 86.0 20-2013*

7 | EOLIKI OLYMPOU EVIAS SA GREECE 86.00 86.0D 202013+

8 | EOLIKI PARNONOS SA GREECE 68.8 68.40 2010-2013
9 | EOLOS MAKEDONIAS SA GREECE 86.00 86.0 2010-201
10 | ALPHA EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIA S.A. GREECE 86.00 86.00 2010-20134
11 | AKTOR SA GREECE 100.00 100.0p 2010-2013*
12 | AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA GREECE 100.00 100}00 Z2aTB*
13 | AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA — ARCHITECH SA GREECE am, 70,47 2010-2013
14 | AKTOR FM SA GREECE 65.00 65.0( 2010-2013*
15 QSL%T(STLJOMN#Z({;’;"S?L%@NQE%':};"K' S-A-D. GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2013
16 | ANDROMACHI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2013*
17 | ANEMOS ALKYONIS SA GREECE 49.04 49.0p 2010-261
18 | ANEMOS ATALANTIS SA GREECE 86.0( 86.0p 2010120

19 | APOTEFROTIRAS SA GREECE 66.11 66.11 2010-2013*
20 | ATTIKA DIODIA SA GREECE 59.27 59.21 2010-2013*
21 | ATTIKES DIADROMES SA GREECE 47.4p 4742 201112*
22 | ATTIKI ODOS SA GREECE 59.25 59.24 2010-2013*
23 | VEAL sA GREECE 47.22 47.24 2010-2013*
24 | VIOTIKOS ANEMOS SA GREECE 86.00 86.0 2010-201
25 | YIALOU ANAPTYXIAKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.04 2012013+
26 | YIALOU EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA GREECE 55.44 B46 2010-2013*
27 | PPC RENEWABLES — ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI SA GREECE 43.86 43.86 2010-2013
28 | DIETHNIS ALKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2011-2015*
29 | DOAL sA GREECE 94.44 94.44 2010-2013*
30 | ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 100.00 100.0 096-2013*
31 | HELLENIC QUARRIES SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 20043
32 | GREEK NURSERIES SA GREECE 50.00 500 2018201
33 | HELLENIC ENERGY & DEVELOPMENT SA GREECE 96.5 96.56 2010-20134
34 | HED - RENEWABLES GREECE 86.00 86.0( 2010-2013*
35 | ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS S.A. GREECE 86.00 86.00 2010-20131
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PARENT %
SIN | coMPANY REGISTERED | DIRECT | INDIRECT | TOTAL UNAUDITED.

36 | ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA & CO GREECE B14 85.14 2010-2011
37 | ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-20131
38 | HELECTOR SA GREECE 80.00 14.44 94.44 2000-201B*
39 | HELEKTOR CONSTRUCTIONS SA GREECE 94.44 9aha  01@2013*
40 | ILIOSAR SA GREECE 100.00 100.0p 2010-2013*
41 | ILIOSAR ANDRAVIDAS SA GREECE 100.0( 100.00 2013*
42 | KANTZA SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2018*
43 | KANTZA EMPORIKI SA GREECE 55.46 55.46 2010-201
44 | KASTOR SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2013*
45 | JVELTECH ANEMOS SA —TH. SIETIS GREECE 86.00 6.0 2010-2013*
46 | JV ELTECH ENERGIAKI - ELECTROMECH GREECE 100.4 100.00 2010-2013
47 | JVHELECTOR SA-LANDTEK LTD GREECE 70.88 70.43 2013
48 | IV ITHAKI 1 ELTECH ANEMOS SA- ENECO LTD GREECE 68.80 68.80 2010-2013f
49 | JIVITHAKI 2 ELTECH ANEMOS SA- ENECO LTD GREECE 68.80 68.80 2010-2013F
50 | JVHELECTOR - CYBARCO CYPRUS 4.4 94.44 20013
51 | LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2015*
52 | LMN SA GREECE 100.00 100.0p 2010-2013*
53 | MOREAS SA GREECE 7167 7161 2010-2013*
54 | MOREAS SEA SA GREECE 86.67 86.61 2010-2013*
55 | NEMO MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 100.0( 100.0p 0013+
56 | ROAD TELECOMMUNICATIONS SA GREECE 100.0p 100. 2010-2013*
57 | OLKAS SA GREECE 100.00 100.0p 2011-2013*
58 | P&P PARKING SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2015*
59 | PANTECHNIKI SA (formerly EFA TECHNIKI SA) GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2013
0| PANTECHNIKI SA -LAWDA TECHNIKI SA ~DEPA CREECE 100,00 100.0b o020l
61 | PLO-KAT SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2013*
62 | POUNENTIS ENERGY SA GREECE 43.40 43.00 20102
63 | STATHMOI PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.0 1000 01D-2013*
64 | TOMISA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2008-2015*
65 | AECO HOLDING LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2008-2013
66 | AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100.00 100.04 2002013
67 | AKTOR CONCESSIONS (CYPRUS) LIMITED CYPRUS 100. 100.00 2011-2011
68 | AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS 000 100.00 2003-201
69 | AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.00 022013
70 | AKTOR D.0.0. BEOGRAD SERBIA 100.0p 100.40 i
71 | AKTOR D.0.0. SARAJEVO e A 100.00 100.00 ]
72 | AKTOR KUWAIT WLL KUWAIT 100.00 100.00 2008-2013
73 | AKTOR QATAR WLL QATAR 100.00 100.00 2011-2018
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B

PARENT %
SIN | coMPANY REGISTERED | DIRECT | INDIRECT | TOTAL UNAUDITED.
74 | AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD CYPRUS 100.40 00 2009-2013
75 | AKTOR SUDAN LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2011-201
76 | AKTOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION LLC UAE 70.04 T -
77 | AL AHMADIAH AKTOR LLC UAE 100.00 100.00 -
78 | ANTOS HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.0p 100.40

79 | BAQTOR MINING CO LTD SUDAN 90.0q 90.0

80 | BIOSAR AMERICA INC USA 100.00 100.04

81 | BIOSAR ENERGY (UK) LTD oNTED 100.00 100.00 ]
82 | BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.0p 100.40 20113
83 | BIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD CYPRUS 1000 100.00 2013
84 | BURG MACHINARY BULGARIA 100.00 100.00 2008-201
85 | CAISSON SA GREECE 85.00 85.0 2010-2011
86 | COPRI-AKTOR ALBANIA 100.00 100.00 2013
87 | CORREA HOLDING LTD CYPRUS 55.46 55.46 2007-20)
88 | DINTORNI ESTABLISHMENT LTD CYPRUS 100.0 1004 2011-2013
89 | DUBAI FUJAIRAH FREEWAY JV UAE 100.04 100.0p

90 | ELLAKTOR VENTURES LTD CYPRUS 98.6 98,61 202013
91 | GENERAL GULF SPC BAHRAIN 100.00 100.00 2006-201
92 | GULF MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.04 1000 2008-2013
93 | HELECTOR BULGARIA LTD BULGARIA 94.44 94.44 2012013
94 | HELECTOR CYPRUS LTD CYPRUS 94.44 94.44 20082
95 | HELECTOR GERMANY GMBH GERMANY 94.44 94.44 202013
96 | HERHOF GMBH GERMANY 94.44 94.44 2005-201
97 | HERHOF RECYCLING CENTER OSNABRUCK GMBH ~ GERMANY 94.44 94.44 2006-201
98 | HERHOF-VERWALTUNGS GERMANY 94.44 94.4h 2006120
99 | INSCUT BUCURESTI SA ROMANIA 100.00 100.0p 199013
100 | JEBEL ALI SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT JV UAE 1000 100.00 -
101 | KARTEREDA HOLDING LTD CYPRUS 55.44 55.45 200613
102 | K.G.E GREEN ENERGY LTD CYPRUS 94.44 9444 2@D13
103 | LEVASHOVO WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT LLQ RUSSIA 08.61 98.61 -
104 | MILLENNIUM ™ CONSTRUCTION ~EQUIPMENT & UAE 100,00 100.00

105 | NEASACO ENTERPRISES LTD CYPRUS 94.44 94144 120013
106 | PMS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES SA GREECE 455 55.46 2010-20131
107 | PROFIT CONSTRUCT SRL ROMANIA 55.46 55.46 203
108 | PROVAS (S8 - PROJECT  MANAGEMENT  Greece 65.00 65.0( 2010-2011
109 | REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA GREECE 55.46 55.46 2010-20134
110 | SC AKTOROM SRL ROMANIA 100.00 100.00 2002-201
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PARENT %

REGISTERED UNAUDITED
S/IN | COMPANY OFFICE DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL YEARS
111 | SC CLH ESTATE SRL ROMANIA 55.46 55.46 2006-201
112 | SOLAR OLIVE SA GREECE 100.00 100.00 2010-2018*
113 | STARTMART LMT CYPRUS 100.00 100.0 2006-2013
114 | SVENON INVESTMENTS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.00 002-2013
115 | VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 100.00 100.0p 20@843
116 | YLECTOR DOOEL SKOPJE FYROM 94.44 94.44 20002

* The Group companies which are domiciled in Greate mandatorily audited by audit firms and haveimed a tax compliance certificate
for financial years 2011 & 2012, are marked with amterisk (*). In accordance with the applicable, ldinancial year 2012 should be
considered as the definitive year for tax audippges eighteen months after the “Tax CompliancefRepas been submitted to the Ministry
of Finance. Based on decision POL 1236/18.10.201BeoMinistry of Finance, fiscal year 2011 will kensidered final on 30 April 2014
(Note 39).

The following subsidiaries were included for thesfitime in the consolidated financial statemerdgsoé
31.12.2013, but had not been included 30.09.24 8)ey were established in Q4 2013:

» AKTOR D.O.O. BEOGRAD, based in Serbia. The compamg established by subsidiary AKTOR S.A,, its
main activity being the construction of highwaysl énhas a share capital of euro 560 thousand.

» BIOSAR ENERGY (UK) LIMITED, based in the United Kgdom. The company was established by
subsidiary BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD. The company opesaite photovoltaic projects.

Apart from the above companies, the financial statets for the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2@1@,not
include the following subsidiaries:

» ANTOS HOLDINGS LTD (Acquisition - 1st consolidatiom the interim summary financial report of
31.03.2013)

» ILIOSAR ANDRAVIDAS SA (Acquisition - 1st consolidain in the interim summary financial report of
31.03.2013)

» BIOSAR AMERICA Inc (Incorporation - 1st consolidati in the interim summary financial report of
30.06.2013)

» JIV HELEKTOR S.A. - LANDTEK LTD (Incorporation - 1onsolidation in the interim summary financial
report of 30.09.2013).

In relation to the consolidated financial staterseot the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2012, fillewing
companies are no longer consolidated:

» subsidiary LAMDA TECHNIKI SA —PANTECHNIKI SA & ASSQIATES, due to its dissolution in Q1 2013
with no significant effect on the Group.

» subsidiary GAS COMPANY OF THE SUBURBS SA, due t® dlissolution in Q2 2013 with no significant
effect on the Group.

» subsidiary AKTOR INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LTD, due tositabsorption in Q2 2013 by GULF
MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD.

In Q4 2013 company EFA CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS, NAPMURGAS APPLICATIONS AND
COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES SA was sold, which originateffom the split of segment “NATURAL GAS
APPLICATIONS” of subsidiary PANTECHNIKI SA (formeEFA TECHNIKI SA). The result from the sale
amounts at Group level at a loss of 871 thousand.
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9.b The companies of the Group consolidated usingthgty method are as follows:

PARENT %
SIN | COMPANY RES::SFTIEEED DIRECT | INDIRECT | TOTAL UNAUEI';ERDS
1 | ATHENS CAR PARK SA GREECE 20.1f 20.17 2007241
2 | ANEMODOMIKI SA GREECE 43.00 43.0 2010-2013
3 | ASTERION SA GREECE 50.00 50.0 2010-2013
4 | AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. GREECE 20.0 20.00 2011120
5 | BEPE KERATEAS SA GREECE 35.00 35.00 2010-2Q13
6 | GEFYRASA GREECE 22.02 22.01 2008-2013*
7 | GEFYRA LITOURGIA SA GREECE 23.11 23.1p 2010-201,
8 | PROJECT DYNAMIC CONSTRUCTION GREECE 30.52 3062  2010-2013
9 | ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA GREECE 40.0 40.00 202013
10 | ENERMEL SA GREECE 46.45 46.45 2011-2013*
11 | TOMIEDL ENTERPRISES LTD GREECE 47.32 47.22 122013
12 | KINIGOS SA GREECE 50.00 50.0 2012-2013
13 | PEIRASA GREECE 50.00 50.0 2010-2013
14 | TERNA — PANTECHNIKI LTD GREECE 50.0 50.00 00013
15 | CHELIDONA SA GREECE 50.00 50.0 1998-2013
16 | AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD CYPRUS 50.04 50.0p 201013
17 | ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. GREECE 30.00 30/00  01(®2013*
18 | ELPEDISON POWER SA GREECE 21.95 2195 2008201
19 | GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC USA 50.0 50.00 -
20 | METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK GREECE 22,91 22.91 01p-2013
21 | POLISPARK SA GREECE 25.04 25.04 2010-2013
22 | SALONICA PARK SA GREECE 24.7 24.70 2010-20113
23 | SMYRNIPARK SA GREECE 20.0 20.00 2010-20113

* The Group companies which are domiciled in Greate mandatorily audited by audit firms and haveimed a tax compliance certificate
for financial years 2011 & 2012, are marked with amterisk (*). In accordance with the applicable, ldinancial year 2012 should be
considered as the definitive year for tax audippses eighteen months after the “Tax CompliancefRepas been submitted to the Ministry
of Finance. Based on decision POL 1236/18.10.201BeoMinistry of Finance, fiscal year 2011 will ksensidered final on 30 April 2014
(Note 39).

In the consolidated financial statements of theviptes year, i.e. 31.12.2012, KINIGOS S.A. had netm
included, which was consolidated for the first timeQ1 2013 and was acquired by 50% by subsidid@IAR
HOLDINGS LTD with a price of 4,000 thousand eurds. addition, GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC, with
registered offices in the USA, was not includedisTbompany was incorporated in Q2 2013 by BIOSAR
AMERICA Inc., which participates in its share capitvith 50%, with a participation cost of €443 tsaund.

During the current quarter, through affiliate GRBEROD BIOSAR LLC, wholly-owned subsidiary establishe
in Panama with trade name GREENWOOD BIOSAR PANANNCIwas consolidated.

The company operates in photovoltaic projects.

The result in row Profit/ (loss) from associatesrse the Income Statement, corresponding to lofese2013 to
the amount of €1,591 thousand, mainly relatesgsds of ELPEDISON S.A. and GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC.
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The respective amount for 2012 corresponding tditpod €2,288 thousand mainly arises from the coniea
GEFYRA SA, AEGEAN MOTORWAY SA and ATHENS RESORT SANO SA.

9.c The companies consolidated using the propaticonsolidation are shown in the following table:

PARENT %
REGISTERED UNAUDITED
S/IN | COMPANY OFEICE DIRECT | INDIRECT TOTAL YEARS
1 HELECTOR SA - ENVITEC SA Partnership GREECE 050) 50.00 2010-2013
2 THERMAIKI ODOS S.A. GREECE 50.0 50.00 2010-201
3 THERMAIKES DIADROMES SA GREECE 50.00 50.90 Pe2013*
4 STRAKTOR SA GREECE 50.0 50.00 2010-2013
5 AECO DEVELOPMENT LLC OMAN 50.00 50.0 2009-2013
6 CARPATII AUTOSTRADA SA ROMANIA 50.00 50.00 2002013
7 3G SA GREECE 50.00] 50.0 2010-2013*

* The Group companies which are domiciled in Greate mandatorily audited by audit firms and haveimed a tax compliance certificate
for financial years 2011 & 2012, are marked with amterisk (*). In accordance with the applicable, ldinancial year 2012 should be
considered as the definitive year for tax audippges eighteen months after the “Tax CompliancefRepas been submitted to the Ministry
of Finance. Based on decision POL 1236/18.10.201BeoMinistry of Finance, fiscal year 2011 will lbensidered final on 30 April 2014
(Note 39).

Here follows a detailed table with the joint vemsiconsolidated using the proportional method. ddrapany
only holds an indirect stake in said joint ventwigsits subsidiaries.

In this table, in the columns under "First time Galidation", 1 indicates those Joint Ventures ctidated for the
first time during the current period as newly ebshied, while they had not been incorporated inithenediately
previous period, i.e. as of 30.09.2013 (index IRB) in the respective period of the previous yeéar, as of
31.12.2012 (index RPY).

FIRST TIME
REGISTERE | PARTICIP UNAUDITED
SIN | JOINT VENTURE D OFFICE | ATION % VEARS CON?(())’I\I_IDAT
(IPPIR
o) | "oy
1 | JIVAKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 60.00 2010t20| O 0
2 | JIV AKTOR SA - ALPINE MAYREDER BAU GmbH GREECE ) 2010-2013] 0 0
3 %/\é, AAKTOR SA - TODINI CONSTRUZIONI GENERALI GREECE 4500 20102018 © 0
4 | JVTEO SA-AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2018 0 0
5 | JIVAKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 99.90 2010t20| O 0
“J/V AKTOR SA — TERNA SA- BIOTER SA” — TERNA SA-
6 | BIOTER SAAKTOR SA GREECE 33.33 20102018 0 0
7 | JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA - J & P AVAX SA GRECE 75.00 2010-2013 0 0
8 | JIVAKTOR SA -J &P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GRECE 65.78 2010-2019 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA — MICHANIKI SA —~MOCHLOS SA —ALTE
9 | SA. AEGEK GREECE 45.42 2010-2018 O 0
10 | J.V AKTOR SA -PANTRAK KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE pie 2010-2013] 0 0
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REGISTERE | PARTICIP | UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N | JOINT VENTURE DOFFICE | ATION % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
@o) | (PP/RPY)
11 | JJV AKTOR SA -PANTRAK KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE &0 2010-2013 0 0
12 | JIVAKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GRECE 65.78 20102013 0 0
J ATTIKI ODOS — CONSTRUCTION OF ELEFSINA-
13 | STAVROS-SPATA ROAD & W.IMITOS RINGROAD GREECE 59.27 2010-201% 0 0
14 | JIVATTIKAT SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.0 2010-21 0 0
15 | J/V TOMI SA — AKTOR (APOSELEMI DAM) GREECE 10@0 2010-2013) 0 0
16 | JIVTEO SA—AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2018 0 0
17 | JIV SIEMENS AG — AKTOR SA — TERNA SA GREECE 50. 2010-2013) 0 0
18 | JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.0D 202013 | 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA — SIEMENS SA - VINCI CONSTRUCTIONS
19 | AYAKTOR SA— St GREECE 70.00 20102018 0 0
20 | J/V AKTOR SA —AEGEK - J & P AVAX-SELI GREECE am 2010-2013 0 0
21 | JV TERNA SA—MOCHLOS SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 3500  2008-2013| 0 0
22 | IV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.0p 2010-2013 0 0
23 | JIVAKTOR SA— TERNA SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE m, 2010-2013 0 0
24 | JIV J&P-AVAX —TERNA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 33.38 0m-2013| 0 0
25 | J/V AKTOR SA — ERGO SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 0
26 | JV AKTOR SA— ERGO SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 0
27 | JIV AKTOR SA -LOBBE TZILALIS EUROKAT GREECE 338 2010-2013) 0 0
28 | JIV AKTOR —TOMI- ATOMO GREECE 51.0( 20102013 0 0
JV AKTOR SA -JP AVAX SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-
29 | IV AKTOR GREECE 59.27 20102018 0 0
30 | JVTEO SA—AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2018 0 0
31 | JVAKTOR SA—TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 20102013 @ 0
32 | IV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.0p 2007-2013 0 0
33 | JIVKASTOR — AKTOR MESOGEIOS GREECE 53.45 2oma| o 0
34 | JV(CARS) LARISAS (EXECUTOR) GREECE 81.10 som3| o 0
J/V AKTOR-AEGEK-EKTER-TERNA (CONSTR. OF OA
35 | HANGARS EXECUTOR GREECE 52.00 20102018 0 0
JV ANAPLASI ANO LIOSION (AKTOR — TOMI)
g6 | v ANAPLA GREECE 100.00 20102018 0 0
JV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF
37 | MEGARON MUSIC HALL PHASE B — E/M) GREECE 30.00 2010-2013 0 0
JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF
38 | MEGARON MUSIC HALL PHASE B- CONSTR.) GREECE 30.00 2010-2013 0 0
39 | J/VAKTOR SA— ALTE SA GREECE 50.0p 20102013 0 0
JIV ATHENA SA — THEMELIODOMI SA — AKTOR SA-
40 | KONSTANTINIDIS SA — TECHNERG SA- TSAMPRAS sp|  GREECE 25.00 2010-2013 0 0
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reostere | paner | uworen | eror e
(1/0) | (IPP/RPY)
41 JIV AKTOR SA - ALTE SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 66.67 2010-2013 0 0
42 JIV AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE ga. 2010-2013 0 0
43 JIV GEFYRA GREECE 20.32 2008-2018 0 0
44 JIV AEGEK — BIOTER SA — AKTOR SA — EKTER SA GREE 40.00 2009-20173 0 0
45 JIV AKTOR SA —-ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE 1700 2010-2013| 0 0
46 JIV AKTOR SA - J&P — AVAX SA GREECE 50.00 201018 0 0
47 JIV AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREEE 33.33 2010-2013 0 0
48 JIV AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREEE 66.66 2010-2013 0 0
49 J(g/LAYI:/ITISIE-\-I/-I(IJ_'CAAI:('BAIETLI,EAEI'\DASPCIEADIS’)IﬁG) GREECE 45.33 2010-2018 0 0
50 ﬂggg,(l'l_l:gLRlES?é’SAOCIETE FRANCAISE EQUIPEMENT GREECE 65.00 2010-2018 0 0
JIV THEMELIODOMI — AKTOR SA- ATHENA SA &TE -
51 PASSAVANT MASCHINENTECHNIK GmbH - GIOVANNI GREECE 53.33] 2008-2018 0 0
PUTIGNANO & FIGLI Sri
52 JIV AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 40.( 2010-2013 0 0
53 JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE 368 2010-2013| 0 0
oo | IMATORSA DOmOTETI A crecce | mo] om0 o
55 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50.0D 2010-2013 0 0
56 JIV AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 0 0
57 JIV AKTOR SA -ERGOSYN SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 0 0
58 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 O 0
59 JV AKTOR COPRI KUWAIT 50.00 - 0 0
60 JV QATAR QATAR 40.00 - 0 0
61 JV AKTOR SA - AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100.00 2010-2013 0 0
62 CONSORTIUM BIOSAR ENERGY - AKTOR BULGARIA 100.0 2010-2013 0 0
63 é/l\zlg_lﬁ)oM’L?I;-\ — HLEKTOR SA (ANO LIOSIA LANDFILL - GREECE 100.00 2010-2018 0 0
64 JIV TOMI — MARAGAKIS ANDR. (2005) GREECE 65.00 2010-2013 0 0
65 JIV TOMI SA — ELTER SA GREECE 50.00 2009-2018 0 0
66 JIV TOMI SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 100.0p 2010-2013 a 0
67 JIV KASTOR SA — TOMI SA GREECE 100.00 2010-2013 0O 0
68 JIV KASTOR SA - ELTER SA GREECE 50.900 2010-2013 0 0
69 JIV KASTOR SA -ERTEKA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-20[L3 0 0
70 é/X VISTONIA SA — ERGO SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 75.00 2010-2018 0 0
71 J/IV ERGO SA - TOMI SA GREECE 15.00 2010-2018 0 0
72 JIV TOMI SA — CHOROTECHNIKI SA GREECE 50.00 262013 0 0
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REGISTERE | PARTICIP | UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N | JOINT VENTURE DOFFICE | ATION % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
@o) | (PP/RPY)
73 | J/V TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) GREECE 5000 20102013 0 0
JV HELECTOR — TECHNIKI PROSTASIAS
74 | IV HELECTOR - GREECE 60.00 20102018 0 0
75 | JV TAGARADES LANDFILL GREECE 30.00 20062018 0 0
JV MESOGEIOS SA — HELECTOR SA — BILFINGER
76 | (KOZANI LANDEILL) GREECE 35.00 2007-2018 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA-BILFINGER BERGER (CYPRUS-
77 | PApHoS LANDELL CYPRUS 100.00 2006-2018 0 0
78 | JV DETEALA- HELECTOR-EDL LTD GREECE 30.0 20108 | 0 0
79 | JVHELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (FYLIS LANDFILL)|  REECE 99.00 2010-2013 0 0
50 | JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (MAVRORACHI GREECE 65.00 20102018 o .
LANDFILL)
g1 | IV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (HERAKLION GREECE 40,00 0062018 o 0
LANDFILL)
JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (LASITHI
82 | LAnbeL) GREECE 70.00 2006-2018 0 0
JV HELECTOR SA-BILFINGER BERGER
83 | (MARATHOUNTA LANDFILL & ACCESS WAY) CYPRUS 100.00 2006-2013 0O 0
84 | JVHELECTOR- ARSI GREECE 80.00 20102018 0 0
85 | JVLAMDA — ITHAKI & HELECTOR GREECE 30.00 2002013 | 0 0
86 | JVHELECTOR- ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70.00 2010-2413 0 0
87 | JIVBILFIGER BERGER - MESOGEIOS- HELECTOR GREECE 29.00 20102014 0 0
88 | J/V TOMI SA —HELECTOR SA GREECE 100.40 2007-2013 0 0
89 | J/VKASTOR - P&C DEVELOPMENT GREECE 70.00 2002 | 0 0
50 | IV AKTOR SA ARCHIRODON-BOSKALIS(THERMAIKI GREECE £0.00 010201k o 0
0DOS)
91 | J/VAKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 55.00 20102013 0
92 | IV AKTOR SA —ATHENA GREECE 50.00 2000-2018 0 0
93 | JIVAKTOR —INTRAKAT - J & P AVAX GREECE 71.67 20-2013| 0 0
94 | IV HOCHTIEF-AKTOR-J&P-VINCI-AEGEK-ATHENA GREECE 19.30 20102014 0 0
95 | IV VINCI-J&P AVAX-AKTOR-HOCHTIEF-ATHENA GREECE 17.00 2009-2013 0 0
96 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA —ARCHITECH SA GREECE 50.00 m2013| 0 0
JN ATTIKAT SA- PANTECHNIKI SA —J&P AVAX SA —
97 | EMPEDOS SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-AEGEK SA-ALTE SA GREECE 48.51 2009-2018 0O 0
g | JVETETH SA-JGP-AVAX SATERNA SA- PANTECHNKI|  Goce ce 16,00 20002016 o 0
99 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA- J&P AVAX SA- BIOTER SA GREEE 39.32 2007-2014 0 0
100 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE 50.00 100013| 0 0
101 | J/V PANTECHNIKI SA — GANTZOULAS SA GREECE 5000  2005-2013| 0 0
107 | IV ETETH SA-J&P-AVAX SA-TERNA SA- PANTECHNKI| e ce 16,00 007201k o 0
JN *PANTECHNIKI-ALTE-TODINI -ITINERA "-
103 | JY PANTECHNIK-? GREECE 29.70 20102018 0 0
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SEQSTERE | o | UNADTED | RRSTIME
(1/0) | (IPP/RPY)
104 | J/V TERNA SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 16.50 20p@13 | 0 0
105 é//\\/ PANTECHNIKI SA — ARCHITECH SA- OTO PARKING| oo 4500 20032018 0 0
106 | J/V TERNA SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 40.00 202013 | 0 0
107 | JIV AKTOR SA — XANTHAKIS SA GREECE 55.0 201048 | © 0
108 | J/V PROET SA -PANTECHNIKI SA- BIOTER SA GREECE 39.32 20102013 O 0
109 | J/V KASTOR — ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70.00 2010-2013 0 0
110 | J/V AKTOR SA — ERGO SA GREECE 65.00 2010-2d13 0 0
111 | JJV AKTOR SA -PANTRAK GREECE 80.00 20102013 O 0
112 | JIV AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI GREECE 100.0p 200043 | 0 0
113 | JIV AKTOR SA - TERNA - J&P GREECE 33.33 201a20| O 0
114 | JIV AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A435) GREECE 5000 2010-2013| O 0
115 | J/V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A437) GREECE 5000 2010-2013| O 0
116 | J/V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIAA438) GREECE 50.0( 20102013 O 0
117 | JIV ELTER SA—KASTOR SA GREECE 15.90 2010-20113 0 0
118 | J/V TERNA - AKTOR GREECE 50.00 20092018 O 0
119 | J/V AKTOR - HOCHTIEF GREECE 33.00 20092018 O 0
120 | J/V AKTOR - POLYECO GREECE 52.00 20102018 O 0
121 | JIV AKTOR - MOCHLOS GREECE 70.00 20102018 O 0
120 i/)v AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT GREECE £0.00 20102016 o o
123 | JIV AKTOR SA- STRABAG AG GREECE 50.0p 2010-2013 0 0
124 | JIV EDISON — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 20092018 O 0
125 | JIVLMN SA — OKTANA SA (ASTYPALEA LANDFILL) GREECE 50.00 20102013 O 0
126 | J/VLMN SA — OKTANA SA (ASTYPALEA WASTE) GREECE 50.00 20102013 0O 0
127 | JIVLMN SA — OKTANA SA (TINOS ABATTOIR) GREECE 50.00 20102013 O 0
128 | JIV AKTOR — TOXOTIS GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 0 0
129 | JIV*JIV TOMI - HELECTOR” — KONSTANTINIDIS GREEE 70.00 20082013 O 0
130 | J/V TOMI SA - AKTOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT GREECE 100.00 20102013 0O 0
131 | JJV AKTOR — TOXOTIS “ANTHOUPOLI METRO” GREECE 50.00 20102013 O 0
132 | JIV AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA ~GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 48.00 20102013 O 0
133 | J/V AKTOR SA — IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.0p 202013 | 0O 0
134 | J.JV AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.0D 2010-2013 0 0
135 | J/V ATOMON SA — TOMI SA GREECE 50.00 2009-2013 0 0
136 | J/V AKTOR SA — TOXOTIS SA GREECE 50.00 2010201 0 0
137 | JIV AKTOR SA — ELTER SA GREECE 70.00 2009-20113 0 0
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SIN | JOINT VENTURE TDORHICE | ATION®% | VEARS | CONSOLIDATION
Wo) | (PPIRPY)
138 | J/V ERGOTEM —KASTOR- ETETH GREECE 15.40 201024 0 0
139 | J/V LAMDA SA —N&K GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 50.0p 020-2013| 0 0
140 | J/VLMN SA -KARALIS GREECE 95.00 20102018 O 0
141 | JV HELECTOR- ENVITEC GREECE 50.00 2010-2013 0
142 | J/VLMN SA - KARALIS K. - TOMI SA GREECE 98.0 2010-2013| 0 0
143 | J/V CONSTRUTEC SA ~KASTOR SA GREECE 30,0 20093 | 0 0
144 | YV AKTOR SA L EAPAILIOPOULOS SA -DEGREMONT - greece 30.00 20102013 0 0
145 | JYARTOR SA - &P AVAX SA - NGA NETWORK GREECE 50.00 20102013 0 0
146 | J/V TOMI SA — ETHRA CONSTRUCTION SA GREECE 50. 2010-2013| 0 0
| B A T RS OV | oeece | sood o) o o
14 | IV HELECTOR SA ~TH.G LOLOS- CH.TSOBANIDIS- GREECE 0.0 T o
149 | SV HELECTOR SA "G LOLOS CH.TSOBANIDIS- GREECE 49.85 20112013 0 0
150 | J/V HELECTOR SA — ZIORIS SA GREECE 51.00 20m12| 0 0
151 | J/VHELECTOR SA — EPANA SA GREECE 50.00 201124 0 0
152 | J/V LAMDA SA ~GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 50.00 200013 | 0 0
153 | J/V TECHNIKI ARISTARCHOS SA ~LMN SA GREECE 300 2011-2013| 0 0
154 | JV TOMISA - ARSI SA MARAGAKIS GREEN WORKS | gpce ce 65.00 T o
155 | JIV ELKAT SA — LAMDA SA GREECE 30,00 2011-2013 0 0
156 | JV HELECTOR- LANTEC - ENVIMEC - ENVIROPLAN GREEE 32.00 20102013 0 0
157 | J/V AKTOR SA - J&P (KOROMILIA KRYSTALLOPIGI) GRECE 60.00 20122013 0 0
158 f\l’\E’TJVf‘/gQ\K’Q;('AKTOR SA (ATTICA NATURAL GAS GREECE 50.00 20122018 O 0
150 | IV 98P AVAX SAAKTOR SA (DEPA TECHNICAL GREECE £0.00 Jol2.2018 o o
160 | AKTOR SAERETVO 54 (CONSTRUCTION OF MODERN|  pce e £0.00 Jol2.2018 o o
161 | J/V KONSTANTINIDIS -HELECTOR GREECE 49.0 202013 | 0 0
162 | IV IV MIVA SA —AAGIS SA”-MESOGEIOS SA- GREECE 15.00 20122018 0 0
163 | JV AKTOR ARHOGAZ TURKEY 51.00 | o 0
164 | NATURAL GAS NATIONAL TRANSMISSION SvSTew) | GREECE 5000 20122013 0 0
165 | J/V AKTOR SA — M.SAVVIDES & SONS LIMASSOL LTD | €PRUS 80.00 1 o 0
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REGISTERE PARTICIP UNAUDITED FIRST TIME
S/N'| JOINT VENTURE DOFFICE | ATION % YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
(2/0) (IPP/RPY)
166 | J/V AKTOR - TERNA (STYLIDA JUNCTION) GREECE 510 2012-2013 0 0
167 JIV AKTOR-PORTO CARRAS-INTRACAT (ESCHATIA GREECE 50.00 2012-2018 0 0
RIVER J/V)
168 | J/V AKTOR-TERNA (NEW PATRAS PORT) GREECE 30.00 2012-2013 0 0
169 | J/V AIAS SA -KASTOR SA /WESTERN LARISSA BYPASS GREECE 50.00| 2012-2018 0 0
170 | J/V AIAS SA-KASTOR SA/RACHOULA ZARKOS GREECE 0 2012-2013 0 0
171 | J/IV AKTOR SA - IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.00 2013 1 RPY
J/V HELECTOR S.A. - KASTOR S.A. (EGNATIA HIGH 4
172 FENCING PROJECT) GREECE 100.00 2013 1 RPY
173 | J/IV TOMI SA - LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 100.0( 03 1 RPY
174 | JIV TRIKAT SA - TOMI SA GREECE 30.0 2013 1 RPY
175 | J/IV AKTOR SA-J & P AVAX SA GREECE 65.78 2013 1 RPY
176 | J./V AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2013 1] PR
177 NAY KASTOR_S.A. - HELECTOR S.A. (Biological treatmte GREECE 100.00 2014 1 RPY
plant in Chania)
178 | J/IV KASTOR SA - CONSTRUTEC SA GREECE 50.00 2013 1 RPY
179 | 1.S.F.(AKTOR-AL JABER J.V.) QATAR 50.0¢ 2018 1 RPY
180 | JV AKTOR SA - J&P ABAX SA INTPAKAT GREECE 42.50 2019 1 RPY
JV BIOLIAP SA - D.MASTORIS-A.MITROGIANNIS &
181 | ASSOCIATES LP - M. STROGIANNOS & ASSOCIATES LH GREECE 25.00 2013 1 RPY
- TOMI SA
182 | JV LAMDA TECHNIKI SA-EPINEAS SA-ERGOROI SA GRECE 35.00 2013 1 RPY
183 | JV LAMDA TECHNIKI SA-KARALIS KONSTANTINOS GREEE 94.63 2013 1 RPY
184 | J/IV AKTOR S.A. - ALSTOM TRANSPORT SA GREECE 66. 2013 1 IPP
185 | J/V AKTOR SA -TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2013 1 IPP
186 | J/V AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 56,67 2013 1 IPP

The following Joint Ventures were not consolidatedhese financial statements, even though they besh
included in the interim summary financial reportiog 30.09.2013 because their tax affairs were dlaseQ4
2013: J/V AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI SA, J/V TOMI SA-AKOR SA (LAMIA HOSPITAL), JV EKTER
SA-AKTOR SA, J/V AKTOR SA-PANTECHNIKI SA, J/V J&P AVAX SA-AKTOR SA, J/V TOMI SA-
TECHNOGNOSIA IPEIROU GP, J/V TOMI SA-ATOMON SA (MYBINOS PORT), JV AKTOR SA-J&P
AVAX SA-TERNA SA IME PHASE A, J/V AKTOR SA -J&P AVAX SA-TERNA SA IME PHASE B.

As regards IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” there ference in note 2.2.

9.d The row “Investments in Joint Ventures” of the 8taént of Financial Position presents the cost of

participation in other, non-important Joint Venwras of 31.12.2013 amounting to €972 thousand, aandf
31.12.2012 amounting to €834 thousand. The Grosigese in the results of the aforementioned Jointties
appears in the row “Profit/(Loss) from Joint Vemsitin profit or loss, i.e. losses amounting to Z18ousand for
2013 and losses amounting to €554 thousand for.2012
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The companies not included in consolidation and rélevant reasons are stated in the following taBkd
participations are shown in the financial statem@nthe acquisition cost less accumulated impaitme

DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL REASONS FOR
PARTICIPATION PARTICIPATION PARTICIPATION NON-
% % % CONSOLIDATION
DORMANT —
1 TECHNOVAX SA GREECE 26.87 11.02 37.89 UNDER
LIQUIDATION
DORMANT -
2 TECHNOLIT SA GREECE 33.33 33.38 UNDER
LIQUIDATION

REGISTERED

SIN CORPORATE NAME OFFICE

10 Investments in subsidiaries
The change to the book value of the parent compganyestments to consolidated undertakings waslks\s:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
At year start 940,106 940,259
Additions- increase in participation cost - 183
(Sales) (90)
(Company dissolution) (918) (337)
At year end 939,099 940,106

The decrease of investments in subsidiaries by €9b8sand in FY 2013 pertains to company GAS CONFA
OF THE SUBURBS SA whic was dissolved in Q2 2013.cAmpany level there was a loss of €918 thousand
whereas at Group level the effect is not significaimne amount of €337 thousand in FY 2012 perteircompany
ADEYP SA which was dissolved in Q4 of 2012.

11 Investments in associates

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
At year start 134,891 135,863 34,871 34,871
Additions new 4,421 -
Additions- increase in participation cost 60 8,598 -
(Sales) - (1,310)
Share in profit/ loss (after taxes) (1,591) 2,288 -
Other changes in equity 12,099 (10,548) - -
At year end 149,879 134,891 34,871 34,871

Summary financial information on associates forZoM3:
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Amounts in EUR thousand

PARTICIPATIO
PROFIT/(L PERCENNTAGE
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES 0SSs) (%)
1 | ATHENS CAR PARK SA 23,239 16,526 1,976 (1,339) 0.17
2| ANEMODOMIKI SA 116 4 - @ 43.00
3 ASTERION SA 3,793 3,191 438| 14 50.00
4 AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. 454,594 384,637 171,258 (V) 20.00
5 | BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,254 9,475 - (176) 35.0
6 | GEFYRASA 368,160 299,124 33,59 255 22.02
7 | GEFYRA LITOURGIA SA 4,830 1,713 5,19 97p 23.12
8 PROJECT DYNAMIC CONSTRUCTION 611 485 830 5 30.b2
9 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 266 18 - 7 40.0¢
10 | ENERMEL SA 8,619 7 - (30) 46.45
11 | TOMIEDL ENTERPRISES LTD 154 8 @ 47.22
12 KINIGOS SA 20,219 12,233 938 63 50.0p
13 PEIRA SA 2,965 14 - (15) 50.07
14 TERNA — PANTECHNIKI LTD 310 300 . (2) 50.0
15 | CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - - 50.00
16 | AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,909 1,826 749 (268 50.40
17 ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. 121,806 3 - 364 30,00
18 ELPEDISON POWER SA 566,654 423,801 325,974 78,7 21.95
19 GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC 827 964 4,496 (1,016) 50.p0
METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK SA (CAR
20 PARK CONCESSION COMPANY) 8,254 418D - (29 22.91
21 POLISPARK SA 1,528 783 1,489 12 25.04
22 SALONICA PARK SA 5,172 6,777 142 (468 24.70
23 | SMYRNIPARK SA 10,086 2,521 517 (245 20.0p
Summary financial information on associates forZoi2:
Amounts in EUR thousand
PARTICIPATION
PROFIT/ PERCENTAGE
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES (LOSS) (%)
1 | ATHENS CAR PARK SA 24,991 16,899 2,416 -987 20.08
2 | ANEMODOMIKI SA 115 2 - -3 43.00
3 | ASTERION SA 3,928 3,340 482 17 50.00
4 AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. 683,962 769,949 147,591 4,458 20.00
5 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,441 9,486 - -133 35.00
6 GEFYRA SA 380,881 314,289 35,815 8,050 22.02
7 | GEFYRA LITOURGIA SA 4,767 1,622 5,248 1,015 23.12
8 | PROJECT DYNAMIC CONSTRUCTION 174 52 183 28 30.52
9 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 269 14 - -7 40.00
10 ENERMEL SA 8,589 66 - -16 46.43
11 EPANA SA SA 21,673 13,300 2,594 274 16.00
12 | TOMIEDL ENTERPRISES LTD 155 79 - 1 47.22
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PARTICIPATION
PROFIT/ PERCENTAGE
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES (LOSS) (%)
13 PEIRA SA 2,980 14 -20 50.00
14 TERNA — PANTECHNIKI LTD 310 300 - 8 50.00
15 CHELIDONA SA 157 85 50.00
16 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,717 1,366 417 -147 50.00
17 ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. 128,141 11 1,340 30.00
18 ELPEDISON POWER SA 647,044 499,435 407,090 -2,244 21.95
19 FREEQUEST HOLDING LTD 275 209 225 43 16.00
20 METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK 8,291 4,192 -26 22.91
21 POLISPARK SA 1,146 477 1,768 -62 25.04
22 SALONICA PARK SA 5,399 6,536 186 -518 24.70
23 SMYRNI PARK SA 10,516 2,706 465 -293 20.00

*The company’s figures pertain to the period durimgich it was owned by the Group, i.e. H1 2012.

In addition, REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA, DILAVHRB SA, GREENWOOD BIOSAR PANAMA
INC and PERME HELLAS SA were consolidated througfHENS RESORT CASINO SA, PEIRA SA,

GREENWOOD BIOSAR and EPANA SA, respectively.

Summary information for 2013 is shown in the follog/table:

PROFIT/ PARTICIPATION
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES (LOSS) PERCENTAGE
1 | DILAVERIS SA 2,576 157 5 -359 40.64
2 | REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA 111,454 27,442 96,7 2,666 15.30
3 | GREENWOOD BIOSAR PANAMA INC 1,565 1,43 2,140 133 50.00
Summary information for 2012 is shown below:
PARTICIPATION
SIN COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES SALES PROFIT/(LOSS) PERCENTAGE
1 | DILAVERIS SA 2,931 153 7 81 40.64
2 | REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA 123,965 42,033 96,5 3,392 15.30
ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSPORT (trade
3 | name PERME HELLAS SA)* 6,907 4,682 - 9.5
*The company’s figures pertain to the period durimgich it was owned by the Group, i.e. H1 2012.

12

Joint Ventures & Companies consolidated followinghe proportional method

The following amounts represent the Group’s sh&messets and liabilities in joint ventures and camips which
were consolidated following the proportional comdation method and which are included in the Statenof
Financial Position, together with the share of naies and expenses included in the Group’s Incomeigent

for financial years 2013 and 2012:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Receivables
Non-current assets 44,306 57,659
Current assets 437,549 449,145
481,855 506,805
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31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 3,416 3,171
Short-term liabilities 471,474 491,051

474,890 494,221

Equity 6,965 12,583
Income 200,996 203,494
(Expenses) (186,931) (217,278)
Earnings/ (losses) after taxes 14,065 (13,784)

As regards IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” there isrence in note 2.2.

13 Financial assets available for sale
All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Note 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
At year start 149,335 284,851
Additions new 22,410 -
Additions- increase in participation cost 2,875 23
(Sales) (13,409) (93,605)
Adjustment of reclassification of reserves
available for sale 24 474 (13,272)
Impairment 32 (3,622) -
Adjustment at fair value through equity:
increase/(decrease) (81,062) (28,662)
At year end 77,000 149,335
Non-current assets 68,587 149,335
Current assets 8,413 -

77,000 149,335

Financial assets available for sale include thiefohg:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Listed securities: 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Shares — Greece (in EUR) 8,569 81
Shares — Abroad (in CAD) 63,339 144,437

Non-listed securities:

Shares — Greece (in EUR) 5,091 4,817
77,000 149,335

The parent company does not have any financiatsaasailable for sale.

In the comparative figures as of 31.12.2012, Saléx3,605 thousand represent the sale of parteo§tiares held
by the Group in ELDORADO GOLD CORPORATION duringetB-month period of 2012. The total profit from
the sale stands at €19,091 thousand (note 32).aphigint includes profit of €13,272 thousand tramstefrom
Equity to profit and loss. The amount collectedrirthe sale amounts to €112,696 thousand.
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In the information of 31.12.2013, Additions pertamostly to shares acquired by subsidiary ATTIKI OBSA
during Q2 2013, and which were sold up to the dritti@year, as reflected in line Sales. The deersasn in row
Fair value adjustment: increase/(decrease) maaigtes (€83,395 thousand) to the shares held btbap in
ELDORADO GOLD CORPORATION and HELLAS GOLD SA. Pait the amount to result from a potential
sale of the shares in HELLAS GOLD in the future &man the exercise of QATAR HOLDING's right will pay

part of the bond loan related to construction.

The fair value of non-listed securities is detemmirby discounting anticipated future cash flowsseohon the
market rate, and the required return on investmafrgmilar risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reportiage is the value at which financial assets abklfor sale

are shown.

14 Prepayments for long-term leases

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

At year start 23,551 15,116
Additions 5,291 11,355
(Disposals) - (212)
(Depreciation and amortisation) (2,912) (2,708)
At year end 25,930 23,551
Non-current assets 24,690 22,667
Current assets 1,240 885

25,930 23,551

Of the total prepayments for long-term leases, dh@unt of €23,451 thousand comes from the companies
ATTIKI ODOS SA, MOREAS SA and MOREAS SEA SA (201£21,385 thousand), and the amount of €2,078
thousand comes from companies in the Wind Farmmerg(2012: €2,166 thousand) and €401 thousand from
Joint Ventures in the Constructions & Quarries segm

15 Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12)

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Balance as of Increase in Decrease in Unwind of Balance on
31/12/2012 receivables receivables discount 31/12/2013
Assets
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (IFRIC 12) 106,514 42,608 -25,206 3,997 127,913
Total 106,514 42,608 -25,206 3,997 127,913
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Non-current assets 51,078 16,269
Current assets 76,835 90,245
127,913 106,514
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The receivable under Guaranteed receipt from graoesponds to MOREAS SA.

16 Financial derivatives

Out of the amounts shown in the following tables #mount of €3,601 thousand under current assgiexérom
ATTIKI ODOS SA. Under long-term liabilities, the amnt of €110,324 thousand (31.12.2012: €145,826
thousand) corresponds to MOREAS SA, and the amoti®l,157 thousand (31.12.2012: €1,644 thousand)
corresponds to HELECTOR-CYBARGO, the amount of €thiblisand (31.12.2012: €404 thousand) corresponds
to ATTIKI ODOS SA, and the amount of €2 thousandesponds to YIALOU EMPORIKI SA.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Current assets
Warrants 3,601
Total 3,601
Long-term liabilities
Interest rate swaps for cash flow hedging 111,661 147,874
Total 111,661 147,874
Short-term liabilities
Details of interest rate swaps
Nominal value of interest rate swaps 412,577 A3
Fixed Rate 1.73%-4.9% 2.01%-4.9%
Floating rate Euribor Euribor

The fair value of the derivative used to hedge déml changes is posted under non-current assetsentte
residual maturity of the hedged asset is greatar 12 months.

The cash flow hedge portion deemed ineffective r@edgnised in the Income Statement correspondaitts @f
€227 thousand for 2013 and gains of €8 thousan@®2 (note 33). Gains or losses from interest sataps
recognised in cash flow hedge reserves under Eqsityf 31 December 2013 will be recognised throgtiit
and loss upon the repayment of loans.

The parent company holds no financial derivatives.
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17 Inventories

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Raw materials 17,444 8,322
Finished products 15,453 30,384
Production in progress 2,469 614
Prepayment for inventories purchase 269 1,292
Other 3,237 2,841
Total 38,873 43,454
Less: Provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or
damaged inventory:

Raw materials 5 5

Finished products 363 63

368 68

Net realisable value 38,505 43,385

The greatest part of the inventory belongs to cangsaof the Constructions & Quarries segment.

The Parent holds no inventory.

18 Receivables

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Note
Trade
Trade receivables — Related parties 40
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
Trade Receivables - Net
Amounts due from customers for contract work
Income tax prepayment
Loans to related parties 40
Prepayments for operating leases
Time deposits over 3 months
Other receivables
Other receivables -Related parties 40

Less: Other receivable impairment provisions
Total

Non-current assets
Current assets

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
432,377 465,254 419 280
15,408 15,446 2,044 1,846
(40,837) (21,335) - -
406,948 459,365 2,463 2,126
150,023 145,713 - -
1,082 718 - -
30,982 20,838 220 156
26,078 28,767 - -
43,878 101,100 - -
419,297 434,241 1,125 1,394
8,679 13,125 4,345 4,345
(12,160) (11,381) - -
1,074,807 1,192,486 8,153 8,020
100,723 96,715 24 24
974,084 1,095,771 8,129 7,996
1,074,807 1,192,486 8,153 8,020
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The account “Other Receivables” is analysed as\idl

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Receivables from joint ventures 129,257 144,737 - -
Sundry debtors 140,060 127,979 25 295
Greek State (taxes deducted & prepaid) &
Insurance organizations 66,858 73,503 1,066 1,057
Income for the financial year receivable 6,104 7,102 - -
Prepaid expenses 16,042 16,628 34 42
Prepayments to suppliers/creditors 49,804 47,452 - -
Cheques (postdated) receivable 11,172 16,840 - -
419,297 434,241 1,125 1,394

“Sundry debtors" both on 31.12.2013 and on 31.124Acludes the amount of €33.9 million which cepends
to receivables of THERMAIKI ODOS SA from the Gre8tate, in proportion to the Group’s stake of 50%tén
42.3).

Trade and Other receivables measured at net batkbased on the effective rate method stood at.87#80lion

for 2013 and €896.3 million for 2012.

The movement on provision for impairment of tradeeaivables is shown in the following table:

All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

FIGURES FIGURES

Balance as of 1 January 2012 29,810 67
Provision for impairment of receivables 2,874 -

Write-off of receivables during the period (9,728) (67)
Unused provisions reversed (1,624) -
Foreign exchange differences 3 -

Balance as of 31 December 2012 21,335 -
Provision for impairment of receivables 19,671 -

Write-off of receivables during the period (165) -
Foreign exchange differences (4) -

Balance as of 31 December 2013 40,837 -

The impairment provision includes an amount of £3,thousand formed in the framework of the dralftthat
was submitted on 7.3.2014 for consultation (not8¥3vhere it provides among other things, for ifmie of a

credit invoice on the turnover of wind farms of P913.

The change to provision for impairment of otherieables is shown in the following table:

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

FIGURES FIGURES

Balance as of 1 January 2012 5,526 -
Provision for impairment of receivables 8,596 -

Write-off of receivables during the period (2,741) -

Balance as of 31 December 2012 11,381 -
Provision for impairment of receivables 779 -

Balance as of 31 December 2013 12,160 -
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The ageing analysis for Trade balances as of 3tmber 2013 is as follows:

All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Not overdue and not impaired 186,629 184,784 1,471 957
Overdue:
3 - 6 months 46,538 76,194 85 229
6 months to 1 year 70,278 47,487 239 364
1 -2 years 51,354 71,705 251 156
2 -3 years 30,691 40,965 92 33
Over 3 years 62,294 59,565 324 387
447,785 480,700 2,463 2,126
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables 887) (21,335) - -
Trade Receivables - Net 406,948 459,365 2,463 2,126

Receivables are analysed in the following currencie

All amounts in EUR thousand, CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
EUR 829,118 964,682 8,153 8,020
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 45,184 45,602 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 38,911 56,239 - -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 24,675 24,257 - -
BRITISH POUND (£) 417 258 - -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 10,165 8,548 - -
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 15,116 14,531 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 101,707 58,110 - -
OMAN RIYAL (OMR) 20 37 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 4,707 5,897 - -
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 2,644 13,982 - -
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 205 28 - -
TURKISH LIRA (TRY) 380 314 - -
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 62 - - -
FYROM DINAR (MKD) 1,496 - - -
1,074,807 1,192,486 8,153 8,020

The book value of long term receivables is appraxario their fair value.

19 Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets held to maturity include the foilm:

All amounts in EUR thousand,
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Listed securities - bonds
EIB bond at 4.375%, maturity on 15.04.2013 - 39,3
EIB bond at 3.625%, maturity on 15.10.2013 - 92,2
EIB bond at 2.125%, maturity on 15.01.2014 24,595 25,129
EIB bond at 3.875%, maturity on 15.10.2016 55,733
Total 80,328 158,691

The change in financial assets held to maturighswn in the table below:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
At year start 158,691 182,607
Additions 56,095 75,874
(Maturities) (131,320) (94,975)
(Premium amortisation) (3,138) (4,815)
At year end 80,328 158,691
Non-current assets 55,733 25,129
Current assets 24,595 133,563
Total 80,328 158,691

From the total of €80,328 thousand (31.12.20128%l thousand) ATTIKI ODOS S.A. owns 74,741 thawka
(31.12.2012: €152,944 thousand) and to AKTOR CONEIESBIS SA by €5,587 thousand (31.12.2012: € 5,747
thousand).

The amortisation of the bond premium of €3,138 Hama (2012: €4,815 thousand) has been recogniste in
Income Statement for the period, row Financial inebexpenses —net.

The fair value of bonds on 31.12.2013 stands at830thousand (31.12.2012: €159,269 thousand). The
maximum exposure to credit risk on 31.12.2013 gpoads to the carrying value of such financial tssse

The currency of financial assets held to matustihe euro.

The parent Company has no financial assets hettatarity.

20 Committed deposits

The Group’s Committed Deposits stood at €83,518shnd and €81,828 thousand on 31.12.2013 and 3Q112.

respectively. The largest part comes from ATTIKI OB SA to the amount of €31,521 thousand (31.12.2612
37,515 thousand), froBATEX ANEMOS SA by 21,883 thousand. (31.12.2012: €14 2®usand), and from

AKTOR SA to the amount of €16,158 thousand (31.022 €12,609 thousand).

Committed deposits are broken down in the followéngencies:

(99) / (133)



ELLAKTOR SA

‘ Annual Financial statements irelivith IFRS
ELLAKTOR for the year from 1 January to 31 Deloen2013

All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
EUR 75,456 75,340
US DOLLAR ($) 3,032 6,489
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 5,030
83,518 81,828

Committed deposits in cases of self- or co-finanpegjects (e.g. Attica Tollway, wind farms, enviroaental
management projects, etc) correspond to accoungmgeshort-term instalments of long-term loansreserve
accounts. It should be noted that the balance obwats serving short-term instalments is used mmaye
subsequent amortisation loan instalments. Alscsethmay correspond to cash deposits held as sedorithe

issue of guarantee letters from international, lgiglated financial institutions and receipt of gamtees for
collection of subsidies.

The parent company has no committed deposits.

21 Cash and cash equivalents

All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Cash in hand 1,989 3,999 1 2
Sight deposits 375,078 228,896 2,817 764
Time deposits 438,285 473,939
Total 815,352 706,835 2,818 766

The balance of Time deposits at a consolidated leweesponds primarily to ATTIKI ODOS SA by €3885
thousand (2012: €453,226 thousand). The balantespwnds to many other subsidiaries.

The following table shows the rates of depositsgoedit rating class by Standard & Poor (S&P).

Sight and time deposits %

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Financial Institution Rating (S&P)

A+ 0.0% 0.1%
AA- 5.6% 3.7%
A 0.3% 5.5%
A 4.4% 0.4%
CCcC 77.5% 74.3%
NR 12.2% 16.0%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0%

Out of the sight and time deposit balances of theufs as of 31.12.2013, approximately 86% is depdsitith six
Greek systematically important banks or their gliges with low or no credit rating, due to thee@k
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sovereign debt crisis. It should be pointed outwdwer, that these banks cover the largest parbtaf tredit
facilities (letters of guarantee, loans, etc.) tgdrto the Group.

The rates of time deposits are determined afteotrans with selected banking institutions basedEuribor
for an equal period with the selected placement (geek, month etc).

Cash and cash equivalents are analysed in thevalipcurrencies:

All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

EUR 795,133 686,920
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 49 30
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD) 161 184
US DOLLAR ($) 455 733
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 4,098 7,487
BRITISH POUND (£) 1,269 -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 1,170 165
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 1,325 2,087
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 9,900 6,554
OMAN RIYAL (OMR) 14 2,055
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 744 269
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 212 134
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 6 22
TURKISH LIRA (TRY) 458 195
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 347 -
FYROM DINAR (MKD) 12

815,352 706,835

Cash and cash equivalents of the parent compargxaressed in euros,

22 Non-current assets held for sale

In accordance with IFRS 5, the building on Kavadlieu Street in Nea Kifissia, for which there ipraliminary
sale agreement as of 31.12.2013, is presentedhan aurrent asset held for sale. Its sale was aaeglin Q1
2014. The building was measured at fair value tess of sales, which was determined to €4.516 todignd
was lower than its book value. The impairment losEUR 12,006 thousand, has been recognised imtwane
Statement for the period, in line Other operatimgpime/expenses (note 32).

The fair value of the building, which was deterndrEased on the preliminary sale agreement, ranlevelt3 in
the determination of fair values.

23 Share Capital & Premium Reserve

All amounts in EUR, save the number of shares
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Share Treasury
Number of Shares Share capital premium shares Total
1 January 2012 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (27,072) 679,086
31 December 2012 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (23,07 679,086
1 January 2013 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (27,072) 679,086
31 December 2013 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (23,07 679,086

The Company currently holds 4,570,034 treasuryeshaepresenting 2.58% of its paid up share capiathe
total acquisition value of €27,072,275, at the ageracquisition price of €5.92 per share. The Caoryipashare
capital amounts to EUR 182,311,352,39, divided It@,001,313 shares with the face value of €1.@8.ea

24  Other reserves
All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Statutory Special Untaxed Available FX Cash Flow  Actuarial Other Total
reserves reserves reserves for sale difference hedging profits reserves
reserves sreserves  reserves /(losses)
reserves
1 January 2012* 42,522 98,299 73,164 56,536 366 ,983) (492) 39,298 221,734
Foreign exchange differences - - - - (2,458) - - - (2,458)
Transfer from retained earnings 2,132 7,878 52,915 - - - - - 62,925
Changes in value of financial assets
available for sale / Cash flow hedge - - - (28,662) - (23,238) - - (51,900)
Effect of participation change in
subsidiaries 271 370 (255) - (817) (100) - - (532)
Reclassification adjustment of cash
flow hedge reserve - - - (13,272) - - - - (13,272)
Actuarial profit/(loss) - - - - - - (751) (751)
31 December 2012* 44,925 106,546 125,824 14,602 90@), (111,296) (1,244) 39,298 215,746
1 January 2013 44,925 106,546 125,824 14,602 (2908 (111,296) (1,244) 39,298 215,746
Foreign exchange differences - - - - (3,433) - - - (3,433)
Transfer from retained earnings 3,537 6,252 2,102 - - - - - 11,891
Changes in value of financial assets
available for sale / Cash flow hedge - - - (82,050) - 56,950 - - (25,100)
Adjustment of reclassification of
reserves available for sale - - - 474 - - - - 474
Actuarial profit/(loss) - - - - - - 621 - 621
31 December 2013 48,462 112,798 127,926 (66,974) ,340 (54,346) (623) 39,298 200,198

Out of the increase of €56,950 thousand seen ilCdsh flow hedging reserves for 2013, the amouf3d£612
thousand is due to Group associates. They participathe decrease of €3,433 thousand observedreigh
exchange differences reserves, with an increas€l6f thousand, whereas in the incrrease of the Aetua
profit/(loss) reserve, they participate with €14busand. For FY 2012, associated contribute witB,Z38
thousand in the cash flow hedge reserves, whithendecrease of the Foreign exchange differencesves of
€2,458 thousand they have no contribution.
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In the comparative information of year 2012, thelassification adjustment of 13,272 thousand represprofit
transferred from Equity in the Income Statement nhgart of the shares in ELDORADO GOLD
CORPORATION was sold.

COMPANY FIGURES

Statutory Special Untaxed FX Actuarial Other Total
reserves reserves reserves differences profits /(losses) reserves
reserves reserves

1 January 2012* 18,114 30,691 50,394 1 (25) 3,910 03,084
Foreign exchange
differences - - - 1) - 1)
Actuarial profit/(loss) - - - - (6) - (6)
31 December 2012* 18,114 30,691 50,394 - (31) 3,910103,077
1 January 2013 18,114 30,691 50,394 - (31) 3,910 3,007
Transfer from/ to profit
and loss 146 - (146)
Actuarial profit/(loss) - - - - 9 - 9
31 December 2013 18,260 30,691 50,248 - (22) 3,91003,087

* Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IASE@Jloyee Benefits" (note 41).

(a) Statutory reserve

The provisions of articles 44 and 45 of Codifiemint 2190/1920 regulate the way the legal reserfermed and
used: At least 5% of each year’s actual (book)eaehings must be withheld to form a statutory neseuntil the
statutory reserve’s accumulated amount equalsaat &3 of the share capital. Upon decision of @dinary
General Meeting of Shareholders, the statutoryrvesmay be used to cover losses, and thereforenwiglye used
for any other purpose.

(b) Special reserves

Reserves of this category have been created upnsiate of the Ordinary General Meeting in past gedo not
have any specific designation and may thereforadeel for any purpose, upon decision of the Orditzeperal
Meeting.

(c) Untaxed reserves

The foregoing reserves may be capitalised andildiseéd (having due regard to the applicable linotad) upon
decision of the Ordinary General Meeting of shaldéis.
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25 Borrowings

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Long-term borrowings
Bank borrowing 464,839 567,137 -
Financial leases 2,368 1,494 - -
Bond loans 942,353 634,998 224,355 137,193
From related parties - - 40,500 24,400
Total long-term borrowings 1,409,560 1,203,629 264,855 161,593
Short-term borrowing
Bank overdrafts 815 1,601 -
Bank borrowing 109,685 216,931 75,000
Bond loans 136,563 333,750 14,721
Financial leases 925 545 -
Total short-term borrowings 247,987 552,827 89,721
Total borrowings 1,657,547 1,756,456 264,855 251,314

Within 2013, the refinancing of the bank loans &l BKTOR SA, of a total amount of €227.5 million, @rof
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA of a total amount of 170.0lior, was completed, through long-term syndicated
bond loans. Collateral has been given for thesasldaledge on the shares of ATTIKI ODOS SA, owngd b
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA, mortgage on property of ELLABR SA on 25 Ermou Street) and prepayment
committments have been made, in case of liquidatff@ssets.

Also, during the current period, AKTOR SA concludéd refinancing of short-term borrowings of appnextely
€99 million under a long-term syndicated bond |d@allateral has been given for this loan (e.g. Sipipation
in HELLAS GOLD SA) and prepayment committments haeen made in case of collection of receivables.

YIALOU EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA refinanced over aohg-term horizon an existing bond loan of €24.8
million.

Therefore, the change seen in the Bond Loan rovemusidort-term borrowings mainly corresponds toaheve
refinancing of bond loans and their transfer frdrarsterm to long-term borrowings.

The change observed in parent company ELLAKTORh& Bond Loan row, comes from a transfer of bond
loans from short-term to long-term, because thimaeting of bank borrowing through the syndicateddloan
was completed, as well as the conclusion of intetyg bond loans.

The total borrowings include amounts from subordidanon-recourse debt amounting to a total of €2&4llion
(2012: €999,1 million) from concession compani@sparticular amounting to €390,1 million (2012:18%0
million) from ATTIKI ODOS SA, €531.7 million (201:2470.5 million) from MOREAS SA, and €10.7 million
(2012: €10.7 million) from THERMAIKI ODOS SA.

Exposure to changes in interest rates and the datesvoicing are set out in the following table:
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

FIXED FLOATING RATE
INTEREST up to 6 6-12
RATE months months Total
31 December 2012
Total borrowings 718,458 745,544 10,070 1,474,072
Effect of interest rate swaps 282,384 - - 282,384
1,000,842 745,544 10,070 1,756,456
31 December 2013
Total borrowings 478,725 821,325 - 1,300,050
Effect of interest rate swaps 357,497 - - 357,497
836,222 821,325 - 1,657,547
COMPANY FIGURES
FIXED FLOATING RATE
INTEREST

RATE up to 6 months Total
31 December 2012
Total borrowings 74,185 177,129 251,314

74,185 177,129 251,314
31 December 2013
Total borrowings 40,500 224,355 264,855

40,500 224,355 264,855

The maturities of long-term borrowings are as falo

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Between 1 and 2 years 102,190 195,036 23,733 87,40
2 to 5 years 415,393 416,563 36,020 74,185
Over 5 years 891,977 592,030 205,101 -

1,409,560 1,203,629 264,855 161,593

Out of total borrowings, the amount of €478,7 roiflirepresents fixed or regularly revised rate laaagly for

cofinanced/ self-financed projects at the average of 4,76% (compared to €718,5 million at therage rate of
4,64% for 2012), while the additional amount of ¥ million is subject to rate risk hedging (inchsdloan
hedge and spread) at the average rate of 5,99%pgrech to €282,4 million at the average rate of &d8r

2012). All other borrowings, amounting to €821,3liom (as compared to €755,6 million in 2012) al@afing

rate loans (e.g. loans in EUR, Euribor plus spread)

Group borrowing is broken down in the following mmcies:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
EUR 1,646,052 1,751,449
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) - 234
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 760 1,826
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 10,735 2,947
1,657,547 1,756,456

All Company borrowings are expressed in Euros.
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In addition, on 31.12.2013, ELLAKTOR had issued pamy guarantees for €259.1 million (31.12.2012:6£91
million) in favour of companies in which it part@tes, mainly to ensure bank credit lines or crémim
suppliers.

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by diseting anticipated future cash flows, using discaates which
represent the current conditions on the bankindetar

The book value of short-term borrowings approacheg fair value, as the discount effect is insfipaint. At a
consolidated level, the fair value of fixed raterbwings as of 31.12.2013, of a book value of €4 78illion, was
calculated at €463.1 million (as of 31.12.2012 fdie value of fixed rate borrowings of a book valoie€718.5
million amounted to €686,5 million).

At parent company level the fair value of fixederdiorrowings as of 31.12.2013, of a book value 40.8
million, was calculated at €39.4 million (as of B1.2012, book value was €74.2 million and fair ealvas €73.0
million).

Financial lease commitments, which are comprisd¢tiérabove tables, are analyzed as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Financial lease commitments — minimum
lease payments
under 1 year 1,029 593
1-5 years 2,523 1,563
Total 3,552 2,156
Less: Future financial debits of financial leases 259) (117)
Present value of financial lease
commitments 3,293 2,039

The present value of financial lease commitmenénayzed below:
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
under 1 year 925 545
1-5 years 2,368 1,494
Total 3,293 2,039

The parent company has no financial lease liabditi

26 Grants

All amounts in EUR thousand.
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Note 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
At year start 62,023 56,649
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - 1,088
Additions 20,030 8,159
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

Note 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Transfer to results (Other income-
expenses) 32 (3,749) (3,873)
Refunds (52)
At year end 78,253 62,023

The balance of Grants as of 31.12.2013 mainly ca@®pithe following amounts:

)

i)

ii)

iv)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

the amount of €55,270 thousand (31.12.2012: €38,3wusand) for grants received by ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA under OPCE (CRES and ELANEEting as intermediate agencies) for
the construction of Wind Farms in Kefalonia, Myiiland Argolida. The grant percentage represerits G0
each investment’s budget.

the amount of €9,406 thousand (31.12.2012: € 1Q,biusand for grant received by subsidiary VEAL SA
under OPCE for the construction of a co-generagpiower plant using biogas from the Ano Liosia lahdfi
The grant amount covers 40% of the investment'gbtd

The amount of €2,646 thousand (31.12.2012: €2 888sand) for grant received by subsidiary HELECTOR
from the European Commission for the developmenpafer plants using pioneering methods, such as
secondary fuel gasification (Gas Bioref and Polyikta programs) and anaerobic digestion of orgavaste
(biogas program). The grand amount represents miopately 55% of the budgeted cost for the
development of said power plants.

The amount of €2,005 thousand (31.12.2012: €2,B6dsand) for grant received by subsidiary AKTOR
CONCESSIONS SA-ARCHITECH SA for the development aperation of a public parking with total
capacity of 2,207 parking spaces in teh Municigaiit Thessaloniki, area of YMCA junction.

The amount of €1,931 thousand (31.12.2012: €2,668sand) for grant received by subsidiary ANEMOS
ALKYONIS SA under OPCE for the construction of 8023 MW Wind Farm in the Municipality of
Kissamos, in the Prefecture of Chania. The govenmingeant amount covers 30% of the investment’'s
budget.

Amount of €1,666 thousand (31.12.2012: €1,787 thod} for grant received by subsidiary AIFORIKI
DODEKANISSOU SA under OPCE regarding project “Winadwer utilisation for the power generation in
the islands of Rhodes (3.0 MW), Kos (3.6 MW) andniRes (1.2 MW)". The government grant amount
covers 30% of the investment’s budget.

The amount of €1,314 thousand (31.12.2012: € 1thd3sand) for grant received by HELECTOR SA under
OPCE regarding project “Electrical power generafiem Tagarades Thessaloniki Sanitary Landfill Bisg
project, with a 5 MW capacity. The government gmambunt covers 40% of the investment’s budget.

The amount of €752 thousand (31.12.2012: €470 #wal)sfor a grant received by subsidiary PPC
RENEWABLES SA under OPCE for the construction of&0 MW hydro plant at Smixiotiko stream,
Municipality of Ziaka, Grevena. The government gramount covers 30% of the investment’s budget.

The amount of €188 thousand (31.12.2012: €211 #m)sfor grant received by subsidiary EOLIKI
KARPASTONIOU SA under OPCE for the constructionao211 MW Wind Farm in the Municipality of
Karystos, in the Prefecture of Evia. The governnggaht amount covers 30% of the investment’s budget

From the Additions of €20,030 thousand of the pei{®1.12.2012: €8,159 thousandpco € 19,150 thousand
(31.12.2012: €6,867 thousand) come from ELLINIKIGHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA, €567 thousand from
SOLAR OLIVE SA and €313 thousand from PPC RENEWABLEBA. The parent Company has no grant
balances.
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27 Suppliers and other liabilities
The Company’s liabilities from trade activities diree of interest.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Trade payables 263,132 257,668 68 370
Accrued expenses 22,849 19,579 146 143
Social security and other taxes 34,792 23,584 571 387
Amounts due to customers for contract work 40,027 60,948 - -
Prepayments for operating leases 1,287 1,682 - -
Other liabilities 469,179 473,577 2,891 1,143
Total liabilities — Related parties 7,217 3,518 2,747 1,167
Total 838,483 840,558 6,423 3,209
Long-term 15,582 25,016 2,250 866
Short-term 822,901 815,542 4,173 2,343
Total 838,483 840,558 6,423 3,209

The account “Other Liabilities” is analysed as dalk:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Trade advances and other creditors 341,052 342,984 2,516 774
Liabilities to contractors 56,357 57,806 312 261
Payables to Joint Ventures 54,612 56,799 - -
Beneficiaries of fees for services provided and
Employee fees payable 17,158 15,989 63 108

469,179 473,577 2,891 1,143

*There have been reclassifications in the compagatata of 31.12.2012 for reasons of comparalfiliote 41B).

Total payables are analysed in the following curiest

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
EUR 593,566 605,795 6,423 3,209
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD) 28,953 30,576 - -
BAHREIN DINAR (BHD) 206 176 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 40,646 72,983 - -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 18,905 31,655 - -
BRITISH POUND (£) 1,483 1 - -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 27,863 14,592 - -
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 26,696 33,859 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 83,503 34,771 - -
OMAN RIYAL (OMR) 158 236 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 5,631 8,185 - -
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 5,102 7,721 - -
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 322 8 - -
TURKISH LIRA (TRY) 222 - - -
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 867 - - -
FYROM DINAR (MKD) 4,360 - -
838,483 840,558 6,423 3,209

Trade and Other liabilities measured at net boakt osing the effective interest rate method amaoirf499.5
million for 2013 (2012: €583.4 million).

The book value of long-term liabilities approachesir fair value.

28 Deferred taxation

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are conspéed when there is an applicable legal right tomensate the
current tax receivables against the current tailliees and when the deferred income taxes invoheesame tax

authority. The offset amounts for the Group areftfiewing:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*

Deferred tax liabilities: 110,579 109,015
110,579 109,015

Deferred tax receivables: 58,349 42,341
58,349 42,341

52,230 66,674

Total change in deferred income tax is presentémibe

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*

Opening balance 66,674 68,520
Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss (15,896) 2,929
Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit) 1,219 5,901)
Acquisition/ disposal of subsidiary 245 1,178
Foreign exchange differences (12) (50)
Closing balance 52,230 66,674

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidesng the year, without taking into account offise of
balances with the same tax authority, are thevietig:
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Deferred tax liabilities:

Accelerated  Construction Other Total
tax contracts
depreciation
1 January 2012 176,991 27,617 11,974 216,582
Income statement debit/(credit) (13,672) 184 684 2,803)
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 10 - 1,170 181
Foreign exchange differences (50) - - (50)
31 December 2012 163,279 27,801 13,829 204,909
1 January 2013 163,279 27,801 13,829 204,909
Income statement debit/(credit) 29,726 (2,843) 18)1 18,769
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - - 246 246
Foreign exchange differences (19) - - (19)
31 December 2013 192,986 24,958 5,961 223,905
Deferred tax receivables:
Provisions  Accelere Tax losse Cash Flow Actuarial  Constructio Other Total
ted tax hedging profits /(losses)  n contracts
deprecia reserves reserves
tion

1 January 2012* 3 8,123 13,820 21,557 137 27,014 ,409 148,062
Income statement
debit/(credit) - 3,191 (13,055) - - (4,355)  (1,513) (15,732)
Other comprehensive income
(debit)/ credit - 1) - 5,639 257 - 6 5,901
Acquisition/ absorption of
subsidiary - 3 - - - - - 3
31 December 2012* 3 11,314 765 27,196 395 22,660 ,906 138,234
1 January 2013 3 11,314 765 27,196 395 22,660 75,90 138,234
Income statement
debit/(credit) 847 8,089 2,362 - - 5,263 18,104 688,
Other comprehensive income
(debit)/ credit - 8 - (1,191) (42) - 7 (1,219)
Acquisition/ absorption of
subsidiary - 1 - - - - - 1
Foreign exchange differences - (7) - - - - (7)
31 December 2013 851 19,413 3,120 26,005 352 27,9234,012 171,675

The offset amounts for the Company are the follgwin
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COMPANY FIGURES

All amounts in EUR thousand,

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Deferred tax liabilities: - 488
- 488
Deferred tax receivables: 852 -
852 -
(852) 488
Total change in deferred income tax is presentéaibe
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Opening balance 488 391
Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss (2,341) 99
Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit) - (2)
Closing balance (852) 488

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidesng the year, without taking into account offieg of
balances with the same tax authority, are theiotig:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accelerated Other Total
tax
depreciation
1 January 2012 857 193 1,050
Debit/(credit) in profit and loss 166 (76) 90
31 December 2012 1,022 117 1,140
1 January 2013 1,022 117 1,140
Debit/(credit) in profit and loss (1,022) 700 (322)
31 December 2013 - 818 818
Deferred tax receivables:
Accelerated Other Actuarial Total
tax profits
depreciation /(losses)
reserves
1 January 2012* 601 52 6 659
Income statement debit/(credit) - 9) 1) 9)
Other comprehensive income (debit)/ credit - - 1 1
31 December 2012* 601 43 7 651
1 January 2013 601 43 7 651
Income statement debit/(credit) 1,003 16 - 1,019
31 December 2013 1,604 59 7 1,670
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*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lI8pByee Benefits" (note 41).

29 Retirement benefit obligations

All amounts in EUR thousand,

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FinBRosition are the following:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position
for:
Retirement benefits 7,752 9,407 152 145
Total 7,752 9,407 152 145

The amounts recognised in the Income Statemerthar®llowing:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Income statement charge for:
Retirement benefits 216 4,591 16 18
Total 216 4,591 16 18

The amounts reported in the Statement of FinaRmaltion are:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Present value of non-financed liabilities 7,752 9,407 152 145
Liability in Statement of Financial Position 7,752 9,407 152 145

The amounts reported in the Income Statement are:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Current employment cost 832 1,513 7 4
Financial cost 328 390 5 6
Past service cost (1,062) (207) - -
Cut-down losses 119 2,895 3 8
Total included in staff benefits 216 4,591 16 18

The movement in liability as presented in the Statiet of Financial Position is as follows:
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Opening balance

Indemnities paid

Actuarial (profit)/loss charged to Other
Comprehensive Income Statement.

Total expense charged in the income statement

Closing balance

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
9,407 8,327 145 130
(1,254) (4,797) - (10)
(618) 1,286 9) 7
216 4,591 16 18
7,752 9,407 152 145

The main actuarial assumptions used for accourgimgposes for the consolidated figures and the cogipa

figures, are the following:

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Discounting interest 3,30% 3.60%
0.00% to 2016
Future salary raises and 2.509% afterwards 0.00%

! Average annual long-term inflation = 2.50%

The average weighted duration of pension benefitgrithe consolidated figures 18.30 years andhflercompany

figures 12.92 years.

Analysis of expected maturity of non-discountedgiem benefits:

Under one year
2 to 5 years
Over 5 years
Total

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
200 326 13 13
140 125 - -
14.834 18.755 233 236
15.174 19.206 246 249

The sensitivity analysis of pension benefit fronarges in the main assumptions are:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

Change in the Increase in Decrease Change inthe Increasein  Decrease
assumption the in the assumption the in the
according to assumption assumption according to assumption assumption
Discounting interest 0,50% -4,84% +4,84% 0,50% 3,97% +3,97%
Payroll change rate 0,50% 3,96% -3,96% 0,50% ,14% -3,14%

Actuarial (profit)/loss recognised in the Other Goehensive Income Statement are:

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
(Profit)/loss from the change in the
demographic assumptions 30 (55) - (16)
(Profit)/loss from the change in the
financial assumptions (1.101) 1.220 (16) 23
Net profit/ (loss) 453 122 7 -
Total (618) 1,286 9) 7
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If the company applied the corridor approach (keftive revision of IAS 19) the effect would have bdlee

following:

Liability in Statement of Financial
Position

Pension benefit expense

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
FIGURES FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13

7.189 128
478 19

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lI@pByee Benefits" (note 41).

30 Provisions

All amounts in EUR thousand.

1 January 2012

Additional provisions for financial year
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

Unused provisions reversed
Foreign exchange differences
Used provisions for financial year
31 December 2012

1 January 2013

Additional provisions for fiscal year
Unused provisions reversed
Foreign exchange differences
Used provisions for fiscal year

31 December 2013

Analysis of total provisions:
Long-term

Short-term

Total

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Other Other
provisions Total provisions Total
158,172 158,172 519 519
10,556 10,556
105 105
(270) (270)
(385) (385)
(4,531) (4,531)
163,647 163,647 519 519
163,647 163,647 519 519
13,619 13,619 3,542 3,542
(362) (362) (339) (339)
(321) (321)
(2,839) (2,839)
173,744 173,744 3,722 3,722

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
125,731 121,202 180 519
48,012 42,445 3,542
173,744 163,647 3,722 519

Of Other provisions, the amount of €117,203 thods@012: €115,315 thousand) pertains to the pronisiade
for heavy maintenance under the concession contfadfT TIKI ODOS SA, the amount of € 2,240 thousand
(2012: €2,269 thousand) in the tax provision foaudited tax years, €5,373 thousand tax provisig¥ for
distribution or capitalisation of untaxed reser¢este 25) and €48,928 thousand (2012: €46,063stmal) to
other provisions. Other provisions also includedah®unt of €28,371 thousand pertaining to a promishade for
future inability to perform a partner’s obligati@broad, with which we participate in the same Jbiahture

(2012: €28,371 thousand).

In the company figures, an amount of € 180 thodisana provision for unaudited tax years (2012:1%€5
thousand) (note 39.b), €2,339 thousand tax pmmvisbB% for the distribution or capitalisation oftaxed reserve
(note 35) and €1,203 thousand other provisions.
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31 EXxpenses per category
All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1-Jan to 31-Dec-13 1-Jan to 31-Dec-12*

Distribution  Administrative Distribution  Administrative
Note  Cost of sales costs expenses Total Cost of sales costs expenses Total
Employee
ben%fit): 34 141,229 1,327 17,186 159,742 136,480 1,626 121,6 159,720

Inventories used 367,535 - 150 367,685 381,598 9 243 381,851

Depreciation of

tangible assets 6 37,172 45 2,254 39,471 39,325 2 6 2,995 42,382
Impairment of

PPE 6 -
Depreciation of

intangible assets 7 69,639 3 53 69,695 63,158 - 95 63,253

- 6,033 6,033 1,144 - - 1,144

Depreciation of
investment

properties 8
Repair and
maintenance

expenses of
tangible assets 20,082 47 393 20,522 20,159 33 3 46 20,656

1,175 - 534 1,709 1,067 - 397 1,465

Operating lease
rents 18,076 610 1,677 20,363 14,424 322 1,363 ,1086

Third party fees 348,047 2,388 20,491 370,926 7,8 2,574 20,607 380,250
Other 61,904 1,927 8,163 71,994 51,461 2,186 68,1 63,812

Total 1,064,859 6,348 56,933 1,128,140 1,065,886 6,812 57,941 1,130,639

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 31-Dec-13 1-Jan to 31-Dec-12*

Administrative Administrative
Note  Cost of sales expenses Total Cost of sales expenses Total

Employee benefits 34 - 680 680 - 594 594

Depreciation of tangible
assets 6 - 102 102 - 186 186

Impairment of PPE 6 - 473 473 - - -
Depreciation of investment
properties - 969 969 - 969 969

Repair and maintenance
expenses of tangible assets - 3 3

Third party fees 160 1,361 1,521 160 1,154 1,314
Other - 1,684 1,684 - 1,106 1,106

- 32 32

Total 160 5,272 5,432 160 4,041 4,201

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lI8pByee Benefits" (note 41).
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32 Other operating income/ expenses

All amounts in EUR thousand. CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Janto 1-Janto

Note 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Income / (expenses) from participations & secisifegpart
from dividends) 2,157 2,109 - -
Profits/(losses) from the sale of financial assategorized as
available for sale & other financial assets 5,986 - - -
Profit from the disposal of % in ELDORADO/ EUROPEAN
GOLDFIELDS (EGU) & adjustment at fair value of the
remaining holding 19,091 - -
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of subsidiaries (772) 1,618 - -
Profit /(loss) from the disposal of Associates - (383) - -
Profit/ (losses) from the sale of PPE (15) 1,511 - 2
Profits/(losses) from sale of intangible assets 4) - -
Amortisation of grants received 26 3,749 3,873 - -
Goodwill impairment 7 (523) - - -
Impairment of assets available for sale (-) 13 (3,622) - - -
Impairment of investment properties (-) 8 (35,883) (2,340) (13,976) -
Rents 6,808 7,161 1,994 2,374
Impairment provisions and disposals of receivables (19,089) (12,927) - -
Special levy on the turnover of RES companies (Law
4093/2012) (-) (6,590) (2,820) - -
Other profit/ (losses) 9,905 (4,822) (933) (320)
Total (37,890) 12,067 (12,916) 2,057

33 Financial income/ (expenses) - net

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Jan to

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Interest expenses
- Bank borrowings (91,783) (95,033) (16,009) (14,366)
- Financial Leases (82) (80) - -

(91,865) (95,113) (16,009) (14,366)

Interest income 36,411 40,915 8 17
Net interest (expenses)/ income (55,454) (54,198) (16,001) (14,349)
Interest of provision for heavy maintenance of ARKTODOS SA (3,871) (4,550) - -
Net foreign exchange differences profit/ (lossyirborrowings 345 (261) - -
Profit/ (loss) from interest rate swaps to hedgghdbows — Transfer
from reserve 227 8 - -
Financial income/ (expenses) - net (58,753) (59,002) (16,001) (14,349)
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34 Employee benefits

All amounts in EUR thousand.

CONSOLIDATED

FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to

31-Dec-13  31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Wages and salaries 117,539 115,031 540 495
Social security expenses 31,499 30,465 110 74
Pension costs - defined benefit plans 216 4,591 16 18
Other employee benefits 10,487 9,633 14 7
Total 159,742 159,720 680 594

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lT@pByee Benefits" (note 41).

35 Income tax
All amounts in EUR thousand.

On 23.01.2013 the new tax law 4110/23.01.2013 veasqd. The most important changes are that acgotalin
the new law, the income tax rate for legal entitiéls be 26% for FY 2013 and thereafter, and thwe tithheld

tax on dividends approved after 1 January 2014 béll10%. The negative effect from the recalculatdn
deferred taxes for the Group and the Company onirntbeme tax of the Income statement is shown in the

following table.

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Tax for the year 80,520 22,752 2,000 -
Deferred tax due to change in tax rate from 20%68 24,893 - 149
Deferred tax (40,789) 2,929 (1,490) 99
Total 64,624 25,680 659 99

Except for the charge to Deferred tax of the Incataement of an amount of €24,893 thousand, thageh of
the tax rate had a positive effect on Other Congmeive Income /(Expenses) of the period by €8,Adugand.
Therefore, the overall effect of the change in tdpe rate on Total Comprehensive Income / (expenseshe
period amounted to a loss of €16,616 thousanchtoGroup and €149 thousand for the company.

According to new tax law 4172/2013 as amended Ryldaw 4223/2013, dividends distributed to companies
within the same group, from January 2014 and afied®; are exempted from tax, on condition thatpheent
company participates in the company distributing dividend with at least 10% for two consecutivarge and
the other conditions as set out in Article 48, afil.4172/2013.

According to paragraph 12, Article 72 of Law 4113, non-distributed or capitalised reserves formedo 31

December 2013, which come from profits which weot taxed at the time created due to their exempiion
implementation of the provisions of law 2238/1994ynoffset tax losses or be independently taxed dyng

19% tax if they are distributed or capitalised. T®mup and the company formed a tax provision ob &y373

thousnad and 2,339 thousand respectively.
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Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonymes and Linliie@ility Companies whose annual financial stateteen
are mandatorily audited by legally appointed auditre required to obtain an “Annual Certificat&ter Article
82(5) of Law 2238/1994, which is issued followingga audit performed by the legally appointed awditr audit
firm that audits the annual financial statemerdpon completion of the tax audit, the legally apped auditor or
auditing firm issues to the company a “Tax Compl@Report” and then the legally appointed auditcawaliting
firm submits it to the Ministry of Finance electically no later than ten days from the expiry dait¢he deadline
set for the approval of the company’s financiatestaents by the General Meeting of Shareholders.Minéstry
of Finance will choose a sample of certain companégpresenting at least 9% which will be re-audtiigdhe
competent auditing services of the Ministry. Theditiin question will have been completed no latean
eighteen months of the date of submission of thex"Tompliance Report” to the Ministry of Finance.

The table presenting the analysis of unauditedhired years of all companies under consolidatisrshiown in
Note 9.

Tax on profit before taxes of the company is ddfdrfrom the theoretical amount that would ariseéf use the
weighted average tax rate of the country from whighcompany originates, as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12*
Accounting profit / (losses) before tax 15,644 58,085 (32,164) (16,277)
Tax calculated on profits under current tax ratgdiad in the
respective countries 4,051 10,295 (8,363) (3,255)
Adjustments
Income not subject to tax (3,393) (5,640) (519) (4)
Expenses non deductible for tax purposes 21,020 5763, 4,029 139
Tax losses for which no deferred tax receivableewecognised 10,769 9,177 3,024 3,219
Tax provision for untaxed reserves based on Lave/&2D13 5373 - 2,339
Prior period and other taxes 3,996 963
Utilisation of previously unrecognized tax losses 2,086) (2,691)
Effect of change to tax due to change in tax naf20% to 26% 24,893 - 149 -
Taxes 64,624 25,680 659 99

The average tax rate for the Group for the yea328125.89% (2012: 17.72%) while the average weighax
rate is 413.09% (2012: 44.28%). The increase isipaue to the encumbrance on deferred taxatiosezhiby
the change in the tax rate, on the provision fratian of untaxed reserves as well as the decrqasditability of
the Group’s subsidiares, which are located in agemivith a low tax rate, compared to the previpes:.

The tax corresponding to Other Comprehensive Indeme

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1-Jan to 31-Dec-13 1-Jan to 31-Dec-12*
Tax
Before  Tax (debit) Before (debit) /
tax / credit After tax tax credit After tax
Foreign exchange differences (3,502) - (3,502) (3,309) - (3,309)
Changes in value of financial assets available for
sale (80,589) - (80,589) (41,934) - (41,934)
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1-Jan to 31-Dec-13

1-Jan to 31-Dec-12*

Tax
Before  Tax (debit) Before (debit) /
tax / credit After tax tax credit After tax
Cash flow hedge 68,060 (9,350) 58,710 (35,293) 5,639 (29,654)
Effect of tax rate change of Cash flow hedging - 8,158 8,158 - - -
Actuarial profit/(loss) 762 (161) 601 (1,286) 257 (1,029)
Effect of tax rate change on actuarial
profits/(losses) - 118 118 - - -
Other (87) 16 (71) (63) 5 (57)
Other Comprehensive Income (15,357) (1,218) (1647 (81,886) 5,902 (75,984)
COMPANY FIGURES
1-Jan to 31-Dec-13 1-Jan to 31-Dec-12*
Tax
Tax (debit) (debit) /
Before tax / credit After tax Before tax credit After tax
Foreign exchange differences - - - 1) - Q)
Effect of change to tax rate - 2 2 - - -
Actuarial profit/(loss) 9 (2) 7 (7) 1 (6)
Other Comprehensive Income 9 - 9 (8) 1 (7)

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lT@pByee Benefits" (note 41).

36 Earnings per share

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

1-Jan to
31-Dec-13 31/12/2012*
Profit/ (loss) attributable to parent company egtitlders (in € ,000) (47,972) 11,914
Weighted average of ordinary shares (in ,000) BR,4 172,431
Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €) (0,2782) 0,0691

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to
31-Dec-13 31/12/2012*
Profit/ (loss) attributable to parent company egtitiders (in € ,000) (32,823) (16,376)
Weighted average of ordinary shares (in ,000) BR,4 172,431
Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €) (0,1904) (0.0950)

*Adjusted amounts due to the amendment to IAS lI8pByee Benefits" (note 41).
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37 Dividends per share

The Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholdwlsl on 27.06.2013 decided to not distribute diwidl for
FY 2012. No dividend was distributed either for E§11 (2010 divident of euro 5,310,039.39 was distdd, i.e.
euro 0.03 per share). Pursuant to article 16(8)fblaw 2190/1920, the amount of dividend attriblgaln
treasury shares increases the dividend of othere8bklers. This dividend is subject to dividendhhiitlding tax,
in accordance with the applicable tax legislatibhe Company’s Board of Directors will propose te thnnual
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders not ttriliste any dividends for FY 2013.

38 Commitments

The following amounts represent commitments foretsperating leases from Group subsidiaries, wiieh
leased to third parties.

All amounts in EUR thousand,

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Up to 1 year 977 1,550
From 1-5 years 1,874 2,281
Over 5 years 471 611
Total 3,322 4,442

39 Contingent receivables and liabilities

(a) Proceedings have been initiated against thegsfar work accidents which occurred during theocet®n of
construction projects by companies or joint vergurewhich the Group participates. Because the @isudully

insured against work accidents, no substantial mbcances are anticipated as a result of rulingsnagshe
Group. Other litigations or disputes referred tbitaation, as well as the pending court or arbitratrulings are
not expected to have a material effect on the firrstanding or the operations of the Group orGmenpany,
and for this reason no relevant provisions have ieened.

(b) Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonyme and leidhitiability Companies whose annual financial stetats
are mandatorily audited are required to obtain Anntial Certificate” under Article 82(5) of Law 223894,

This “Annual Certificate” is issued following a tadit performed by the legally appointed auditoaodit firm

that audits the annual financial statements. Uppmpdetion of the tax audit, the statutory auditoraadit firm

issues to the company a “Tax Compliance Report”thed the statutory auditor or audit firm submitsoi the
Ministry of Finance electronically. The “Tax Conwgatice Report” must be submitted to the Ministry ofafce
no later than the tenth day of the seventh mortdr &hancial year end. The Ministry of Financelwihoose a
sample of certain companies representing at I€asbPall companies submitting a “Tax Compliance &#pto

be re-audited by the competent auditing servicethefMinistry. The audit must be completed no latean

eighteen months from the date of submission of Tlax Compliance Report” to the Ministry of Finance.

The unaudited years for the consolidated Group @migg are shown in Note 9. The Group’s tax liab#itfor
these years have not been finalised; therefoepbssible that additional charges are imposed \lemnelevant
audits are performed by the tax authorities. Thavigions formed by the Group and the parent comgany
unaudited years stand at €2,240 thousand and #b88and respectively (note 30). Parent company EHI@R
has not been tax audited for financial year 20tlbas been was audited for years 2011 and 2012mirso Law

2238/1994 and has obtained a tax compliance wati from PricewaterhouseCoopers SA without any

qualification. PricewaterhouseCoopers SA has ajreamiertaken the parent’s tax audit for financiehry2013.
Also, a tax audit for closing year 2013 is undervigythe competent audit firms for the Group’s sdiasies
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based in Greece. The Company’s management is pecemrg significant tax liabilities, upon completiof the
tax audit, other than those recorded and presémtibé financial statements

The Group companies which are domiciled in Greaoe mandatorily audited by audit firms and haveietd a
tax compliance certificate for financial years 20drid 2012, are marked with an asterisk (*) in N@ten the
column of unaudited years. In accordance with g@ieable law, financial year 2012 should be coestd as the
definitive year for tax audit purposes eighteen therafter the “Tax Compliance Report” has been siibdto
the Ministry of Finance. Based on decision POL 1286.0.2013 of the Ministry of Finance, fiscal y@ar1 will
be considered final on 30 April 2014.

(c) The Group has contingent liabilities in relatim banks, other guarantees, and other mattersutise from its
normal business activity and from which no substhburden is expected to arise.

(d) According to Decision No. 6458/2011 of the AtkeCourt of Appeals, pertaining to an applicatidn o
subsidiary REDS SA against the Municipality of klifor the determination of a temporary unit prifo
expropriated land of the company at the “Kambangia’, a compensation of approximately euro 3.98ioni
approximately was awarded. REDS submitted aniegjun for the issue of a payment order and payroeter
N0.12303/2012 was issued, against which the Muaiitipof Pallini, filed an application to set asid&d an
application of suspension which was set for 310022 and the application for a temporary suspension
enforcement which the Municipality filed, was dissed on the hearing date of 24.07.2012. On 31.12,28e
trial of the opposition proceedings was postpor@d16.01.2013, and in this last hearing date, theeovas
discussed and decision No. 1474/2013 was issuedhvdtcepted the application to set aside and osoh¢be
payment order, whereas the suspension applicatiendiscussed and decision No. 3578/2012 was isshigth
suspends the enforcement of the payment order ideciREDS SA has filed an appeal against decision
N0.1474/2013 that was issued on the applicatiaetaside of Article 632 of the Code of Civil Prdaee against
payment order No. 12303/2012 which was heard 00112015 and a preliminary decision was issued, fwhic
postpones the progress of the trial due to the propiate legalisation of the authorised attorndythe
Municipality of Pallini. The hearing date will beettrmined with new summons. During the hearing on
17.09.2013, before the Single-member Court of Hinstance of Athens on the application to set asidd
suspension application filed by the MunicipalityFdillini on the enforcement acts of Article 933tlné Code of
Civil Procedure, decision No. 5470/2013 was isswdudch accepted the application to set aside, agaihich
our Company filed an appeal to be heard on 16.04.20The amount of the awarded compensation isidered

a potential asset and therefore - in accordande Mi$ 37 - at this stage, this receivable is ndieoted in the
financial statements of the company (and the Group)
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40 Transactions with related parties

The aggregate amounts of sales and purchases &anstart, as well as the closing balances of vabkis and
liabilities at year end, which have resulted freemsactions with related parties under IAS 24 aaréollows:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

b)

<)

a)

b)

c)

41

Sales of goods and services

Sales to subsidiaries

Sales to associates

Sales to related parties

Purchases of goods and services
Purchases from subsidiaries
Purchases from associates
Purchases from related parties

Income from dividends
Key management compensation

Receivables

Receivables from subsidiaries
Receivables from associates
Receivables from affiliates
Liabilities

Payables to subsidiaries
Payables to associates
Payables to affiliates

Payables to key management

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

1-Jan to 1-Janto
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
77,439 53,301 2,731 3,670
- - 2,731 3,626
8,018 1,493 - -
69,421 51,808 - 44
24,122 32,706 ,1912 1,280
- - 2,191 1,280
13 1 - -
24,108 32,705 - -
- - 1,996 18
7,449 7,236 968 718

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
55,069 49,409 6,609 6,346
- - 6,480 6,219
7,778 5,633 1 1
47,291 43,777 128 126
7,217 3,518 43,247 25,567
- - 43,247 25,567
486 1,580 - -
6,731 1,937 - -
28 64 - -

Adjustments and reclassifications of funds

A. Employee retirement compensation liabilities

Due to the amendment of IAS 19 with regard the ga@tin and measurement of the cost of defined fitgplans

and retirement benefit obligations (elimination tok corridor approach), the Group and the Compaawe h
adjusted the Statement of Financial Position, tieoine Statement and Comprehensive Income Stateforent
previous years as follows:
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Statement of Financial Position of 2012

ASSETS
Deferred tax assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Other reserves

Profit/ (loss) carried forward
Non controlling interests
Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations

Notes

28

24

28
29

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

COMPANY FIGURES

Adjustment

Adjustment

Income statement for the 2012 12-month period

Administrative expenses
Income tax

Earnings/ (losses) for the financial
year attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests

Profit/ (loss) after taxes per share -
basic (in €)

Note

31

35

36

Statement of comprehensive income for the 2012 12-

month period

Actuarial profit/(loss)

Deferred taxes on actuarial gains /
(losses)

Actuarial gains / (losses) net of taxes

Total Comprehensive Income/
(Expenses) for the period
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non controlling interests

28
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31/12/2012- dueto  SULZ201Z- 31/12/2012- dueto  SULZ201Z
Published data amendment to J data Published data amendment J data
IAS 19 to IAS 19
41,979 361 42,341 - - -
361 -
216,989 (1,244) 215,746 103,109 (31) 103,077
71,064 125 71,189 5,537 2 5,539
288,020 (327) 287,693 - - -
} ; . 496 ™ 488
7,600 1,807 9,407 109 36 145
361 -
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
31/12/2012-  Adjustment 31/12/2012- 31/12/2012- Adjustment 31/12/2012-
Published data due to Adjusted data Published due to Adjusted data
amendment data amendment
to IAS 19 to IAS 19
(58,108) 167 (57,941) 4,044) 3 (4,041)
(25,647) (33) (25,680) (98) ) (99)
11,789 125 1,9m (16,378) 2 (16,376)
20,483 8 20,491 - - -
0,0684 0,0007 0,0691 (0,0950) - ,0960)
- (1,286) (1,286) - (8) 8)
- 257 257 - 2 2
- (1,029) (1,029) - (6) (6)
(55,887) 1626 (56,513) (16,379) 4 (16,382)
13,203 (269) 12,934 - - -
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Statement of Financial Position of 2011

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Adjustment Adjustment
1/1/2012- due to 1/1/2012- due to 1/1/2012-
Published amendment to Adjusted 1/1/2012- amendment Adjusted
Notes data IAS 19 data Published data to IAS 19 data
ASSETS
Deferred tax assets 34,091 137 34,228
137

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Other reserves 24 222,226 (492) 221,734 103,109 5) (2 103,084
Non controlling interests 261,657 (57) 261,600
Deferred tax liabilities - - - 397 (6) 391
Retirement benefit obligations 7,640 687 8,327 98 32 130

137

B. Other reclassifications

In note 5, Reporting per segment, and specificdlly table of the assets and liabilities of the sagms on
31.12.2012, there were reclassifications for reasmrcomparability. Also, in note 27, in the breddwn of the
Other liabilities there were reclassificationslie tonsolidated figures of 31.12.2012 for the sezason.

42 Other notes

1. No liens exist on fixed assets other than mortgagesa parent company property on 25 Ermou Street, f
loan collateral of subsidiary ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKANEMOS S.A., at location “Dilinata” of the
Kefalonia Prefecture and on property of subsidig’yALOU COMMERCIAL & TOURISM SA, and
specifically on building plots OTE71 and OTE72@&tdtion Gyalou in Spata, Attica.

2. The number of employees on 31.12.2013 was 16 peifsorthe Company and 4,264 persons for the Group
(excluding Joint Ventures), and the respective nren:ibn 31.12.2012 they were 14 and 3,972 respéctive

3. The decision of the Arbitration Court which had beset up under Article 33 of the Concession Agregme
related to project “Design, construction, finangimgpmmissioning, maintenance and operation of the
underwater Thessaloniki artery”, was published énJRAly 2010, which awarded compensation of €43.7
million to the concession company THERMAIKI ODOS Sid which the Group participates with 50%.
Following the aforementioned decision, all receleabfrom the Greek State which have been awarded in
favour of THERMAIKI ODOS SA came up to €67.8 milioThe Group’s interest of €33.9 million as of 31
December 2013 is posted under “Other receivables”.

4. On 26.3.2013, after the Eurogroup meeting, thesadjent programme for Cyprus as agreed with the iGlypr
authorities was announced. This programme aim@iring the viability of the financial sector in @ys
and restoring the country’s sustainable developnsrd healthy finances for the years to come. The
adjustment programme involved the participationdefpositors of non-guaranteed deposits (over €100
thousand) at Cyprus Popular Bank (CPB) and the Bdir&yprus. Therefore, this resulted to depositewri
offs for the Group amounting to €472 thousand wigard to deposits at Cyprus Popular Bank (CPB) and
escrows of €1,084 at the Bank of Cyprus.

5. 0On 19.4.2013, AKTOR SA, Alpha Bank and PiraeusiBaigned a Memorandum of Understanding, which
includes in summary the following:
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(a) the acquisition of shares by AKTOR represent®@i§o of the share capital of company AEGEK
CONSTRUCTION SA, having first converted them int@ferred shares without voting right at a price of
€1,

(b) the acquisition of shares by AKTOR representr@p2% of the share capital of listed company AKGE
SA for €200,000 and

(c) the assumption by AKTOR of the provision of soltancy services to AEGEK CONSTRUCTION for
ongoing projects, aiming at their smooth, timelg amhindered completion.
The transaction was completed with the signindneffinal transfer of preference shares on 31.7.2013

On 22.7.2013, the extraordinary General MeetindA®fIKI ODOS SA decided to distribute its tax-free
reserve fund formed in previous years amountingl®8,550 thousand. An amount of 86,840 thousand, wa
paid as dividend to shareholders.

On 23.9.2013, the decision of the Deputy Head ofiéte of the Athens Central Sector authorising the
incorporation and approving the articles of asdamiaof the public limited company with name EFA
CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS, NATURAL GAS AND COMMERCIALGYIVITIES SA, resulting from a
split of segment “NATURAL GAS ACTIVITIES” of the disidiary PANTECHNIKI SA (former EFA
TECHNIKI SA), was entered in the General Electro@ommercial Registry under code 99874, in
accordance with the provisions of Legislative Dect297/1972.

On 1.10.2013, subsidiary company HELECTOR S.A.camsortium with the Slovenian RIKO d.o.0., in
which HELECTOR is a leader by 54.54%, signed in ¢ftg of Novo Mesto, Slovenia, a contract for the
construction of the project “Waste Management Geftr the Dolenjska Region - Phase 2”. The contiact
amount stands at €26 million (excl. VAT). The patj@volves the construction of a mechanical-bidgtay
treatment plant with a total annual capacity of0@D, tons. The project implementation time shallliSe
months.

The total fees payable to the Group’s legal auslitor the mandatory audit on the annual finanditiesnents
for FY 2013 stand at €888.2 thousand (2012: €8%4o@sand) and for other services at €107.1 thousand
(2012: €170.5 thousand).

43 Post balance sheet events

1.

After the decisions of the Board of Directors obsidiaries REDS SA and GYALOU COMMERCIAL &
TOURISM SA on the merger and absorption of the sddoy the first, and after the Merger Agreement
Draft of 4.12.2013 was subjected, according to phevisions, by each transformed company, to the
publication formalities under Article 69(3) and J7&f Law 2190/1920, the relevant announcements were
published, announcement with registration codeb®am7251/10.12.2013 of the Ministry of Development,
Competitiveness, Infrastructure, Transportation Bietworks, General Secretariat for Commerce, Génera
Directorate of Internal Commerce and announceméit nggistration code number 149195/02.01.2014 of
EVEA- Commercial and Industrial Chamber of AtheRgegistry Department/General Commercial Registry
Service.

Decision number 6749M1E/5/01879E/N.3299/2004/13-2-2014 of the Ministry of Developmamended
decision number 40728I1E/5/01879E/N.3299/2004/20-9-2013 for the inclusion of subsigigl . TECH
ANEMOS SA under the provisions of Law 3299/04 fee tonstruction of the wind farm with a capacity of
40 mw at location “Lyrkeio”, and the approved ambismow €14,363 thousand.

On 7.3.2014 a draft bill was submitted for condidta on the “regulations for the rationalisation tbg
special account of Article 40 of Law 2773/1999" igthprovides among other things for an extensiotinéo
Operating contracts of RES for 5 more years afteir texpiry, with a guaranteed selling price of 880/h

and priority in load distribution and the issuecoédit invoices on the turnover of FY 2013.
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The Board of Directors of ELLAKTOR, at its meetinf 27.3.2014, authorized the company’s Managing
Director, Mr. Leonidas Bobolas, to represent ELLABR at the Extraordinary General Assembly of the
subsidiary ELTECH ANEMOS SA to be held on 28.3.20order to vote in favornter alia, on the
following issues:

a) To increase the share capital of the companyEEIH ANEMOS, by payment of cash and issuance of
new registered voting shares, covered by a pulffezing within the meaning of Law 3401/2005 in Gecee
(the “Public Offering”), and cancellation of thespmption right for existing shareholders.

b) Listing of the shares of the company EL. TECH.EENMOS SA on the Athens Stock Exchange
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E. Figures and Information for the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2013

A ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

General Registry of Commerce No.: 251501000 (SA. Reg. No 874/06/B/86/16 )
25 ERMOU STR. - 145 64 KIFISSIA
FIGURES AND INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR FROM 1 JANUARY 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013
(published pursuant to article 135 of Law 2190 on entities preparing annual financial statements, consolidated or separate, under IAS/IFRS)

The following details and information, as these arise from the financial statements, aim at providing general information about the financial standing and results of ELLAKTOR SA and the ELLAKTOR Group of companies. Therefore, we recommend that before proceeding to any investment or other transaction
with the issuer, readers should visit the issuer's website where the financial statements and the certified auditor-accountant report are posted as necessary.

COMPANY DETALS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (amounts in ,000 EUR)

Company's Registered Office: 25 Ermou St, 13km of the Athens-Lamia National Road, 145 64 Kifissia

874/06/B/86/16
Ministry of Development and Competitiveness, General Secretariat for
Commerce, General Management for Domestic Commerce, Companies &

Societes Anonymes Reg.No.:

Competent Authority:

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES

Proposed dividend per share - (in €) - - - -

Credit Division 01/01- 01/01- 01/01- 01/01-
Date of approval of the annual financial statements (from which 31/12/2013 31/12/2012 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
summary information was drawn): 27 March 2014 Operating activities
Certified auditor: Despina Marinou (SOEL Reg.No. 17681) Profit/ (Loss) before taxes 15.644 58.085 (32.164) (16.277)
Audit firm: PriceWaterhouseCoopers SA Plus/ less adjustments for:
Type of audit report: Unqualified opinion Depreciation and amortisation 107.127 103.226 1.071 1.155
Company’s website: www.ellaktor.com Imgairment of tangible assets, investment properties, joint ventures & financial assets
available for sale 46.062 3.484 14.449 -
BoD composition: Provisions 862 (6.114) 16 8
Anastasios Kallitsantsis, Chairman of the BoD (executive member) Edouardos Sarantopoulos, Director (executive member) Foreign exchange differences (2.964) (2.243) - 1)
Dimitrios Koutras, Vice-chairman of the BoD (executive member) loannis Tzivelis, Director (non-executive member) Results (income, expenses, gains and losses) from investing activities (40.501) (46.508) (587) 300
Dimitrios Kallitsantsis, Vice-chairman of the BoD (executive member) Theodoros Pantalakis, Director (independent, non-executive member) :;;T;::g;:{lef;::ﬁllr; i;‘aﬁ?:ﬁgﬁgigzig'\‘ GOLDFIELDS LTD (EGU) & ~ (19.091) ~ ~
Leonidas Bobolas, Managing Director (executive member) Dimitrios Grigorioadis, Director (independent, non-executive member) Debit interest and related expenses 91.865 95.113 16.009 14.366
Maria Bobola, Director (non-executive member) loardanis Aivazis, Director (independent, non-executive member) Impairment provisions and disposals of receivables 19.089 12.927 - -
Aggelos Giokaris, Director (executive member) :(I;zt::zs adjustments for changes in working capital accounts or related to operating
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (amounts in ,000 EU R) Decrease/ (increase) of inventory 4581 (14.008) R R
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES D (increase) of bl 48.660 (88.459) (68) 5.894
31/12/2013 31/12/2012 31/12/2013 31/12/2012 (Decrease)/ increase of liabilities (except banks) 27.804 145.590 375 (710)
ASSETS Less:
Property, plant and equipment 430.357 463.622 2.462 3.034 Debit interest and related expenses paid (102.920) (98.383) (12.979) (14.125)
Investment property 139.206 171.055 41.934 56.879 Taxes paid (55.318) (29.007) (84) @)
Intangible assets 1.052.525 1.078.685 - - Total Cash Inflows/(Outflows) from Operating Activities (a) 159.990 114.613 (13.961) (9.391)
Other non-current assets 510.011 488.180 974.846 975.002 Investing activities
Inventories 38.505 43.385 - - Sale of % holding in ELDORADO/EGU - 112.696 - -
Trade receivables 556.971 605.078 2.463 2.126 (Acquisition)/ disposal of subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and other investments 59.692 7.931 90 23)
Other current assets 1.430.670 1.504.052 8.483 6.636 (Placements)/ collections of time deposits over 3 months 57.222 (101.100) - -
4.158.245 4.354.057 1.030.188 1.043.677 Purchase of PPE, intangible assets & investment properties (73.947) (95.547) 3) 2
Non-current assets held for sale 4.516 - - - Income from sales of tangible and intangible assets and investments
TOTAL ASSETS 4.162.762 4.354.057 1.030.188 1.043.677 in property 8.638 7.407 - 7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Interest received 31.984 41.211 8 17
Share capital 182.311 182.311 182.311 182.311 Loans (granted to)/ repaid by related parties (9.746) 367 (64) 79)
Other equity 709.914 783.709 572.577 605.391 Dividends received 1.850 1.394 1.497 46
Total equity attributable to parent company equity holders (a) 892.226 966.021 754.889 787.702 Committed deposits (1.690) (33.886) - -
Non controlling interests (b) 258.150 287.693 - - Total inflows/(outflows) from investing activities (b) 74.004 (59.526) 1.528 (34)
Total equity (c) = (a) + (b) 1.150.376 1.253.714 754.889 787.702 Financing activities
(Acquisition)/Disposal of participation share in subsidiaries from/to non-controlling
Long-term borrowings 1.409.560 1.203.629 264.855 161.593 interests (288) (20.998) ) )
Provisions/ Other long-term liabilities 449.557 474.537 2.582 2.018 Proceeds from borrowings 636.666 221.341 252.053 79.400
Short-term borrowings 247.987 552.827 - 89.721 Repayment of borrowings (735.616) (365.904) (237.500) (72.500)
Other current liabilities 905.282 869.350 7.863 2.643 Payments of leases (635) (595) - -
Total liabilities (d) 3.012.386 3.100.343 275.299 255.975 Dividends paid (35.492) (4.915) (68) (175)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (c) + (d) 4.162.762 4.354.057 1.030.188 1.043.677 Tax paid on dividends (10.170) (2.244) - -
Grants received/(refunded) 19.978 8.159 - -
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (amounts in ,000 EUR) Third party participation in share capital increase of subsidiaries 79 745 - -
CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES Total inflows/(outflows) from financing activities (c) (125.477) (154.406) 14.485 6.725
01/01-31/12/2013  01/01-31/12/2012  01/01-31/12/2013 01/01-31/12/2012 Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalen  tsfor the period (a)+ (b)+(c 108517 (99.319) 2.051 (2.700)
Turnover 1.241.826 1.232.817 190 199 Cash and cash equivalents at year start 706.835 806.154 766 3.466
Gross profit 176.967 166.931 30 39 Cash and cash equivalents at year end 815.352 706.835 2.818 766
Profit/ (loss) before tax, financing and investing results 75.988 114.799 (18.158) (1.945)
Profit/ (loss) before tax 15.644 58.085 (32.164) (16.277)
Less: Taxes (64.624) (25.680) (659) (99) STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (amounts in ,000 EUR )
Profit/ loss after taxes (A) (48.980) 32.405 (32.823) (16.376)
Parent company equity holders (47.972) 11.914 (32.823) (16.376) CONSOLIDATED FIGURES COMPANY FIGURES
Non controlling interests (1.008) 20.491 - - 31/12/2013 31/12/2012 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
Other comprehensive income/ (expenses) after taxes (B) (16.574) (75.984) 9 ) Total equity at year start (1/1/2013 and 1/1/2012, respectively) 1.253.714 1.314.464 787.702 804.084
Total comprehensive income/ (expenses) after taxes (A)+(B) (65.554) (43.579) (32.813) (16.382) Total comprehensive income after taxes (65.554) (43.579) (32.813) (16.382)
Parent company equity holders (75.472) (56.513) (32.813) (16.382) Change of participation share in subsidiaries 1.912 (11.483) - -
Non controlling interests 9.919 12.934 - -
Profit (loss) after taxes per share - basic (in €) ©.2782) 0,0691 0.1904) 0,0950) Dividends distributed & minority proportion in allocation of subsidiary results (39.696) (5.687) - -
Earnings before taxes, financing and investing resu Its, and
depreciation and amortisation 183.115 218.025 (17.087) (790) Total equity at year end (31/12/2013 and 31/12/2012 respectively) 1.150.376 1.253.714 754.889 787.702

ADDITIONAL FIGURES AND INFORMATION

1. The basic Accounting Principles are same as those followed as of 31.12.2012.

2. The unaudited years of Group companies are detailed in note 9 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2013. Parent company ELLAKTOR
has not been tax audited for financial year 2010. It has been audited for years 2011 and 2012 pursuant to Law 2238/1994 and has obtained a tax
compliance certificate from PricewaterhouseCoopers SA without any qualification. The parent company is currently being audited for FY 2013 (see
note 39b to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2013).

3. There are no liens on the fixed assets of the Group and the Company except for mortgages on a parent company property as loan collateral and
on subsidiary company properties (see note 42.1 to the annual financial statements of 31.12.2013).

4. Litigations or disputes referred to arbitration, as well as pending court or arbitration rulings are not expected to have a material effect on the
financial standing or the operations of the Group or the Company, and, for this reason, no relevant provisions have been formed.

5. Provisions formed in relation to the unaudited years stand at €2,240 thousand for the Group, and at €180 thousand for the Company. Other
provisions (short-term and long-term) for the Group stand at €171,504 thousand and € 3,542 for the Company (see note 30 to the annual financial
statements as of 31.12.2013).

6. The number of employees on 31.12.2013 was 16 persons for the Company and 4,264 persons for the Group (excluding Joint Ventures), and the
respective numbers on 31.12.2012 were 14 and 3,972 respectively.

7. All manner of transactions (inflows and outflows) in aggregate from year start (01.01.2013), as well as receivables and liabilities balances for the
Group and the parent Company at period end (31.12.2013), as these arise from transactions with related parties, within the meaning of IAS 24, are
as follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR Group Company
a) Income 77.439 2731
b) Expenses 24.122 2191
c) Income from dividends - 1.996
d) Receivables 55.069 6.609
e) Liabilities 7.217 43.247
f) Keymanagement compensation 7.449 968
g) Payables to key management 28 -

8. Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit which is attributable to parent company shareholders by the weighted average of
ordinary shares over the period, excluding treasury shares.

9. The figures posted in the accounts which affected Other comprehensive income/(expenses for the period) net after taxes) for the Group and the
Company, are for the Group: expenses of €3.502 thousand from currency translation differences, expenses of €80,589 thousand from Change in the
value of assets available for sale, income of €66,868 thousand from Cash flow hedge, income of €720 thousand from Actuarial gains, and €71 thousand
from other expenses, and for the Company: income of €9 thousand from Actuarial gains.

10. Group companies and joint ventures, together with the country of establishment, the parent Company's percentage of direct or indirect participation
in their share capital, and their consolidation method are detailed in note 9 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2013 and are available on the
Group's website www.ellaktor.com. The parent Company only holds an indirect stake in the consolidated joint ventures \via its subsidiaries. Figures and
information about non-consolidated companies and joint ventures are set out in note 9d to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2013.

11. The following subsidiaries were included for the first time in the consolidated financial statements as of 31.12.2013, but had not been included
30.09.2013, as they were established in Q4 2013: AKTOR D.O.O. SERBIA and BIOSAR ENERGY (UK) LIMITED. Apart from the above companies, the
financial statements for the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2012, did not include the following subsidiaries: BIOSAR AMERICA Inc., JV HELECTOR SA-
LANDTEK TLD (incorporation) ANTOS HOLDINGS LTD, ILIOSAR ANDRAVIDAS SA (acquisition), and the associates KINIGOS SA (acquisition) and
GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC (incorporation). In relation to the consolidated financial statements of the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2012, the
following companies are no longer consolidated:a) LAMDA TECHNIKI SA -PANTECHNIK| SA & ASSOCIATES and GAS COMPANY OF SUBURBS
SA (dissolution) and b) AKTOR INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LTD (absorption by GULF MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD).

12. The change in the tax rate from 20% to 26% was charged to deferred tax of the Income tax in the Income statement of FY 2013 by €24,893
thousand for the Group and by €149 thousand for the Company. The overall effect of this change on Total Comprehensive Income / (expenses)
amounted to a loss of €16,616 thousand for the Group and €149 thousand for the company (see note 35 to the annual financial statements as of
31.12.2013).

13. Due to the amendment of IAS 19 with regard to the recognition and measurement of the cost of defined benefit plans and retirement benefit
obligations (elimination of the corridor approach), the Group and the Company have adjusted the Statement of Financial Position, the Income
Statement, Comprehensive Income Statement and Cash Flow Statements for previous years. Apart from the above adjustments, where necessary, the
comparative figures have been reclassified to agree with the changes made to the presentation of figures for the current year (see note 41 to the annual
financial statements as of 31.12.2013).

14. The results for the current year have been charged with property impairement of €41,916 thousand at Group level, and of €14,449 thousand at
Company lewel (see note 6 and 8 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2013).

15. The Board of Directors of ELLAKTOR, at its meeting of 27.3.2014, authorized the company’s Managing Director, Mr. Leonidas Bobolas, to
represent ELLAKTOR at the Extraordinary General Assembly of the subsidiary ELTECH ANEMOS SA to be held on 28.3.2014, in order to vote in favor,
inter alia, on the following issues:a) To increase the share capital of the company ELTECH ANEMOS, by payment of cash and issuance of new
registered voting shares, cowvered by a public offering within the meaning of Law 3401/2005 in Greece (the “Public Offering”), and cancellation of the
preemption right for existing shareholders.b) Listing of the shares of the company ELTECH ANEMOS SA on the Athens Stock Exchange

16. The Company’s Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders not to distribute any dividends for FY
2013.

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS
ID Card No. = 434814

LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS
ID Card No. X 237945

Kifissia, 27 March 2014

THE FINANCIAL MANAGER THE HEAD OF ACCOUNTING DEPT.

ALEXANDROS K. SPILIOTOPOULOS
ID Card No. X 666412

EVANGELOS N. PANOPOULOS
ID Card No. AB 342796
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F. Information under article 10 of Law 3401/2005

During 2013, and in 2014 until 27.03.2014, the Camppublished the following press releases-annoueots
to the information of investors.

Date - Time Subject

24/01/2013 17:32 ANNOUNCEMENT

25/01/2013 15:40 ANNOUNCEMENT - ENGLISH

29/01/2013 15:02 Reply to a question from the Capital Market Commission
29/01/2013 13:23 Reply to a question from the Capital Market Commission
27/03/2013 15:51 ANNOUNCEMENT OF FINANCIAL LOG 2013

27/03/2013 14:49 REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC - ENGLISH

29/03/2013 18:39 Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

29/03/2013 18:40 Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

29/03/2013 18:51 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

29/03/2013 18:49 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
29/03/2013 20:29 PRESENTATION OF RESULTS

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — — PRESS
29/03/2013 17:24 RELEASE

29/03/2013 14:08 ANNOUNCEMENT - INVITATION TO TELECONFORENCE
04/04/2013 18:31 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT
05/04/2013 09:44 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT
05/04/2013 09:46 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT
11/04/2013 11:51 ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - Signing of Memorandum
22/04/2013 09:59 e Ui s
23/04/2013 12:29 REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC - English
23/04/2013 10:19 REPLY TO A QUESTION OF CMC
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16/05/2013 11:24

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:

Disclosure of transactions

16/05/2013 11:20

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

29/05/2013 12:25

INVITATION TO TELECONFERENCE

30/05/2013 18:55

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/05/2013 19:00

Financial Statement figures in line with 1AS

30/05/2013 19:04

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/05/2013 19:07

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/05/2013 17:52

PRESS RELEASE OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 1ST QUARTER 2013

31/05/2013 19:04

PRESS RELEASE OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 1ST QUARTER 2013-ENGLISH

31/05/2013 09:15

PRESENTATION OF RESULTS OF GROUP 1ST QUARTER 2013

03/06/2013 13:53

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

03/06/2013 13:59

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

04/06/2013 18:24

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO GM

03/06/2013 14:47

ANNOUNCEMENT OF FINANCIAL LOG 2013

04/06/2013 18:44

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO GM- ENGLISH

05/06/2013 12:25

PRESENTATION OF ELLAKTOR GROUP 2ND GREEK INVESTMENT FORUM IN NY

05/06/2013 17:38

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO GM- ENGLISH

19/06/2013 17:48

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANTS EVENTS — Execution of Contract

(Germany)

19/06/2013 17:46

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANTS EVENTS — Execution of Contracts

(Qatar, Serbia))

20/06/2013 17:31

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANTS EVENTS — Execution of Contract

(Germany)- ENGLISH

20/06/2013 17:28

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANTS EVENTS — Execution of Contracts

(Qatar, Serbia)

27/06/2013 17:29

PRESS RELEASE OF ELLAKTOR GM

28/06/2013 13:43

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE GM

28/06/2013 14:10

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE GM - ENGLISH

01/07/2013 10:23

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CHANGE OF COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

08/07/2013 16:37

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE ITERATIVE GM - ENGLISH
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15/07/2013 16:13

Election of Vice-chairmen and reconstitution into a Body - Delegation of
responsibilities.

29/08/2013 09:59

Invitation to teleconference

30/08/2013 18:24

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/08/2013 18:26

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/08/2013 19:45

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/08/2013 19:49

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

03/09/2013 17:00

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

05/09/2013 11:09

Ellaktor Presentation — 8th Annual Greek Roadshow in London

02/10/2013 16:16

Announcement of Significant Event - Signing of Contract in Slovenia

01/10/2013 17:38

Announcement of Significant Event - Signing of Contract in Slovenia

28/11/2013 18:16

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 9M 2013 - INVITATION TO TELECONFERENCE

29/11/2013 18:31

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

29/11/2013 18:32

Financial Statement figures in line with I1AS

29/11/2013 18:37

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

29/11/2013 18:39

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

02/12/2013 16:29

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

02/12/2013 16:30

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

03/12/2013 12:44

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

03/12/2013 12:43

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

02/12/2013 17:21

PRESS RELEASE - RESULTS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 9M 2013

29/11/2013 19:21

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 9M 2013

29/11/2013 17:33

PRESS RELEASE - RESULTS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SM 2013

05/12/2013 10:36

WRITE-OFF OF DIVIDEND FOR FY 2007

10/12/2013 16:11

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CHANGE OF COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

10/12/2013 16:51

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CHANGE OF COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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19/12/2013 12:02

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

19/12/2013 12:03

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

19/12/2013 12:06

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

19/12/2013 12:20

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of shareholder percentage change at a voting rights level

19/12/2013 12:11

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

19/12/2013 17:00

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - CONCLUSION OF BOND
LOANS

20/12/2013 12:37

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CHANGE OF COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

20/12/2013 15:12

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CHANGE OF COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS -
ENGLISH

23/12/2013 09:42

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT

23/12/2013 16:01

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT - ENGLISH

20/12/2013 19:46

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT

24/12/2013 12:44

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS - Completion of Refinancing
Disbursements

30/12/2013 13:14

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

30/12/2013 13:17

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

31/12/2013 14:42

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

31/12/2013 14:44

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

03/01/2014 17:25

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANTS EVENTS — EXECUTION OF A
PROJECT CONTRACT IN BULGARIA

15/01/2014 13:36

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

15/01/2014 13:39

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

23/01/2014 13:01

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

23/01/2014 13:08

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

03/02/2014 09:55

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO EXTRAORDINARY GM

04/02/2014 16:44

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

04/02/2014 16:47

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions
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07/02/2014 10:21

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

07/02/2014 10:22

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

07/02/2014 10:25

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

12/02/2014 17:22

COMMENTS ON PUBLICATIONS

13/02/2014 16:36

COMMENTS ON PUBLICATIONS - ENGLISH

27/02/2014 18:11

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE GM

12/03/2014 12:35

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

12/03/2014 12:36

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

12/03/2014 12:37

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

12/03/2014 13:00

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

12/03/2014 13:35

ANNOUNCEMENT WITH REGARD TO PRESS PUBLICATION COMMENTS

12/03/2014 17:25

ANNOUNCEMENT WITH REGARD TO PRESS PUBLICATIONS - ENGLISH

14/03/2014 11:56

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

14/03/2014 11:58

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

14/03/2014 11:59

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

14/03/2014 12:04

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

17/03/2014 14:45

ANNOUNCEMENT WITH REGARD TO PRESS PUBLICATION COMMENTS

17/03/2014 16:19

ANNOUNCEMENT WITH REGARD TO PRESS PUBLICATIONS - ENGLISH

20/03/2014 13:26

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

20/03/2014 13:28

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

20/03/2014 13:28

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

20/03/2014 13:29

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

20/03/2014 13:39

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW 3556/2007:
Disclosure of transactions

26/03/2014 12:17

INVITATION TO TELECONFERENCE

26/03/2014 14:17

ANNOUNCEMENT OF FINANCIAL LOG
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All the aforementioned documents (Press Releasaaodncements) and all other announcements madkeby t
company are available at www.ellaktor.com, sectidfisnouncements” and “Press Releases” under “lrorest
Relations”.

Also, the Annual Financial Statements, the Cedifteiditor-Accountant certificates, and the Direstaeports of

the companies incorporated in the Consolidated rigiaa Statements of ELLAKTOR SA, are available in
sections “Financial Figures” and “Investor Relafgrand in subsection “Subsidiaries — Financiatesteents”.

G. Website where the Company and Consolidated Finamal Statements and Subsidiary
Financial Statements are posted

The Company’s annual financial statements on a almlaged and individual basis, the Certified Audito
Accountant Report, and the Directors’ reports alable at www.ellaktor.com.

The financial statements of consolidated compaaieosted on the internet, at www.ellaktor.com.
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